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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results Zi5

For the year ended 31 December

BET-RZt-ALER
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-3% “Z-nf —T-mE “E-=f% it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRBTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Operating income EEMA 875,197 817,970 844,469 893,448 1225525
Operating profi el 104,101 67,320 54,929 118,196 107,190
Profit before taxation fEBsE 123,087 73,796 57,551 128,055 112,840
Net profit for the year FHE 121,687 73,182 58,399 127530 110,906
Attributable to; GFED :
Eouity shareholders of RRAMEE
the Company 121,687 73,182 58,399 127,530 110,906
Non-controlling interests SHRR - - - - -

REARRTF () RMBAEW0.325T RMBARX0.190m RVBAE®0.1460 RMBARH0312r  RMBARE0.2677

flza)y

Basic earnings per share (Note)

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value
of RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28
January 2013.

o BREFBMEEAR-Z=F-A-1+N\BEBZEREEARBCI0OTZETREOEH REREEARE1.00T.2
— A B 2 EORAER A & 01 0% -
Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
ELAFRRELET

(AE#FT)
(RMB’000)
150000 F — — — — — — — = — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

120000 -~ — - - - - - -

90,000 [~ — — b - - - - - - - — — — - - — 4 _

60,000 - - —| F--1 |------- --1 I

30,000 |~ — — - - = - —— = ¥ -- - -4 1=

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
FLFIRREGER

BELE

BEAE

ARAfEE
el

HEBRE L

(A

BERAR

2016
=
RMB'000
IN:L S

2,130,850
505,159

1,625,691

2015
“E-1%
RMB000
ARETT
2,217,914

655,658

1,562,256

Financial Highlights
MBRE

As at 31 December

RtZAZt-H

2014 2013
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AEBTT ARBTR
2,167,629 2,442,161
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB875,197,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to
approximately RMB817,970,000 last year, representing an
increase of approximately 7%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 28% for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately 23%. The profit attributable to equity Shareholders
was approximately RMB121,687,000 for the year under review,
representing an increase of approximately RMB48,505,000
over the previous year of approximately RMB73,182,000. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.325.

The increase in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
significant increase in sales volume caused by the increase in our
Group’s market development effort. The effect of such increase in
sales volume offset the unfavorable impact due to the decrease
in the selling price of juice concentrate in the international market.
The Group could thereby achieve slight increase in turnover during
the reporting period.

Under the trend of depreciation of Renminbi against US dollar,
the Group has continued to enhance its cooperation with
domestic renowned financial institutions. After full repayment of
all loans denominated in US dollar in early 2016, all new loans
were denominated in RMB. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) believe that this can reduce the Group’s exchange
rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its business
development. In expanding the market sales, the Group continued
to maintain close and stable business relationships with certain
renowned beverage manufacturers in China and has developed
new good customers with broadened sales channels. The market
share of the Company in terms of sales volume in the European and
North American markets also increased significantly. For research
and development, the Group completed the research project
under the National Science and Technology Support Program of
the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Research and Industrialization

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. &AL FZERRABHERAF
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Demonstration of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive
Processing”, accepted the Shandong Innovation Project 2013
on “Construction of Professional Information System for Apple
Processing and Optimization and Application Demonstration of
Apple Juice Processing Technology”; obtained the third prize of
Yantai Science and Technology Progress Award and the second
technology progress prize of Technology Innovation Award of
CIFST,; filed two company standards; and led the establishment
of the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep Processing
Technology and Innovation Alliance and became the president unit.

Analysis of Industry and Our Market Share

In 2016, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 506,500 tonnes, representing an
increase of 7% as compared to approximately 473,800 tonnes
in 2015. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of the last
century, the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed
a world market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to
the abundant apple supplies in China. Excluding China, Europe is
the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in the
world. Hence the export volume and price of the China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by the global economy,
but also the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in
Europe. Starting from 2014, due to the increasing competition of
producers of apple juice concentrate in Europe and low growth
pace of the global economy, the international market price of apple
juice concentrate had been decreasing continuously until 2016.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food is bound to bring more room for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growths. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future apple
juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure natural juice
will become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the China’s apple juice concentrate industry
and through our proactive and visionary leadership, we have
gradually expanded the market shares of our products and will
seek to secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid
and better development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the rising demand brought by the global economic recovery,
we expect both the export volume and export price of apple juice
will steadily stabilise at a rational and normal level. In addition, with
the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable to the
agricultural industry under the PRC government’s macroeconomic
policies as well as the gradual improvement of various relevant PRC
laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy better development and
financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging its business scale, the
Group will strive to further enlarge its market, enhance productivity,
diversify products, expand sales, disperse markets and to develop
financing channels, etc.

8  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IFZEFRARHERATE
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry by targeting
small and medium enterprises in the industry, both domestic and
abroad, through means of capital operations such as mergers and
acquisitions and to rationally adjust the Group’s existing production
capacities according to changes in the sources of raw materials
and to extend the research on different types of juice concentrate
and production capacity. On research and development, in 2017,
the Group will continue to develop fruit beverage; conduct related
research topics of the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep
Processing Technology and Innovation Alliance; and conduct the
optimization of juice processing technique.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board of Directors (the “Board”) and
| have full confidence in the Group’s future development. Our
employees will continue to support the Group and to contribute
to the Group’s continuous and steady development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.05
per share for the financial year 2016 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, although the international market
price of apple juice concentrate decreased continuously, due
to the increase in sales volume, the continuous decrease in
cost of raw materials and the significant increase in exchange
gains caused by the appreciation of US dollars to RMB, both
the net profit and net profit margin of the Company increased
significantly. The Directors strongly believe that the Company will
have even more development opportunities in 2017, given that
some small and medium domestic enterprises have been forced
out of the market and the whole international market is gradually
recovering. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the investors, loyal customers and suppliers
for their appreciation and unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

15 March 2017

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s turnover
increased to approximately RMB875,197,000 as compared to
approximately RMB817,970,000 in 2015, representing an increase
of approximately RMB57,227,000 or 7%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the sale of
apple juice concentrate was approximately 86% of the total sale
of the Group (2015: approximately 82%). The increase in turnover
was mainly due to the increase in sales volume of the apple juice
concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB244,004,000 and the gross profit margin
remained approximately 28%. For the corresponding period in
2015, the gross profit was approximately RMB189,351,000 and
gross profit margin was approximately 23%. The increase in both
gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the
increase in sales volume and the decease in cost of fruit.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company) increased to approximately RMB121,687,000 as
compared to approximately RMB73,182,000 for the corresponding
period in 2015, representing an increase of approximately
RMB48,505,000 or 66%. The increase in net profit was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume, the decrease in cost
of fruits, the increase in exchange gains from the appreciation of
USD and the increase in government grant.

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB72,982,000, as compared
to approximately RMB49,985,000 in 2015, representing an
increase of approximately RMB22,997,000 or 46%. The Group’s
distribution costs mainly included transport, import and export
service charge, export inspection and marketing expenses. Such
increase was mainly due to the rise in sales volume, and the
increase in logistic expenses caused by the use of more flexible
sales methods like Ex-Dock, FCA by some customers in America.
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A1 %% o]

E4
HE-_Z—XR"F+ZA=+—HLILHF
B AEEHKRAZENEHARE
875,197,000t - - T —HFHAR
#5817,970,000 7L AB LL + NI A R
57,227,0007C 7% ° AEEHKAEE
REEERBEEREBRRET - BRERT -
i%ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ%uu %Zi_% T\¢+
ZRA=ZT—HILEFE  BREERTHHEE

AMEAREBBIHE R 286% (—F— R ¢

#182%) c AFEEEEFIENFTERHARN
MEHR - REERT 2 HESEE AT
g(o

HE_Z—RF+A=1+—RHLFE -
$El%ﬂi’w%/\EM244 004,0007T -
EF R IFL HB28% o —RFRHN
E A \\’77,%/\5%189351 0007z FE A=
HE23% - EFBEREFNE FAFER
HREEHEEREENRKEER TH
FEK -

HE—Z—R&E+-A=+—HI1LtFE -
7N 8= [ S5 A (BN ZR A R IR R FE (G 2N 4F 2 0%
) # AN REE121,687,0007T » B —F—
AFRBANAEARET3,182,0007TE L -
A B AR 48,505,000708466% ° iF
FEENEZSHNEERE LT - B
RERBRATY - EXFHEEBUE XS
N - AR ERATH RE U AE TR -

HEREEER
BE-_Z—RF+-_A=1+—RBILEE -
$Eliﬁ%§ﬁ%®ﬁ/\ﬁﬁz72,982,ooo
T o =T —RHF L ARE49,985,0007T
*Bttism%@AE%QQ,%?,OOO?@M@% °
AEBZHEEBRATEREERER @ #
HFORBE LOBRBELEEER - 4
EERHEMTEZEARNEERSENRE
IMNEMD B L AEX-Dock, FCAZH & iEH)
HEFNSIRBYIRE ARG IR -

—Z—REFH Annual Report 2016

11



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB53,908,000 as
compared to approximately RMB49,561,000 in 2015, representing
an increase of approximately RMB4,347,000 or 9%. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the acquisition of a new subsidiary,
Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. in August 2015.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net finance costs
of the Group were approximately RMB94,000, as compared to
approximately RMB23,392,000 for the corresponding period
in 2015, representing a significant decrease of approximately
RMB23,298,000 or 99%. Such decrease was attributable to
decrease in average loan balance in 2016 and the increase in
exchange gains arose from continuous appreciation of US dollars.

Other Operating Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016, other operating income of
the Group was approximately RMB21,127,000. As compared to
approximately RMB7,040,000 in 2015, representing an increase
of approximately RMB14,087,000 or 200%. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in government grants received
by the Group.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continuously recognized as primary processing
of agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.

12 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. JBAILFZENETREERD T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2016, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging
on its advanced production technology, superb product quality
and comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained
steady growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts,
the Group has already expanded its sales network to the major
countries and regions in the world, including the US, Japan,
Europe, Oceania and African countries and the PRC domestic
market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
cooperation relationships with certain renowned beverage
processors and manufacturers in the PRC and has developed
new good customers with broadened sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and enlarging its market shares,
the Group also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to
optimise its profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the
customer base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.

Research and Development

The Group completed the research project under the National
Science and Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-
Year Plan” on the “Research and Industrialization Demonstration
of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the
acceptance of Shandong Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction
of Professional Information System for Apple Processing and
Optimization and Application Demonstration of Apple Juice
Processing Technology”; obtained the third prize of Yantai Science
and Technology Progress Award and the second technology
progress prize of Technology Innovation Award of CIFST; filed
two company standards; and led the establishment of the Ministry
of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep Processing Technology and
Innovation Alliance and became the president unit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets
of apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania and African countries and Japan. Save as stabilizing the
existing market penetration and customers groups, the Company
will put more efforts in the development of various emerging
markets in the forthcoming year, with a view to breaking through
these markets. In addition, the Company has in recent years been
committed to the exploration of the market opportunities for its
new products and niche products as well as the development of
new customer groups. The Company will also further expand the
types of niche products. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of diversified
product expansion.

Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the forthcoming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page
in our domestic market sales.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against US dollar and adjust the proportion of Renminbi and
US dollar loans. The Group will continue to actively engage in
cooperation with domestic and international financial institutions to
diversify its financing channels and increase the variety of financing
products, in order to reduce the Group’s exchange rate risk and
finance cost, improve capital structure, enhance risk resistant
capability and facilitate better business development.

Research and Development

On research and development, in 2017, the Group will continue
to develop fruit beverage; conduct related research topics of
the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep Processing
Technology and Innovation Alliance; and conduct the optimization
of juice processing techniques.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.16 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2016.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note
XI.1 to the Financial Statements.

Capital Structure

The H shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19 January
2011, the H shares were transferred and listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) and de-listed from
GEM. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
(comprising domestic shares of the Company (the “Domestic
Shares”) and H Shares). Details of the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note V.23 to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB340,000,000, all of which were short-
term bank loan. As at 31 December 2016, short-term bank loans
of RMB270,000,000 bore interest at rates ranging from 3.92% to
4.35% per annum. Short-term bank loans of RMB70,000,000 bore
floating base rate of 4.35% or Shibor +5%. In the year 2016, the
Group repaid on time the loans due for repayment. The Directors
consider that the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet
its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB110,179,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as at
31 December 2016 was approximately 24% (2015: approximately
30%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of approximately RMB505,159,000 (2015: RMB655,658,000) by
the Group’s total assets of approximately RMB2,130,850,000
(2015: RMB2,217,914,000).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%) , aged 54, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26 June
2001. Mr. Wang is a well known private entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (#t&; X4t 5L# & A ) , an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (ILIRAESFHELEHTE
FEEFEERE), aTop Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province ([LIE& & ¥ 7&E
ERAFENTAELEAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’ of
Reform and Opening in Yantai (A& ERB=TF [FEZ£]),
an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai to
Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (422 KL 60EFHERAEFR
BZER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (IR (J8&) & ¥
BEANTEREAY HELEREAY) , and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AKX
A3K) . Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (FREtAREREFERT) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (& B &E /) for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (B TEEEEEE) , member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation A& EZ=ReFE—mIEE
EIEE). Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILE
Z{ER|EE AR AR, which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has since
been involved in the concentrated apple juice production industry.
Mr. Wang is responsible for the overall management of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EES EESkeREEE

Mr. Zhang Hui (583) , aged 44, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was Deputy General Manager
of Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (&R T¥A
PRAE]) and Muping material (Z2¥#7& ) before joining the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December 1998 and has been
involving in the concentrated juice production industry since then.
Mr. Zhang has been Supervisor of the Production Department,
General Manager of a subsidiary of the Company and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Zhang has received the following
awards: Outstanding Member of the Communist Party ({85 &
#8) of Muping District, The 9th Session Top Ten Outstanding
Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai city (FAfEAET T AEESFL
¥%) and the “May 1st Labor Award” of Yantai city. In March
2007, he was appointed as a member of the standing committee
of the Fruit and Vegetable Processing Division (25 LH€) of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology. During his
tenure as General Manager of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (A7K
ZENRETAER AT, he was appointed as a representative of
the Communist Party in Weinan city (FFEm M ERK) and was
a standing member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Baishui County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr.
Wang An in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shandong Agriculture University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management (majoring in corporate
management) in July 1997. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%:#) , aged 40, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (&EE&1LH AH
J&) . Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the
Financial Controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (BI5R'E) , aged 50, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the Business Integration
Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He joined Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed as the head
of its Investment Analysis Section. In 2000, he was transferred
to President International Development Corporation, and was
responsible for its investments. He has also been the manager
of the Treasury Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. since
2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/supervisor
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taiwan Gretai Securities Market. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance,
M&A, private equity, and business strategy. Before joining Uni-
President Enterprises Corp., he was the head of the Credit and
Loan Unit of Taipei branch of Cosmos Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu
obtained a Bachelor of Law degree (majoring in Economics) from
National Chengchi University in 1989, and a Master of Business
Administration degree from National Taiwan University in 1991.

Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (Z#%), aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Jiang is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. Mr. Jiang obtained a master degree
in economics from Hangzhou Institution of Electronic Technology in
March 1997. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC. From
March 1997 to December 2002, Mr. Jiang served as a business
manager and a senior manager of Shandong International Trust
and Investment Corporation. Mr. Jiang joined the Company in 2003
and served as the chief financial officer of the Company from May
2003 to May 2010. From May 2007 to June 2010, he served as
an executive Director and from July 2010 to June 2012 he served
as a non-executive Director. Since May 2010, he serves as the
vice president of the Creat Group Co., Ltd..
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EES EESkeREEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei (Z242), aged 62, is an independent non-executive
Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Li has approximately 15 years of
working experience in corporate management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing Institute for Foreign Trade in July 1980. From July
1986 to October 1989, Mr. Li served as the general manager of
the import department at China North Industries Corporation.
From October 1989 to October 1995, he served as the managing
director of Silverkey Development Ltd. From October 1995 to
October 1999, he served as the managing director of Silvercity
International Development Ltd., and also served as a director of
Raymond Industrial Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Since February 2002, Mr. Li has successively been a commentator
or host at several broadcasting stations and television stations
in Hong Kong, Beijing and Shenzhen. Since August 2007, he
serves as an independent non-executive director of VST Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, since
May 2016, he serves as an independent non-executive director
of Qianhai Health Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z:[F%), aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.

Supervisors

Ms. Dai Liying (&i#5), aged 52, is a staff representative
Supervisor since 16 March 2016. She is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. She obtained a bachelor degree
from Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1988, majoring in
pre-school education. From July 1988 to July 1997, she served
as the principal of the Third Kindergarten of Inner Mongolia First
Machinery Manufacturing Factory. From July 1997 to June 1998,
she worked at Yantai Commercial and Trading Company Limited.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

She joined the Company in July 1998, and held various positions
at the Company successively, including the deputy supervisor
of administration department, the supervisor of administration
department and the supervisor of human resources department
of the Company. Since 2014, she serves as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company and the supervisor of the general
management department of the Company.

Mr. Wang Zhiwu (E&E ), aged 46, is a Shareholder-approved
Supervisor since 25 May 2016. He is a member of the Communist
Party of the PRC with a high school qualification. From May 1990
to June 1997, he worked at Muping District Aquatic Products
Supplying and Marketing Company. He joined the Company in
July 1997. From January 2002 to February 2012, he held various
positions at the Company successively, including the deputy
supervisor of the production department of the Company, the
supervisor of production department of the Company, the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company and the vice
president of the Company. Since March 2012, he is the general
manager of Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (¥&Z), aged 63, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
Economics and Management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was Supervisor,
Deputy Chief and Managing Deputy Chief of the Publishing
Office of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January
2006 to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the Executive
Committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (£%) , aged 54, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Zhang Hui (5R#8) , aged 44, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (F%i#) , aged 40, is an executive Director,
Financial Controller and Secretary to the Board. Please refer to
his biography under the sub- section headed “Directors”.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 51, is a vice president of the
Company. Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’s
University of International Business and Economics and obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Foreign Business Management in July
1990. She worked in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of
the Foreign Economics and Trade Commission of Muping from
January 1992 to February 1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel
Products Co., Ltd. from 1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a
vice president responsible for sales and market promotion from
1997 to August 20083; and Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd.
from September 2003 to December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the
Company in January 2011 and is currently responsible for both
domestic and overseas sales of the Group.

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (FRE4) , aged 48, a university graduate with a
Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture, is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997
to engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality
control and on-going supervision of production activities. He was
the twice winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science Advancement
of Shandong Province (ILERERHZ#EF = 4F) | the winner of the
1st Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (A& TR}
B #EF—548) and the winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement in Yantai City (&R =F4E) . Currently,
he is responsible for the technology, research and development
of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fR&14) , aged 45, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration in 1994. She is a fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviation:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for formulating the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees of
the Group and Directors; and

(v) To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure requirements in the corporate governance
report.
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The Board

The Company is managed by its Board, which has the responsibility
for providing leadership and control of the Company. Through the
Board, the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total
of seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang An (chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (chief executive officer)
and Mr. Wang Yan Hui (financial controller); one non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei and
Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2019.
All Directors are appointed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17
to 20 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening general meetings and reporting on their work
at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at general meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting
off of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger or dissolution
of the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the
Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of
the Company, appointing or dismissing the deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management at the recommendation of the chief executive
officer of the Company and determining matters relating to
their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;
- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);

and

- carrying out other powers conferred by general meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible
for preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-
to-day management of the Company’s business is delegated to
the chief executive officer and the management. The functions
of the Board and the powers delegated to the chief executive
officer are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer.
The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman
is responsible for convening and holding general meetings and
Board meetings, tracking the progress of implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board, signing the securities issued
by the Company and carrying out other powers conferred by
the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chief executive officer and the management are
responsible for the production, operation and management of
the Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board, implementation of annual business plans and investment
proposals, formulation of the internal management structure, the
basic management system and the specific governance of the
Company. In particular the chief executive officer is responsible
for proposing to the Board for appointment or dismissal of
deputy general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management of the Company, appointment or dismissal of other
management staff whose appointment and dismissal does not
require approval from the Board and carrying out other powers
conferred by the Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Upon appointment to the Board, each newly-appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies and independent auditors so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in performing their duties. During the year under review, the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen, has
completed over 15 hours professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year under review:

Executive Directors BiTES
Wang An oy
Zhang Hui o e
Wang Yan Hui T by
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Liu Tsung-Yi BRE

Independent non-executive Directors BILFMITEE

Jiang Hong Qi (appointed on EHT (ZERZZE—R
25 May 2016) AA=+HA)
Li Wei (appointed on 25 May 2016) FE (ZERZE—RF
AAZ=+HA)
Li Tong Ning FR%E
Gong Fan (resigned on 25 May 2016)  BEJ, (BHIER —ZT—/N4F
HAZ=-+HA)
Chow Kam Hung (resigned on BisE (BER_Z—X
25 May 2016) AAZ=+EH)
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for Board meetings and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related Board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a Board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting key people at head office and in
the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary of the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibilities.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board held five meetings during 2016. The chief financial
officer of the Company also attended all of the Board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, mergers and acquisitions and accounting and financial
matters. The attendance (other than attending by authorised
representatives) of individual Directors at the Board meetings,
the meetings of major committees and the general meetings in
2016 is set out in the table below:

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B¥ (BB %) ES: WA  ZH WYH
19/01/2016 WA v v v
29/01/2016 N/A v v v
16/03/2016 WA v v v
25/05/2016 WA v v v
26/08/2016 WA v v v
Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BH#¥ (B R %) £ WA  ZH  WYH
25/05/2016 WA v v v

TRELRE

BN "FERTRAEE - K
NENBBELFETE2HEETSERE - I
HMEER  RERERE - B5FER - 66
WkE - auffﬂﬁﬁﬁ“$ﬂkﬁ-ﬁfi o NRE
TEESFRZZ—RNFREE (BREREEM
EERAHRIEFTYE  FTEZEEER
RIRR KRG 2715

EEgER

LTY LwW*  JHQ* GF™ CKH*™ LTN

v NA NA v v v

v NA NA v v v

v NA NA v v v

v v v NA NA v

v v v NA NA v
BRRBEFEXE

LTY LW*  JHQ* GF CKH*™ LTN

4 - - 4 v/ v

—Z—REFH Annual Report 2016

29



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Audit and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
B (B R %) 3

15/03/2016 GF
25/08/2016 JHQ

Nomination Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
B# (BB %) xE

15/03/2016 WA
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
A8 (BB %) £

15/03/2016 GF
Note:

WA Wang An

ZH Zhang Hui

WYH  Wang Yan Hui
LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi

LW Li Wei

JHQ  Jiang Hong Qi
GF Gong Fan

CKH  Chow Kam Hung
LTN  Li Tong Ning

Symbols:

“v” means attended the meeting

“~” means not attended the meeting
“N/A” means not applicable

“*” means appointed on 25 May 2016
“*” means resigned on 25 May 2016
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a Director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction
in which a Director has a conflict of interest, the Director has
to declare his interest and is required to abstain from voting
and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate. The Company
seeks confirmation from the Directors annually in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related
to Directors or their associates pursuant to the guideline.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2016.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2016.
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Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members of which
two are recommended by Shareholders and one is an employee
representative elected by the employees. The Supervisory
Committee is responsible for supervision of the Board, members
of the Board and senior management, to prevent authority abuse,
Shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect legitimate
interests of the Company and its employees. During 2016, the
Supervisory Committee held two meetings, during which the
members of the Supervisory Committee reviewed the Company’s
financial position, legal compliance of the Company’s operations,
diligence of the senior management and the election of Ms. Dai
Liying as the chairlady of the Supervisory Committee.

Internal Control

Internal Control System

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement errors, losses or fraud. Procedures for
the Company’s internal, control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Regarding to the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “Inside Information
Provisions”), and any information required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules or any inside information required
to be disclosed under the Inside Information Provisions should be
announced immediately.

A review of the Company’s internal control system covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management is
conducted annually. In particular, the Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place
to identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these
risks are monitored by the Board with the support of various
committees and senior management. For the year under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and the Company had complied with the Code
Provisions on internal control under the CG Code.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department of the Company provides an
independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system. The department is headed by a manager
who is familiar with the Company’s operation. Its scope of work
mainly includes auditing of financial and operational systems,
reviewing the observance of relevant policies and regulations,
regular and special auditing, auditing of production effectiveness,
etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk assessment
methodology, is discussed and agreed on every year by the Audit
and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual schedule
of work, the internal audit department of the Company conducts
other special reviews as required.
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The primary reporting procedure of the internal audit department of
the Company is to report to the chairman of the Board but there
is also direct access to the Audit and Review Committee. Internal
audit reports are sent to the chief executive officer, the chief
financial officer, the external auditors and the relevant management
of the departments under audit. A summary of major audit findings
is reported to and discussed with the Audit and Review Committee.
The Board and the Audit and Review Committee actively monitor
the number and seriousness of findings raised by the internal audit
department of the Company and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.

Detailed control guidelines have been formulated and made
available to all employees of the Company regarding handling
and dissemination of corporate data which is price sensitive.

Risk Management

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a Risk Management Committee
which coordinates the proper application of operational risk
management procedures throughout the Company. The committee
assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the Company and
its subsidiaries in, among others, the following areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the risk management process, system and internal control,
including whether the development of the Company’s
business is prudent and in compliance with the legal
requirements.
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The terms of reference of the committee do not include financial
risk management and the coordination of the Company’s policy on
environmental issues. The committee is chaired by the chief financial
officer of the Company and includes senior representatives from
each division as well as the human resources manager and the
head of internal audit department of the Company. The committee
reports to the Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis.

The Company has a sound organisation system of internal control.
The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems. An annual year-end review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk managements and
internal control systems during the year has been conducted.
Guided by the Board, the Audit and Review Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, the internal audit department carries
out inspection, supervision and evaluation for internal controls of
the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of important control
functions such as financial control, operation control, compliance
control and risk management, supervises and timely rectifies
internal control deficiencies and effectively controls operating risks.

The objectives of internal control of the Company include ensuring
a legal and compliance management, asset safety, accuracy and
completeness of financial reports and related information in a
reasonable manner, enhancing its operating efficiency and results,
and promoting the implementation of strategy development. Due to
the intrinsic limitations of internal control system, only reasonable
guarantees can be provided for the abovementioned objectives.
In addition, the effectiveness of its internal control is subject
to change according to the changes of internal and external
environment and operations. Inspection and supervision system
is established for the Company. In case of shortcomings found,
the Company will adopt rectification measures immediately.

Audit and Review Committee

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and making relevant recommendations to the
Board. All of its members are independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (appointed on 25 May 2016), Mr. Li
Wei (appointed on 25 May 2016), Mr. Gong Fan (resigned on 25
May 2016), Mr. Chow Kam Hung (resigned on 25 May 2016) and
Mr. Li Tong Ning) and its current chairman is Mr. Jiang Hong Qi.
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The Audit and Review Committee has adopted revised set of terms
of reference effective from 19 January 2016, which is based on the
guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A copy of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit and Review Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit and Review Committee met twice in 2016. During
2016, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2016 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

External Auditors

In 2016, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 77 to 79 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen LLP for the audit work of the Company for
the financial year 2017. This resolution has been endorsed by the
Board and is subject to final approval and authorisation by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration and Review Committee

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Jiang
Hong Qi (appointed on 25 May 2016), Mr. Gong Fan (resigned on
25 May 2016) and Mr. Li Tong Ning as members with Mr. Jiang
Hong Qi as the current chairman. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as
follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management,
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a Director, Director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, Director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2016
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2016. At that meeting, the committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2016.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee to
the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the Shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration package
include basic compensation (comprising of director’s fee) and
discretionary bonus without capping. In determining guidelines for
each compensating element, the Company refers to remuneration
surveys conducted by independent external consultants on
companies operating similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for 2016 by band is
set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of
the Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus
based on the Company’s results and the degree of diligence of
each of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2015 and
2016 are disclosed in Note V.39 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wang An, an executive
Director, and comprises Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (appointed on 25 May
2016), Mr. Gong Fan (resigned on 25 May 2016) and Mr. Li Tong
Ning, all independent non-executive Directors, as members. The
role of the committee is to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition
and the management of Board succession with reference to
certain guidelines as endorsed by the Nomination Committee.
These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethnics, integrity and personal skills,
and time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professional when necessary.
The Nomination Committee met once in 2016 to discuss the Board
structure, size and composition and to evaluate the independence
status of the independent non-executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below
is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a wide
range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee will review
the diversity of the Board and report to the Board the composition
of the Board members and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition
of the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 to adopt the Board Diversity
Policy have been posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the chief financial officer of the Company was
established. The Information Disclosure Review Committee is
responsible for the establishment of procedures to compile, verify
and report the Company’s financial and operational statistics
and other information as well as to supervise the drafting and
publication of periodic reports.
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The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
Shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available to
meet with the Shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major Shareholders
is through the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
Shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 25 May 2016 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all Shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial Shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives. A
wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is made
available to investors and the public through the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Announcements
of the interim and annual results are also available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

In 2016, the Company held 12 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business and operations of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the Shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly
by questions at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be made to the Company by the same means.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Board shall give written
feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10 days
after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the Supervisory Committee to hold the
SGM in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory
Committee does not convene or preside over the general meeting.
The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the general meeting held by the Supervisory
Committee or Shareholders by themselves shall be born by the
Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

When the Company holds the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing
10 days before the SGM.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

With regard to the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website
at www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Room 1401-2, Yue Shing Commercial Building,
15 Queen Victoria Street, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@northandre.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Change in Constitutional Documents

With the approval of all the relevant PRC regulatory authorities and
the Board, the amendments to the Articles of Association took
effect on 11 November 2016 to reflect share cancellation due to
shares repurchase which took place during June to July 2016,
details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2016. An updated version of the Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note VI.1 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2016 are set out in Notes VI.1 to the Financial Statements
respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in pages 80 to 236 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5
of this annual report.

Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may face have
been disclosed in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of
this annual report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note VIl to the Financial Statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and
has gradually expanded markets in other countries. The sales
attributable to the top five customers of the Group accounted
for about 31.91% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to about 15.60%.
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Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 9.53% of total purchases for the year. The largest
supplier accounted for about 2.33% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, their respective associates or
any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB18,400,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.05
per share for 2016. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Any insufficiency will
be distributed from the profit for distribution to the Shareholders
generated in or after 2008. The proposal to declare and pay
this final dividend will be submitted to the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 25 May 2017.
Final dividend for domestic shares will be distributed and paid
in Renminbi whereas dividend for H Shares will be declared in
Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend will
be paid to those Shareholders whose names appear on the
Companys’ register of members at the close of business on 9
June 2017 (the “Record Date”). To determine the identity of the
Shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend, the register
of holders of H Shares will be closed from 2 June 2017 to 9
June 2017 (both days inclusive) during which no transfer of H
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of H Shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s H Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at
22/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2017.
The final dividend is expected to be distributed on 21 July 2017.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax
rate of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of
non-resident enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise
(including the Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident
enterprise shareholder shall withhold and remit corporate income
tax at 10% on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit
Earned by Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in
the Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant
to Corporate Income Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet
distributed before 1 January 2008 by foreign investment enterprise
when distributed to non-resident enterprise in or after 2008, will
be exempted from corporate income tax. Any dividend distributed
to non-resident enterprises from profit accumulated since 2008 by
foreign investment enterprise will be subject to corporate income
tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income
Tax Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa
[1993] No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-
resident individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses
from the shares issued in Hong Kong by non-foreign-invested
enterprise, individual income tax shall be withheld and remitted
by the withholding agent according to the domain of “interest,
dividends and bonuses”. The non-resident individual shareholders
of domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares
in Hong Kong, shall enjoy the taxation preferences in accordance
with the agreements between countries of their origins and China
and the regulation on taxation arrangement between the Mainland
and Hong Kong (Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as
provided by taxation agreement is generally at a rate of 10%.
In order to simplify the collection and management of taxation,
the individual income tax with a rate of 10% in general will be
withheld when dividend is paid by the domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong without
making applications. Where the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it
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will be handled according to the following requirements: (1) for
residents of countries which have entered into an agreement with
China in respect of a tax rate lower than 10%, the withholding
agent may apply for the relevant entitlements hereunder on their
behalf. Upon examination and approval by the competent tax
authorities, the additional amount of tax withheld will be refunded;
(2) for residents of countries which have entered into an agreement
with China in respect of a tax rate of 10% or more but less than
20%, the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at
the agreed tax rate when distributing dividends or bonuses, and
no application for approval is needed; (3) for residents of a country
or which has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC and
in any other circumstances, the withholding agent shall withhold
individual income tax at the tax rate of 20% when distributing
dividends and bonuses.

Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax
Law) for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold
and remit enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H shares of the Company registered under
the name of non-natural persons in the H share register of members
of the Company on 1 June 2017 (Thursday), including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups
and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
Shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will be
distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution
to the Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Pursuant to the
preferential policy of the Corporate Income Tax Law, the Company
currently proposes not to withhold 10% corporate income tax and
to distribute the final dividend to such non-resident enterprise
Shareholders at gross amount before corporate income tax. This
arrangement is conditional upon obtaining the final approval from
the relevant tax authority. If the Company cannot obtain final
approval from the relevant tax authorities regarding the exemption
of corporate income tax for non-resident enterprise Shareholders
as mentioned above, the Company will distribute the final dividend
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to such non-resident enterprise Shareholders after withholding
corporate income tax of 10% as required by the Corporate Income
Tax Law. Individual Shareholders who hold the H shares and
whose names appear on the register of members of H shares
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax
at a tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of the dividends from the
Company, which shall be withheld and remitted by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
Shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding
and remitting.

Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.23 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company during the reporting
period is set out in the statement of changes in Shareholders’
equity of the Group and the Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately RMB347,050,000 (2015:
approximately RMB366,365,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the Group incurred approximately
RMB25,354,000 mainly for the purchase of office, renovation of
plant and acquisition of equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period is set out in Note V.11 to the Financial
Statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the PRC laws and regulations which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year 2016, the Company repurchased a total of
13,000,000 H shares with par value of HK$1.00 each on the
Stock Exchange at prices ranging from HK$3.36 to HK$4.04 per
H share, for a total consideration of HK$48,045,536 (including the
consideration for shares repurchase, stamp duty and commission).

Directors believe that through repurchase of shares, earnings per
share and asset value per share will increase, which in turn will
improve the Company’s capital structure and Shareholders’ equity.

Details of share repurchased
No. of
Shares
Repurchased
EIfgR iR 8B
June 2016 ZE-RERA 10,875,000
July 2016 N 2,125,000

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2016.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2016.

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

iR

NEEREFBEAPDER L EFTAARR A
AL PIFR AR R B EHRAELRE
RIS »

M - HSREE R n

RZZE—RF - AARRBRFERH
13,000,000/% & % 1.008 st EE 2 HMK -
BFHRR 2 B EE A3.3624.048F 7T @ 400
8% (8 548,045,536 L (B IELE BBIRE -
HEOEHRAR)

EFEMERERRABE NS REF X
FoREEEkRRE  AMRKEAFTE
REEBRT IR

Petn OEE RS -
Highest Lowest
Repurchase Repurchase
Price Price
mmEEE &= {E Bl S {5
(HKD) (HKD)
(BT) (BT)
3.85 3.36
4.04 3.78

R EAEEIN BE_T-RF+RA=
T—BIEFE @ ARFHEERNERF
BEBA - HEXBLARRFEABRND -

ESREFRARMRRIEZOEF

AR E e E M8 A R R AR
NBEESEFARETZTENBRANE
BARRQ B SRR E A A B B A1)
EREMED  MRERBE_ZT—RF
T A=+ HALEFERETREAZSE
TR -

—Z—REFH Annual Report 2016

49



Report of Directors

EEERE

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

No material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated
companies or joint venture companies have been made by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Significant Investments

Except as disclosed in Notes V.2, 8 and 9 to the Financial
Statements, no significant investment was held by the Group as
at 31 December 2016.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 1,057
employees (2015: 1,062 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015 were approximately RMB54,401,000
and approximately RMB45,953,000, respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.39
and 40 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in Note V.19 to the Financial
Statements.
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Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
and Supervisors were as follows:

Executive Directors:  Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Jiang Hong Qi (appointed on 25 May 2016),
non-executive Li Wei (appointed on 25 May 2016), Gong
Directors: Fan (resigned on 25 May 2016), Chow Kam

Hung (resigned on 25 May 2016) and Li Tong
Ning
Supervisors: Dai Li Ying (appointed on 16 March 2016),

Wang Zhi Wu (appointed on 25 May 2016),
Wang Chun Tang, Zhang Suoping (resigned
on 25 May 2016) and Xu Jiang (resigned on
16 March 2016)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All independent non-executive Directors are considered
as independent.
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Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

At 25 May 2016, Mr. Jiang Hong Qi and Mr. Li Wei were appointed
as independent non-executive Directors while Mr. Gong Fan and
Mr. Chow Kam Hung were resigned as independent non-executive
Directors. Ms. Dai Li Ying and Mr. Wang Zhi Wu were appointed
as Supervisors on 16 March 2016 and 25 May 2016, respectively,
while Mr. Zhang Suoping and Mr. Xu Jiang were resigned as
Supervisors on 25 May 2016 and 16 March 2016, respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no material changes to the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the financial year, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the company).

Connected Transactions

Continuing connected transactions

[ On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
(“Andre Pectin”) for the sale of pomace and juice products
to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for the
sale of pomace and juice products for the three years
ending 31 December 2018. The framework agreement took
effect on 1 January 2016 and will expire on 31 December
2018. On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
with Andre Pectin to revise the annual caps for 2016, 2017
and 2018 under the framework agreement.
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As of the date of signing the above Supplemental
Agreement, Andre Pectin was an associate (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of Shandong Andre Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Andre Group”), which was a substantial Shareholder
and controlled 47.37% interest in Andre Pectin. Andre
Pectin was also an associate of Mr. Wang An, who is
a Director and indirectly controlled 47.37% interest in
Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre Group.
Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of the
Company and the sale of pomace and juice products by
the Company to Andre Pectin as contemplated under the
framework agreement and the Supplemental Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement and the revised annual
caps for 2016, 2017 and 2018 under the Supplemental
Agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Under the terms of the framework agreement, prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (i) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.

For identification purpose only
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The revised annual caps were determined based on the
internal estimation of the supply of raw materials in the
PRC market and the increase in production of pomace
products by the Group. The annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB41,000,000. The actual sale
of pomace by the Group to Andre Pectin for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB19,244,517 and are subject
to annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 12 March 2015, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“President”), whereby
President agreed to purchase and the Company agreed
to supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) and provide related warehousing
service to President and determined the annual caps for
the three financial years ending 31 December 2017.

As at the date of signing the agreement, President held
16.29% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President was a substantial
Shareholder and thus was a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the product purchase framework agreement between the
Group and President constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company. As an applicable percentage
ratio in respect of the annual caps under the product
purchase framework agreement (other than the profit ratio)
exceeded 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
product purchase framework agreement constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and were subject to the requirements of reporting,
announcement, independent Shareholders’ approval and
annual review under the Listing Rules.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, the
prices of products to be supplied by the Company shall
be determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (i) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.
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“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.

Upon receipt of a sales order of the products, the sales
department of the Company and its designated persons
will ascertain the pricing offered by other independent
third parties, generally by way of, obtaining quotation for
a comparable volume and similar products from at least
two independent third parties via emails, fax or phone
and tenders by publishing tender notice via various media
resources (for instance, the local newspapers), and take
average of such quotation as the Market Price. They will
also refer to the Historical Price as recorded on the updated
transaction record sheet. Then they will take the higher of
the Market Price and the Historical Price as selling price
of the relevant sales order. The selling price of each major
category of products will be reviewed upon receipt of a
sales order of such products and be approved by the head
of the sales department of the Company.

The annual transaction caps were determined with reference
to the historical amount with President, the estimated
increase in the sales volume of the Company’s pear juice
concentrate to President and the expected increase in
the prevailing market prices of the Company’s products
due to the increase in the costs for the production of the
Company’s products, such as the raw materials and labour
costs. The annual caps for the three financial years ending
31 December 2017 are RMB86,000,000, RMB95,000,000
and RMB105,000,000 respectively.
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The actual sale of products and warehousing services
provided by the Group to President for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB23,043,660 and are subject to
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Yantai Hengtong Thermoelectricity Co.,
Ltd.*({H & F @R EE B R A B))(“Yantai Hengtong”), pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to purchase and Yantai
Hengtong has agreed to supply products (including but
not limited to electricity and steam) to regulate the product
purchase between the Group and Yantai Hengtong for the
three years ending 31 December 2018.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Yantai Hengtong
is wholly owned by Andre Group, a substantial Shareholder.
Yantai Hengtong is an associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Andre Group and is also a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement between the Company and Yantai Hengtong
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio) for the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years ending 31
December 2018 for the continuing connected transactions
under the framework agreement are more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, in accordance with the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions under the framework
agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules
and are exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement. The Company has complied with
the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Prices of products to be purchased by the Group shall
be determined according to the Market Price (as defined
below).

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following order: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

For identification purpose only
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The proposed annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions have been determined based on (i) the
estimated amount of transactions involved with reference
to the historical transaction volume; and (i) the estimated
demand by the Group on Yantai Hengtong’s products
with reference to the prospective consumption of such
products by the manufacturing workshops of the Group
at full production capacity. The annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB39,000,000. The
actual purchase for the year ended 31 December 2016
was RMB20,616,187 and are subject to annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company agreed
to provide services for installation for various kinds of
constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ending 31 December
2018.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping
Company was wholly-owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the
wife of Mr. Wang An who is an executive Director and a
substantial Shareholder. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping
Company was an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus
was a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the construction and
installation services framework agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
Since the applicable percentage ratios for the highest
proposed annual cap for each of the three years ending 31
December 2018 for the continuing connected transactions
under the construction and installation services framework
agreement were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
continuing connected transactions under the construction
and installation services framework agreement were only
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules and were exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

ErTBERRBELGRE N E
THHEHERSINEZRFE LR
BE2ETOHIREBERZEMHFH
HEXZHNEE  Ri)REREE
TEERmABNEERERNEES
BNELNEREREMGETAOASE
EHAGTRERMNER - BHE
—E—XF+-_A=+—HIEE
2 FE R A AR39,000,000
Lo HEE—ARF+-_A=1+—
HIEFECZEREESHEAARE
20,616,1877C R LR A] - it
RHWBEEXBFERR -

RZZE-—RFAA-TIAE AR
AeEfeHFELIRERAA
(T#rF A )) RIS I &2 R 7%
ERGZE - Bt HFRFRERE
REBE-_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—H
1= A8 BF E R AR B R &R
BENZREARZTAREINEER
& o

REZADEBS  FTFRARHH
TEERARAETERRILRE
W BRABELRL2EHE - BIE
EWARE - FFRARATREEN
B AT EI AR RRHEEA
+ o At - NAFEFF QAR
WEERTEREIERGEE T
EITHR SEK AR RN ERE
RS - ARANEERLERBIESR
WEE N2 BEREXSREE
E-NF+-_A=t—RHIL=@%F
ERFreadEFE LR ZEA
ADHEZROA%BIERNRE% » &
BEMTERBIERBZRETZ2H
BREERSHEABT EMRANEH
R AMERFEEZZBRTE A
ERRETRIIREIEZIRT °

—Z—REFH Annual Report 2016

57



Report of Directors

EEEHRE

Prices of services to be provided to the Company shall be
determined according to the Market Price.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with
the following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged
by independent third parties under ordinary course of
business for the provision of the same type of services
at the providing places or its nearby regions; or (2) the
prevailing price being charged by independent third parties
under ordinary course of business for the provision of the
same type of services in the PRC.

The annual cap under the construction and installation
services framework agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB10,000,000. The
actual consumption of service by the Group from Xinping
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB1,678,589 and is subject to annual review requirement
under the Listing Rules.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions
of the Group, the Company’s internal audit has reviewed
the relevant transactions and internal control procedures,
and provided the findings to the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the related agreements and transactions
contemplated thereunder and confirmed that these
transactions:

(i) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties;

(iif) were entered into in accordance with the terms
of the respective agreements and were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole;

(iv) of which the aggregate annual amount were within
the relevant annual caps (if any);
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(v) have been conducted in accordance with the
pricing policies or mechanisms under the framework
agreement, including the pricing range, the process
for determining the prices; and

(vi) for which the Group’s internal control procedures are
adequate and effective to ensure that transactions
are so conducted.

KPMG Huazhen LLP, the Company’s auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG
Huazhen LLP have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

One-off connected transaction

On 29 January 2016, the Company and Andre Pectin entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
acquire and Andre Pectin has agreed to sell the property located
in Muping District, Yantai, Shandong Province, the PRC, held by
Andre Pectin at a consideration of RMB27,375,070.

Andre Group is a substantial Shareholder and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Andre Pectin, which is owned as to
47.37% by Andre Group, is an associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Andre Group and thus a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, such acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
acquisition are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the acquisition
is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under the Listing Rules.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note IX to
the Financial Statements. Apart from the items disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related party
transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2016.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were (a) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the directors of the Company as
referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Name of Directors
EEpA

Wang An
(Note 1)
TR(KzE 1)

Wang Yanhui
(Note 3)
TEERE (N

Zhang Hui
(Note 5)
RIES% 4 (fi5E5)

Liu Tsung-Yi
fRE

Class of
Shares
vk

Domestic
Shares

Domestic
Shares

RED

Domestic
Shares

H Shares
Hi
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Approximate Approximate
Percentage of Percentage of
Domestic Shares/ Total Share
Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Shares Held ~ Capacity Interest lhmER/ fiRRE
ERAKE &6 HRER HEEAL a8l
101,010,501 () Interest of controlled Personal 40.32% (L(X) 27.45% (L)(K)
101,010,501(%)  corporations (Note 2) fEA
R EEER (3 2)
20,000,000 (L) Interest of controlled Personal 7.98% (L)(&) 5.43% (L(R)
20,000,000(&)  corporations (Note 4) ~ fHA
Rz EER ()
20,000,000 (L) Interest of controlled Personal 7.98% (L)(&) 5.43% (&)
20,000,000(K&)  corporations (Note 6) LA
RS E B R (Fi3E6)
195,400 (L)  Beneficial owner Personal 017% (&) 0.05% ()(K)
195,400(%) EREBA N
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Notes: Msx -

The letter “L” denotes a long position. [RIRTRE °

(1)

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Domestic Shares, representing 12.60% interest
in the total issued share capital of the Company; (b) 90% interest
in Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd* (IUERZEFEEERAT]),
which held 54,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 14.85%
interest in the total issued share capital of the Company.

M

R-B—-—XRE+-A=+—0 E=F
F A& - 2517 (a) China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited < 90%
i 0 2R AR HE 46,351,961 KRAE
f& - (EARAF R BEITERAR12.60%
(o) IR ZEFEEBRAEZ90%H
i - HF5H54,658,540NERMK - 1k
KRB D BEITHERA14.85% ©

2 Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Domestic @) F % % 4 F 3% B = ¥ China Pingan
Shares through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings Investment Holdings Limited 11 3 %
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILEZEF| £ E EREEERARZESMIGEGIERES
ARRAF). BB RS o

3) As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Wang Yanhui, a Director, held 20% ©) R-_EBE—XE+_-_A=+—H8 &=
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) TwmmELtt BERASELEED

(HEREZRERL (FRA#)), which held 20,000,000 DERAE)Z20% % HiEA
Domestic Shares, representing 5.43% of the total issued share 20,000,000/8 N &K « 1A A T2 1T
capital of the Company. YERG AR5 .43% o

(4) Mr. Wang Yanhui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic (4) T EEBEBENAEBLIRED
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre DNBERESE) 7 EF MR IEEA LR
(Limited Partnership) (A& HE 2 EF L (BRER) ) . BHeRE o

(5) As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Zhang Hui, a Director, held 20% ) R-ZE—RNE+-A=+—08  2=%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) B BERAe R ER LR

(E# 2z amn (BRA%)), which held 20,000,000 A8) Y 20%HE « HE520,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.43% of the total issued share BRERR  EARD T T8RN
capital of the Company. 5.43% -

(6) Mr. Zhang Hui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic ®) EIELEARBEBERAL BB AT,

*

Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B L& EFRL (BRER) ).

For identification purpose only
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRRAMALTRELFR
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, 7 BEEXBROERFEEPFHEEZR
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the &&

Company

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors are aware, the BEEM  RZZE—R"F+A=*+—
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief A BRARBIES - BEERITHAIIN
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the AR ZKRGD « BEARRG REEE T H#
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which BAERBCESF LB GOIDEXVEIFE2 %3
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO DR EMARER @ RELARQRIR
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to BC(EH LB EIEPI)EI6IE 2R ETE

section 336 of the SFO: Z &M 2 s MR B 2 IR R Al A
T
Approximate Approximate
Percentage of Percentage of
Domestic Shares/ Total Share
Name of Class of Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Shareholders Shares Shares Held ~ Capacity Interest lhmER/ fsRRE
REEE BRip%ER FisRH8E &6 EREE HEESL aalt
China Pingan Investment Domestic 46,351,961 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 18.50% (L)(K) 12.60% (L)(%)
Holdings Limited Shares Note 1) E&EEA NG
R&R 46,351,961(K)
(W& 1)
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd."  Domestic 54,658,540 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 21.82% (L)(%) 14.85% ()(&)
(LRZEHNERBERAR) Shares Note2) EZ#EBA N
B 54,658,540( %)
(M 2)
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. ~ Domestic 65,779,459 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 26.26% (L)(%) 17.87% ()(K)
Shares Note 3) EmEBA 2]
R&MR 65,779,459(K)
(M 3)
Uni-President Enterprises Corp. ~ Domestic 63,746,040 ()  Interests of controlled  Corporate 25.44% (L)(%) 17.32% ()(&)
S-ERNERAT Shares (Note ) corporations 2]
NER 63,746,040(%)  (Note 5)
(MiF4) ENZEER
(B3 5)
H Shares 237,000 () Beneficial owner Corporate 0.20% ()(K) 0.08% (L)(%)
Hi& 237,000(%)  (Note 6) A
ERBEBA
(M3 6)
* For identification purpose only *EBHEE
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Approximate Approximate
Percentage of Percentage of
Domestic Shares/ Total Share
Name of Class of Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Shareholders Shares Shares Held  Capacity Interest lhmER/ HiEERE
BRREE By &R FERHBE &6 HRER HEEAL Al
Norges Bank H Shares 7,019,500 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate 5.98% ()(&) 191% (&)
HE& 7019500(%) E#HERA N
Mitsui & Co., Ltd. H Shares 21,340,000 (L)  Beneficial owner ~ Corporate 18.17% (J(&) 5.80% (L)(X)
“HmERA e Hi Note7) E&EBA N
21,340,000(K)
(M 7)
Hongan International Investment  Domestic 65,779,459 (L)  Interest of controlled ~ Corporate 26.26% (L)(%) 17.87% ()(%)
Co. Ltd. Shares 65,779,459(%)  corporations 7]
IREIBREERAT WER RESEEER
H Shares 18,702,880 (L)  Beneficial owner ~ Corporate 1592% ((&) 5.08% (L)(%)
HER 18,702,880(%) EmAERA N
Zhang Shaoxia Domestic 101,010,501 (L) Interest of spouse  Personal 40.32% (%) 27.45% (L)(&)
KA Shares 101,010,501(%) ~ (Note 8) fEA
NER [
(W3t 8)
Wang Meng Domestic 65,779,459 (L)  Interest of controlled ~ Personal 26.26% (L)(%) 17.87% (L)(%)
T# Shares 65,779,459(K)  corporations fEA
RER (Note 9)
R EEER
(MizE9)
H Shares 18,702,880 (L) Interest of controlled  Personal 15.92% (L)(K) 5.08% (L(%)
Hi% 18,702,880(&)  corporations fHA
(Note 10)
ZEHERER
(W3t 10)
Yantai Xingan Investment Centre  Domestic 20,000,000 (L) Beneficial Owner Corporate 7.98% (%) 5.43% (U(%)
(Limited Partnership) Shares 20,000000(%) Ex&EBA NS

ReRziETL(BRA®)  MER
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Name of
Shareholders

BREE

Tiandi Win-Win Investment
Management Co., Limited

Shenzhen Tiandi Win-Win
Investment Management
Co., Limited

FIMAERREEEERAF]

Tiandi Yihao Beverage
Co., Limited
R EHAHR D BRAA

Chen Sheng
R

Citigroup Inc.

Class of
Shares
Bin%ER

H Shares
Hi&

H Shares
Hix

H Shares
HiR

H Shares
Hi}

H Shares
Hix

Number of
Shares Held
Fri&iAE

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 11)
11,000,000(&)
(MzE11)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 11)
11,000,000(&)
(BzE11)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 11)
11,000,000(&)
(WzE11)

11,000,000 (L)
(Note 11)
11,000,000(f)
(WzE11)

7,029,450 (L)
(Note 12)
7,029,450(%)
(H3E12)

Capacity
&

Beneficial owner

BERBBA

Interest of controlled
corporations

ERELIVAlL o

Interest of controlled
corporations
FEH R ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
RESEEER

Custodian

REA

Report of Directors
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Type of
Interest

#aEE

Corporate

R

Corporate
A

Corporate
N

Personal

fBA

Corporate

NS

Approximate
Percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
hiEhER/
HEESL

9.36%

9.36%

9.36%

9.36%

5.98%

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisERS
aal

2.99%

2.99%

2.99%

2.99%

1.91%
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd.* (IR ZEF|SBBRAT]) .

The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Shares was directly
held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the information
provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan International
Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were deemed to be
interested in these 65,779,459 Domestic Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
(m—EROHAERATD),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K& & — D ERRERAD
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&K—1%ABBRAF]), which
held 21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. (Hi—1¥MHHERAR)was deemed to be interested in
such 63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic
Shares were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-
President Enterprises Corp. (#i— 1R HBBR AR, of which
42,418,360 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
11.53% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were
held directly by Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
(RHEZ— D ERMARAT)and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 5.80% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, were held directly by Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd{ BM & — 1 ¥ER A )

For identification purpose only
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11.53% @ BREH—EEXRRARA
BIEEEA  AN21,327,680AE
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(11)

(12)

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd..

After the capitalization issue of shares by the Company in 2007,
the number of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd. was adjusted
from 97,000,000 H Shares to 213,400,000 H Shares. Upon the
share consolidation of the Company in January 2013, the number
of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd was further adjusted to
21,340,000 H Shares.

101,010,501 Domestic Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the
husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
18,702,880 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

The long position in 11,000,000 H Shares was held by Shenzhen
Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management Co., Limited (731171 X
HEHREEEAMR AT, awholly-owned subsidiary of Tiandi Yihao
Beverage Co., Limited (RihZ 58 EEHR 5B R A F]), through its
wholly-owned subsidiary Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management
Co., Limited. Mr. Chen Sheng was deemed to be interested
in these H Shares through his 76.66% interest in Tiandi Yihao
Beverage Co., Limited (K= 5% kBN A TR A 7).

The long position in 7,620,750 H Shares was held by Citicorp
Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., through
its wholly-owned subsidiary Citibank N.A.

(1)

(12)
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I H M 9 B Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. Bz A -

RARBRZZELFHTEAR T
B =ZHYEKRASHBFELRARD
HA% 2k B 97,000,000 B H & & &
213,400,000f&Hf& -« — =T —=F—A
RARIRDEHE  —HYEKX S
FARHR 22 B 1% 8% /521,340,000
BRHAR ©

FraE(RBELLTCRB)IFA
101,010,501 R E K + A RBEL
THRIERER LR DS -

T #5 & + @ # ¥ A Donghua Fruit
Industry Co., Ltd..2100% 2 BT -
fiDonghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.¥ 4
65,779,450 NE K - FIL TAFZL 1%
RIEB LR DR -

THLETEERBELLRABREEBRA
AR MEBHITHRA @ AREBRIRERR
AR H18,702,880 H% » F itk £ #5
R IEREA IR DR

11,000,000 % HA% & & £ K 30 = 5% 8k
BRHBERARZE2EN B RBDRIINT
AEFREEBERARBBRES
E BB A B Tiandi Win-Win Investment
Management Co., Limited#H - &4
EAEFBENKMSHRBFENHERA
7276.66% 2 # % MR AR 1EHEA L HAK
MR o

7,620,7500% HR% & & | Citigroup Inc.Z

2 & i} B A Bl Citicorp Holdings Inc.i#&
BE2EM B R E]Citbank NAFE °
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Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling Shareholder or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business which competes or may compete with the businesses
of the Group or has or may have any other conflicts of the interest
with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Practices and Procedures of the Board

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard was sent to
each Director two months before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s 2016 annual results, with a reminder
that the Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of
the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to notify
the chairman of the Board and receive a dated acknowledgement
in writing before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the
Company and, in the case of the chairman of the Board himself,
he must notify the chairman of the Audit Committee and receive
a dated acknowledgement in writing before any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Review Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
primary duties of the Audit and Review Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group, ensuring compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of
the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and Review Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Jiang Hong Qi, who is the chairman of the Audit and Review
Committee, Li Wei and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Audit and Review
Committee held two meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen LLP shall retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained
unchanged.

By Order of the Board

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2017

*
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To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, has
conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle, and
has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence
to protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and
in the interests of its Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors, audited
financial statements and the dividend to be proposed by the Board
for presentation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We
are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and to
work in accordance with the Articles of Association. The operation
is becoming more regulated and the internal control is constantly
improved. The transactions between the Company and connected
parties are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
under fair and reasonable price.

*

For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and
senior management staff had been found to have abused their
authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed
upon the interests of its Shareholders and employees. None of
them was found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2016 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Dai Li Ying

15 March 2017

*  For identification purpose only
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Auditor’s Report
BirHE

KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 1700732

All Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet as
at 31 December 2016, the consolidated income statement and
income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated financial performance and financial performance
and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to the significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates on Note IlI.9, Note V.4 to the consolidated financial
statments and Note XIV.2 to the parent company’s financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2016, the gross trade receivables of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the Company amounted to
RMB161,369,424 and RMB137,334,911, respectively, against
which provisions for doubtful debts of RMB2,553,740 and
RMB2,553,740 were recorded respectively.

The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables are mainly due
from certain trading customers. The recoverability of these trade
receivables is affected by the liquidity of these trading customers
which often depends on the settlement patterns of their own
customers.

Management assesses impairment of trade receivables on an
individual basis and on a collective basis. Where the impairment of
trade receivables is assessed on an individual basis, management
considers the debtor’s financial position, creditworthiness, past
due status and other customer-specific conditions. Where the
impairment of trade receivables is assessed on a collective basis,
management determines the amount of impairment based on
the historical loss experience of trade receivables with different
past due status adjusted by observable factors to reflect current
economic conditions. The factors noted above all involve a
significant degree of management judgement.

Auditor’s Report
Bir®E

MEFEFER

FRRET EHSRMARBEBEHE - RR
HARHBERRBARSERNFIER &5
LE TR RS A S B TS R BB T AT
WEKEABRRERER  BHATHELS
BEBERER °

TR 1y R 0 9 T o [ 14

F2HMBRRME = 2REES
FTEGR - GEtEE ] O ET R
(R - A RRIBA TR 4% +M -
SRRMBHREAEEBBFERE2

MEFEHER

R2016F12A31H » EARINMETEB T
RRIATHEHRB EER ) REAQAREK
ERBRED R A ARK161,8369,424 7T
M AR #137,334,911 78 @ Bt D B &
IRIZEREE A RE2 553,740t k A B
2,553,7407T °

EEERERANRBUEEREEREYSE
THRBEF IR © 5L KRR AT
B EETHEEES B HNRBIEMT
& mPERErPARBEREEIURAR
HESEPHEMBR -

BEEEEEEERMERMAE T AR
WERFURER KR o E&MERI A EE
WERFORERXE - EEESEREEBA
MPBER - ERABR BHBERUAEK
HEPRERBR - EEMMAE AL
YR FORERXE - EEERETRE
HIFREYRIRRE A EIBRLEH: - WR
BRREAMEEBRNABREBETH
BT - DERREPRERNEREH
B o

—ZE—REFFH Annual Report 2016

73



Auditor’s Report
BirHE

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables and because the current market
environment is unpredictable and, therefore, the assessment of
impairment of trade receivables requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key financial reporting internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection and the assessment
of impairment of trade receivables;

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables ageing
report were classified within the appropriate ageing bracket
by comparing a sample of individual items with underlying
sales invoices;

° obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
judgements about the recoverability of all overdue
balances and evaluating, on a sample basis, whether
management had performed credit assessments of the
related debtors by examining underlying documentation,
which included evidence of the debtors’ financial condition,
correspondence with the debtors, the debtors’ adherence
to agreed repayment schedules, the ageing of overdue
balances, historical repayment records and repayments
after the reporting date;
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recalculating the impairment of trade receivables calculated
based on a collective assessment with reference to the
Group’s policy for collective assessment;

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
assessment of impairment for trade receivables by
examining the actual write-offs, the reversal of previously
recorded impairments and new provisions recorded in the
current year in respect of trade receivable balances at the
end of the previous financial year; and

challenging management’s judgement in determining the
recoverable amount of individual trade receivable balances
which were overdue at the reporting date by comparing,
on a sample basis, the settlement of the overdue balances
after the reporting date with related underlying documents
including bank statements.
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Other Information

The Company’s management is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in 2016 annual report of the Company, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of such internal control
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Huazhen LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Lei Jiang

Zhao Ying

Beijing, China

15 March 2017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2016412 A431H

(£FEE - ARKET)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments

Other receivables
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Total assets

nE

MBEE
EBES
RanBEAER
HE S5 NEH
BamEemEE
eI

& W AR 3K
BRI
HoAth & UK

78
HitRENEE

mBEEAR

FEMBEE :
AEHESREE
REEEHE
Bl & E
IR
BVEE
[k

FRBEEAF

BEA

Note

V.1

V.2
V.3
V.4
V.5
V.6
V.7
V.8

V.9
V.10
V.11
V.12
V.13
V.14

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.
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2016
—E—RF

110,178,784

7,833,191
2,707,800
158,815,684
3,564,813
750,309
792,215,972
84,553,872

2015
—ET—hHF

106,373,059

102,712,187
3,993,014
30,234,414
862,607,161
151,876,289

1,160,620,425

1,257,796,124

21,314,443 =
33,371,474 —
809,197,467 837,909,270
113,342 5,880,330
100,645,862 107,674,464
5,586,976 8,653,575
970,229,564 960,117,639

2,130,849,989

2,217,913,763
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2016412 A31H

(2R - ARKET)

2016 2015
Note MisE —ZE—REF —ET—HF
LIABILITIES AND AEMEEES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: mEAE
Short-term loans 5 HAfE X V.17 & -17 340,000,000 485,170,000
Accounts payable FESBRFR V.18 H - 18 65,327,226 68,991,418
Advances from customers U FRIA 1,220,270 2,468,411
Employee benefits payable JE A< B 37 T V19 = 19 21,574,064 18,370,361
Taxes payable ERFE V.20 F 20 31,596,332 20,589,650
Interest payable FERFE 716,104 2,820,527
Other payables E M ERR V.22 H 22 43,921,261 56,481,147
Total current liabilities mEBAEEE 504,355,257 654,891,514
Non-current liabilities: EREBEE
Long-term payables RHEIEI R 803,552 766,519
Total non-current liabilities FnEREEt 803,552 766,519
Total liabilities BEAG 505,158,809 655,658,033
Shareholders’ equity: MR
Share capital P& A V.23 F 23 368,000,000 381,000,000
Capital reserve BARNIE V.24 F 24 47,035,755 75,100,275
Other comprehensive income E iR e V.25 & 25 2,041,764 178,356
Surplus reserve BB NTE V.26 H .26 105,794,859 105,794,859
Retained earnings R B E V.27  H .27 1,102,818,802 1,000,182,240
Total shareholders’ equity IR RS ET 1,625,691,180 1,562,255,730
Total liabilities and shareholders’ BEMBRERAR
equity 2,130,849,989 2,217,913,763

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.
L BHREREN2017FIA15BBESEIE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EEREKRA Tz FTESHIEEEA: T e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SEHBABA ¢ == (RRIEE)

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial HIF N EI3E £ H236 B MBI IS MK TR
statements. KRR AV AL S

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company BRENARARREREZFBEFEN
are set out in Note V.21. eER ~ 21 ©
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2016412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Dividends receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Long-term equity investments
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

RE
MBEE
EBES
AES
FE U AR K
EANE
IR W s )
HoAth FE UK
&

HiyREEE

MBEESR

1113

FEMBEE :

AL ESREE
RERERE
REMFHE

BEEE
BREE

FEREBEERFT

BEAG

Note

XIV.1

XIV.2
XIV.3

XIV.4
XIV.5
XIV.6

XIV.7
XIV.8
XIV.9

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.
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84,468,206 44,849,439
2,707,800 =
134,781,171 90,470,947
503,997 511,597
60,572,440 56,822,440
333,921,214 605,673,875
130,249,238 96,958,682
73,526,044 135,801,569
820,730,110 1,031,088,549
21,314,443 =
570,402,700 573,355,647
21,020,572 =
134,648,842 127,597,934
29,483,208 27,904,004
776,869,765 728,857,585

1,597,599,875

1,759,946,134
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201612 A31H

(2FE - AR¥T)

2016 2015
Note izt —E—REF —T—hHF
LIABILITIES AND EEMERER
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: mEAE
Short-term loans 5 HAE X XIV.13 P + 13 340,000,000 436,468,000
Accounts payable FERR R XIV.14 +00 « 14 224,580,978 202,050,064
Advances from customers B FRIA 923,749 1,510,389
Employee benefits payable JE 1S B8 T 37 o XIV.15 +/ ~ 15 2,927,239 2,137,422
Taxes payable ER T & 273,788 195,229
Interest payable FERTFE 716,104 2,293,755
Other payables HAth FEAT R XIV.16 +P - 16 132,013,177 160,610,153
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 701,435,035 805,265,012
Total liabilities afas 701,435,035 805,265,012
Shareholders’ equity: AR
Share capital & A V.23 H 23 368,000,000 381,000,000
Capital reserve BARRNE XIV.A7 4 ~ 17 73,278,453 101,342,973
Other comprehensive income HiRe s 2,041,764 178,356
Surplus reserve BB XIV.18 +/0 - 18 105,794,859 105,794,859
Retained earnings KRB E 347,049,764 366,364,934
Total shareholders’ equity RS 896,164,840 954,681,122

B EMBIRE S AR

Total liabilities and shareholders’

equity 1,597,599,875 1,759,946,134

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors of the Company on 15 March 2017.
UL HRRER2017F3 15 A EE SR o

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
FEERRERA Tz FESHIHEBEA I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEHEAREA == (RRIEE)

TN EIBE EF 236 A WM B MK M TR
REA T R AR AR D ©

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

XD ES

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2016 &

(2#HE - AR¥T)

Operating income
Less: Operating costs

Add:

Taxes and surcharges
Selling and distribution

expenses

General and administrative

expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses

Loss from changes in fair

value
Investment income
Including: Income from

investment in a

joint venture

Operating profit

Add:

Non-operating income

Including: Gains from
disposal of
non-current
assets

Less: Non-operating expenses

Including: Losses from
disposal of
non-current
assets

IV Profit before taxation
Less: Income tax expenses

V' Net profit for the year and net
profit attributable to

shareholders of the Company

VI Other comprehensive income,
net of tax

hil

SN
B
B B M0
HEBm

mR

R E

HHEER
BERERE
m: RAEEZSER

REW S
Hep: o gbx
KRB

N

Bl

EEAE

1+ BESA
Hob - SRBARE
BEFIE

R EVS T
£ FRDAE
BEBX

- FBsE
B EEE R

FFNEREENT AR
PR B M

- Hitkr e aEm Rk
Ve

Note

V.28
V.28
V.29
V.30
V.31
V.32
V.33

V.34
V.35

V.43
V.36

V.37

V.38

V.25

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
Note XII.1.
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2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—hF
875,197,112 817,970,479
631,193,325 628,619,160
10,938,187 5,193,242
72,982,456 49,984,824
53,907,760 49,560,984
94,297 23,391,992
6,428,704 1,060,246
(79,304) -
4,527,591 7,159,927

- 4,648,319
104,100,670 67,319,958
21,126,782 7,039,826
138 65,276
2,140,370 563,549
2,109,988 464,739
123,087,082 73,796,235
1,400,520 613,966
121,686,562 73,182,269
1,863,408 178,356

HEH N EIBEE F236 H M Bam&x Mzt
RAVBHREOEXED - REBRER
AR EFERE - BN T AR B RRAK
MFFE - EFHDET =1 °



VIl Total comprehensive income

for the year and total

comprehensive income
attributable to shareholders

of the Company

VIII Earnings per share:

(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

N &

Consolidated Income Statement

CRiRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note
3% s V.42
SR S V.42

P &

20164 E

(2&EEN - ARMT)

2016 2015
—E—-RE —hF
123,549,970 73,360,625
0.325 0.190

0.325 0.190

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.

MW FEHRARE R2017FE3A15HEEESHE -

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Chief Accountant:

SERBREA

Wang An
T

Li Lei

e

Chief Financial Officer:

TEGHIEEEA

(Company stamp)
(RAIEE)

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note XII.1.

Wang Yan Hui
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Income Statement

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20164 &
(2FEE - ARKT)

| Operating income
Il Less: Operating costs
Taxes and surcharges
Selling and distribution
expenses
General and administrative
expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Add: Investment income
Including: Income from
investment in a
joint venture

Il Operating (loss)/profit
Add: Non-operating income
Including: Gains from
disposal of non-
current assets
Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Losses from
disposal of non-
current assets

IV (Loss)/profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses

V' Net (loss)/profit for the year
VI Other comprehensive income,
net of tax

VIl Total comprehensive income
for the year

=

~
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S ETON
R EERA

B Ko
HERM

EEEH

HEER
BERERRX
i B
Hep - fagd
ES: 0k
Bl

CBE(BR),/ N
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Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.
I RREN2017F3A15BEEFTSHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EEREKA T
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BEEBEEA - ==

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

Xil.1.

Chief Financial Officer:
ITERHTHAEA -

2016 2015
Note B sE —E-RE —E—hEF
XIV.19 +[ - 19 668,906,066 605,759,963
XIV.19 +P 19 622,259,341 530,977,926
2,562,075 1,301,909
45,858,503 32,321,875
15,679,018 16,736,146
XIV.20 +09 - 20 1,076,176 20,865,328
6,374,976 480,787
Xiv.21 +[ - 21 7,006,958 12,240,702
- 9,729,094
(17,897,065) 15,316,694
18,448,405 353,016
816,510 88,194
816,510 88,194
(265,170) 15,581,516
XIV.22 +m - 22 - -
(265,170) 15,581,516
1,863,408 178,356
1,598,238 15,759,872
Wang Yan Hui

T

(Company stamp)
(RAEE)
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| Cash flows from operating activities: —

Proceeds from sale of goods and
rendering of services

Refund of taxes

Proceeds from other operating
activities

Sub-total of cash inflows
Payments for goods and services

Payments to and for employees

Payments of various taxes
Payments for other operating
activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities: = -

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets

Investment returns received

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets

Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of a joint venture

Proceeds from other investing
activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of financial
assets

Payments for acquisition of
fixed assets, investment properties
and intangible assets

Net payment for acquisition of a
subsidiay

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
activities

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2016 &

(2FE - AR¥T)

2016 2015
Note  MizE ZE-RE —T-EfF
BEEHELNRIAE -
HEMm - REABLEM
B4 925,769,833 967,813,122
WEIMTHERE 87,480,916 66,298,522
WEIH fh BRA R B A A Y
B V.44(1) T - 44(1) 9,748,288 12,216,647
REERRERANH 1022999087 1,046,828.291
BERD BEXBBEIAH
B4 (666,442,043) (760,656,263)
TRERBTUAR AT S
MR e (51,197,774) (43,947,484)
XAHBETE (40,318,065) (40,344,723)
SEM B EEF RN
e V.442) T 44(2) (70,137,946) (65,270,284)
RERDRETL 3 | B0s5E28) (010218754
REEHELNRAL TS
8 VAS() Eo45() 104903200 136,109,537
RERDELNRENE
WEeaEERINRE
1,784,927,302 3,344,900,000
BERE K=MK AR S 4,527,591 2,511,608
REETEEMKRIMNRE
FE 1,481,140 603,516
REAEMEREREIM
B V.45(2) T - 45(2) 28,654,071 29,205,200
WeBl H At E245 &R E) B Y
B V.44(3) T - 44(3) 1,270,409 237,183
BEABRERAN (1B2080518 5877457507
BESRAEYNNRSE
(1,752,239,797)  (3,420,900,000)
ERETEE  EFAE
MRE MR ERT S AT
M & (44,629,367 (13,169,725)
REFARSANRLFE
V.45(3) T - 45(3) - (102,875,378)
RARDB LRI _(1796869,164) _ (3,536,045,109
REEDEENHALTE
FE 23,991,349 (159,487,596)

REA R R AR AR D ©

TIE MBI EFE 236 A M BEHRKR TR
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20164 &
(2#HE - AR¥T)

Il Cash flows from financing activities: =

Proceeds from borrowings
Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of borrowings

Payments for dividends

Payments for interest

Repayments of borrowings from related
parties

Payments for purchase of own shares

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing
activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange 74 -

rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

V' Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 1 »

cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the 7N

end of the year

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.

Note BizE
EXETHELNELRE
BEETREIHEE
LEFHRLRNG

EETT
DRRFI
Wﬁﬂéi#%ﬁ@
EREBEM A ERTANRE

EBEAARN RS

TR S
3R

BE
oy
g

_\_\_\_\

SEEPRS RN

ELRPELNALNE
e

EXBHHARSRALE
Enmye

RekAeSEME
g/ (RL8)

e EMRERAEED
3

FRAE MRS SENHE

V.45(4) T - 45(4)

HEEHRER D N2017E3 15 B EES e E -

Legal Representative: ~ Wang An
EERRKRA Tz
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BIMRBEEA FZ

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer:
TESHIEATA:

(Company stamp)
(REIEE)

2016 2015
“B-R¥ —F-0F
647,290,715 1,033,513,852
647,290,715 1,033,513,852
(790,299,940) (995,618,141)
(19,050,000) (19,630,000)
(16,550,672) (44,487,949
- (7,770,201)
(41,064,520) (31,122,248

V.45(1) F - 45(1)

REA S R AR R D ©

REEFZEFNRTROBRIF

| iR E (088 55t
(219,674,417) (65,114,687)
4,585,584 3,331,329
3,805,725 (85,161,417)
106,373,059 191,634,476
110,178,784 106,373,059
Wang Yan Hui
o=
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Cash Flow Statement

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20164F %

(2R - ARKET)

2016 2015
Note (=3 —E-RE “Z-hF
| Cash flows from operating activites: ~ — » EEEHELNHLHTE -
Proceeds from sale of goods HERmKANRE 645,298,603 654,960,719
Refund of taxes WEMHERE 75,009,015 51,486,772
Proceeds from other operating activities YRR iSRS &R E B N
Be 6,880,912 9,214,756
Sub-total of cash inflows BERPREMANG 121188530 715,662,247
Payments for goods and services BERm  BEXEBXAN
e (668,722,297) (485,114,517
Payments to and for employees THABIARAB IS
nEE (16,641,175) (15,087,548)
Payments of various taxes TRAEERE (3,878,616) (5,692,156)
Payments for other operating activities TR LS ER BB
e (60,979,636) (47,126,495)
Sub-total of cash outflows gEERRERENS (750,221,724) (653,020,716)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating CEEYELNREREFE
activities XV.23(1) I 23) (23,033,194) 162,641,531
Il Cash flows from investing activities: = REZDELNRSRE
Proceeds from disposal of financial WESREERINES
assets 1,731,800,000 3,344,900,000
Investment retums received BERE RS IEINE S 3,256,958 2,511,608
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed REETEEMURNRS
assets HE 83,333 454,008
Proceeds from disposal of equity RERECEREWIINES
interests of a joint venture = 29,205,200
Proceeds from other investing activities WBIE B B R B B A )
Be 274,598,751 206,138
Sub-total of cash inflows RERYRRMANGT _2,009,739,042  3377,276,954
Payments for acquisition of financial BECREELARNES
assets (1,691,200,000) (3,420,900,000)
Payments for acquisition of fixed BRETEE  BFEEN
assets, investment properties and REEEHEMTR
intangible assets e (40,559,328) (5,065,794)
Payments for acquisition of investments TITEMER B EBERE
R - (211,493,413
Sub-total of cash outflows REFHRSML NG _(1,731,759,328)  (3,637,459,207)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing BREEHELNRLTREFE
activities 277,979,714 (260,182,253)

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial SN FEI3E EF 236 H I SRR MITES
statements. R REA AR LD o
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Cash Flow Statement

BERERXR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20165 &
(2FEE - ARKT)

Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of borrowings
Payments for dividends
Payments for interest

Payments for purchase of own shares

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing
activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

V' Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end 7~

of the year

2016 2015
Note BiizE —E-RE —T-hE
C EEEPELNRLRE
BAeERKIHES 647,290,715 981,708,272
BREDRERANH TS 91708272
BEEFRZINERS (790,299,940) (942,514,561)
PERBFL RS (19,050,000) (19,630,000)
ERFEXARRE (15,895,691) (26,626,152)
EEAFARNZTHHRS (41,064,520) (31,122,248)
gEERRERENS (666,310,151)  (1,019,892,961)
EEEYEENRENERE
_____ (219,019,436) (38,184,689
EXGHURE LR ESEY
mgm
o des 76,475
- B kA EEY
FEmE/ (RLE) XIV.23(2) T -~ 23(2) 39,618,767 (135,648,936)
n: RS RALEED
B 44,849,439 180,498,375
EXRBE A EEMHE
XIV.23(3) T ~ 23(3) 84,468,206 44,849,439

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.
ISR ER2017F3 15 HEESSHLE o

Legal Representative: ~ Wang An

EERTA E=®
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SEHBEEA ¢ *%

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

90 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
FESFIEBEA o=

(Company stamp)
(RAIEE)

REA R R AR R D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
EOHRREZBE K

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20164 [Z

(2R - ARKET)

Other
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
i kga B FOR
Note i k% OF k& 0# A &it
Balance at 1 January 2015 NSEIAIARE 392,600,000 94,622,523 - 104236707 948188128 1,689,647,353
Changes in equty for the year REERRELE
1. Total comprehensive income 1 fialngE - - 1783% - 13182269 73360625
2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1%
- Appropriaton for surplus reserve ~ERRBLE V6 I - - - 155815 (1,38,159) -
- Distrbutions to shareholders -HRENAR - - - - (19630000 (19,630,000)
3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V23 B2 (11600000 (19522248 - - - [B12249)
Balance at 31 December 2015 N15E12A31 ARE 381,000,000 75,100,275 178366 109,794,869  1,000,182.240  1,562,266,730
Balance at 1 January 2016 N16E1A1R5E 381,000,000 15,100,275 17835 105,794,859  1,000,162,240  1,562,255,730
Changes in equiy for the year KEEREHLE
1. Total comprehensive income 1 GalngE - - 1,863,408 - 121686562 123549970
2. Approprition of profts 2. 1Ak
- Appropriation for surplus reserve ~RRERLE Ve 1% - - - - - -
- Distrbutons to shareholders LI - - - - (19,050,000) (1,050,000)
3. Purchase of own shares 3 HEmE V3 0 (13,000,000)  (28,064,520) - - - (41,00452)
Balance at 31 December 2016 NI6E12A31 ARE 368,000,000 47,035,755 2,041,764 105,794,859  1,102,818,802  1,625,691,180

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.
I SRR ER2017F3 15 B EESS A -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EEREKRA Tz FESHIEREA T e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEAHEBEEEA *Z (RRIEE)

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial SN FEI3E EF 236 H I SRR MITES
statements. R REA AR LD o
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
RREZBSF K

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20165 E

(£FEE - ARKET)

Other
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
i kga B 31 )

Note i k% OF k& AR i@ &it

Balance at 1 January 2015 NSEIAIARE 392,600,000 120,865,221 - 104236,707 371971570 989,673,498
Changes in equity for the year NEREEGGE

1, Total comprehensive income 1 fialngE - - 178,356 - 15gBIS6 15759872

2. Appropriaton of profts 2 1Ak

- Appropriafon for surplus reserve ~ERRBLE Ve 1% - - - 1558152 (1,38,152) -

- Distrbutions to sharefolders -HRENAR - - - - (19630000 (19,630,000)

3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V3 B2 (116000000 (19522248 - - - 1249

Balance at 31 December 2015 N15E12A31 ARE 361,000,000 101,342,973 178356 105,794869 306,364,934 954,681,122

Balance at 1 January 2016 N16E1A1R5E 381,000,000 101,342,973 17835 105794859 366,364,034 954,681,122
Changes in equity for the year KEEREHLE

1, Total comprehensive income 1. FehaEs - - 1,863,408 - (265,170) 1,598,298

2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1Ak

- Appropriaton for surplus reserve N Ve 1% - - - - - -

- Distributions to shareholders ~HRRNAR = - - - (19,050,000 (19,050,000

3. Purchase of own shares 3 HEmE V3 nn (13,000,000)  (28,064,520) - - - (41,00452)

Balance at 31 December 2016 NI6E12A31 ARE 368,000,000 13,218,453 2,041,764 105,794,859 347,049,764 896,164,840

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2017.
L RRER2017F3A15BEESSHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EERRKRA e FESHIEREA B
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SRMEBREA = (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 93 to 236 form part of these financial SN FEI3E EF 236 H I SRR MITES
statements. R REA AR LD o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited which
was established in Yantai on 30 March 1996. Headquarter
of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong Province.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are in the manufacture and sale of condensed
juice, pulp, apple essence, pomace and related products.
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer
to Note VI.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

Accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of
provisions for receivables, recognition of cost of inventories,
depreciation of investment properties, depreciation of fixed
assets, amortisation of intangible assets, and revenue
recognition and measurement of the Group are adopted
according to the specific characteristics of the Company’s
operations. Please refer to the relevant notes on accounting
policies.

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) of the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and present
truly and completely the consolidated financial position
and financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated financial performance and
financial performance and the consolidated cash flows
and cash flows of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

2 Accounting period
The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.

3 Functional currency
The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and these
financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Some of
the Company’s subsidiaries have functional currencies
that are different from the Company’s functional currency.
Their financial statements have been translated based on
the accounting policy set out in Note IIl.7.

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control
(1) Business combinations involving entities under

common control

A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is
adjusted against share premium in the capital reserve,
with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.
Any costs directly attributable to the combination
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The
combination date is the date on which one combining
entity obtains control of other combining entities.

94 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HZEFNRTRHOERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under
common control
A business combination involving entities not under
common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination. Where (1) the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2)
the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note III.17).
If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. The costs
of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of the
consideration for the acquisition are included in the
carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements
(1) General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
exists when the investor has all of following: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

@)

(3

Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities under common control, the financial statements
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements based on the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
as if the combination had occurred at the date that
the ultimate controlling party first obtained control. The
opening balances and the comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements are also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, any
resulting disposal gains or losses are recognised
as investment income for the current period. The
remaining equity interests is re-measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. Any resulting
gains or losses are also recognised as investment
income for the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

ANEERHEE  WEHEH
()

RekReSEVNRERE

Il Significant accounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

6 Cash and cash equivalents 6

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of
foreign currency financial statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies
from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the construction of qualifying
assets (see Note lll.15). Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss, except for the differences arising from the
re-translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

7 SEEBMINEHRRITE(H)

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements (cont’d)
Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’
equity with respect to a foreign operation are transferred
to profit or loss in the period when the foreign operation
is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on
hand, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, payables,
loans and borrowings and share capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are charged to
profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and
liabilities are measured as follows:

— Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Including financial assets held for trading)

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are recognised
in profit or loss.

— Receivables
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost subsequent to initial recognition.
Other available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss when the investee
approves the dividends. Interest is recognised in
profit or loss using the effective interest method
(see Note Ill.21 (3)).

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial
liability are offset and the net amount is presented
in the balance sheet when both of the following
conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

(3) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of

it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

8 &mMIAH)
(4) TEEERBE

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

(e) significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
For the calculation method of impairment of receivables,
refer to Note Ill.9. The impairment of other financial
assets is measured as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis and on a
collective group basis. When an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from a decline in fair value that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
is reclassified to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit
or loss. The impairment loss on an investment in
an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured is not reversed.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

8 S@MIA(E)
(65) #ExTA

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(5) Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditure
relating to the repurchase is recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction recording in
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are presented as a deduction
under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings
sequentially. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is credited
to the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserver(share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings sequentially.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET

estimates (cont’d) (#8)

9 Impairment of receivables 9 EWFIENRIRERS
Receivables are assessed for impairment on an individual FE U SR IE % T a iR BI)3E A @ B 75
basis and on a collective group basis as follows. NAAEE T N FHERERK °
Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an ERER AR EE - B R
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated HRTEET AR RIB S RE(TRIE M
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present REENRRERER)RRER
value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future FEFRHOBEENEERER
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at B AEEEZERFKIBENRT
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are BERLEZEZSRE B
recognised in profit or loss. BRBEERERK 5T AE H

B e

The assessment is made collectively where receivables EERMAE T A EWFIAER
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those WEBKRE @ HEBXSELER
not having been individually assessed as impaired), based EEEEUERRRBEBAER
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the FIE(BIEAER S N h R E
observable factors reflecting current economic conditions. B B E U IE ) /) LA 1B R A

B - WARERIRE BRI
A ERSIBEITHARETER -

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on FEREWFIERRBEELE - W0
receivables, there is a recovery in the value of the ERBEERPZeREEERA
financial asset which can be related objectively to an BikiE - BERE FEERZEX
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the BEANFTEER  AEEHR
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through ERARERL T UER - 2 A
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss will not EHER 2B OEMEKREER
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding what the THRBRERE T IRBEEERBER
amortised cost would have been had no impairment loss TZemEETER B A ERK
been recognised in prior years. 7N o
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
10 Inventories 10 78

(1) FE/I 72 A

(1) Classification and cost

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress,
semi-finished goods and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditure incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
In addition to the purchase cost of raw materials, work
in progress and finished goods include direct labor
costs and an appropriate allocation of production
overheads.

(2) Measurement method of cost of inventories

Cost of inventories recognised is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are charged to profit or loss upon
receipt. The amortisation charge is included in the cost
of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

10 Inventories (cont’d)
(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and
method for provision for obsolete inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extent of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

(4) Inventory count system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.

108 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

AFNEEWHRE  WEHEH

10 #E(&)
(3) 17K A B30 )F (8 A)HEE 1K I8 K

FRKEE G IR )%
REERERA @ FEREX
RERBRFEANEAE -

A#RRE - RIEERTEED
T EENRBREEREER
TREFTREEERRAN - 4
FAAHHEERUARBET B
e - REEMRFAHRM
- BRI SR ERBEAE
B EE K am K R B B SHE R AR
HEE - RRITHERRLES
HKaRmBHEANESR - HA
I FEANARERSERS
8 ERAFENEESZRH
HMERGIBREN  BhHs
TR AT 23 E A — R H
EEBRERE -

REEAFEREFENKES
RERERFENER @ 5HE
FTEREERF  FAEHE

S

B

() PR BIEHIE

AEEEEREHEANER
4 -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
11 Long-term equity investments 11 RERERE

(1) RERIEREREKAHETE
(@) BBEEAHEKRNEE

(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a

business combination gtz &
— The initial cost of a long-term equity investment — HRE—EHTHRE
acquired through a business combination BRI S F A EH

involving entities under common control is
the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the combination date. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the
carrying amount of the consideration given is
adjusted to the share premium in the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the initial cost
comprises the aggregate of the fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than
through a business combination
— A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if
an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment
In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that have
been included in the price or consideration paid in
obtaining the investments, the Company recognises
its share of the cash dividends or profit distributions
declared by the investee as investment income for
the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries,

refer to Note Il.18.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note IlI.5.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

12 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.
Investment properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses. The cost of investment property, less its estimated
residual value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated or amortised using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life. For the impairment of the
investment properties, refer to Note 11.18.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates/amortisation rates of each class of
investment properties are as follows:

Class LRl
Plant and buildings P EREEY
Land use rights T {s A

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

= AREERHEE  WHEH

()

12 REMEME
AEERFENRRRESRE
AIgE - IWMERENEHES
DPREEEEHME - NEBIRA
RAEAFFEREEEE - A
PARCACR RETITE ~ #5H MORE
ERREEERBRAITR - &
K E IR E M F H E B AN R
BAHFEREMRRERGRE
£ RFw NRER F AT
ESGETHE - REAMRANDER
MEEFTIRITEZ2AME=
18

BREUFEHENERSS  BE
EMEFER FHERE

Depreciation

Estimated Residual rate/
useful life value Amortisation
(years) rate (%) rate(%)
ERASMH BREE FNE
(%) (%) FHBE%)
38~40 years 10% 2.25%~2.37%
38~40%F
38~44 years - 2.27%~2.63%
38~44%
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by
the Group for use in production of goods or for
administrative purposes with useful lives over one
accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed assets is measured in accordance
with the policy set out in Note Ill.14

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Depreciation of fixed assets
The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual value
and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life, unless the fixed asset is classified as held-for-sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:

Class =Rl

Plant and buildings B E R EEY)
Machinery and equipment 28

Office and other equipment A% E R E b4 &

Motor vehicles BWHTA

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.

(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, refer to Note
l.18.

(4) For the recognition, measurement and depreciation
of fixed assets acquired under finance leases, refer
to Note .25 (3).

= AREERHEE  WHEH

()

13 BEEE(H)

@)

Estimated
useful life
(years)
EHSM
(%)

35-40 years
35-404F

20 years
204

5 years

5%

5 years

5%

3)

4

E[E B ERITE LA

AR ER K [E] E B EE HY AR AN FORR
BEIREMREFREEFRE
H Ao NIRFERFEER
RITE - BRIEFBEEEENGH
BEENGKN -

SHEATAENERED B
BERREFEEDFE

Residual Depreciation

value rate rate
(%) (%)
SR{EE FHEE

(%) (%)

10% 2.25%-2.57%

10% 4.5%

10% 18%

10% 18%

AEEELEBFFERTY
Bl BEMERSG - B F
BEMFEDRETER -

BRI 5 0 BB B EE TR
FEZ2AME= 18

B & AR E & E®RE K
& FHEREMTE R ELR
BsE= - 25(3) °
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is holding for disposal; or
— when no future economic benefit is expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

14 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note lll.15), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is classified as construction in
progress and transferred to fixed asset when it is ready
for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note Ill.18).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as financial expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period
is determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
15 Borrowing costs (cont’d) 15 fERE A ()

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that RNE B EE R BRI R
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the R ERETRRFERRESER
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a MEEHBANNRRRSRE
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the IR BZ BRI EREREER
borrowings. SEEFTEARAE -
During the capitalisation period, exchange differences FEERNCEEA - INEBEPIfE K
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose e RHEFMEMENZ%8 - T
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised BAR  FEAFEERNIEH®
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange BEMAA o MBRINEEPIE K
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign 2 HNE E At HNEE 1B R AR < K E A
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose BEFEEMNERZBERMBE
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when A stAEHER -
incurred.
The capitalisation period is the period from the date of BERLBHEEEASBERERE
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the FA B 8 B b B B B = 1 & ANk
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period REERE  EREREEER
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation {EHEHETBEERN c EEARE
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for HAMERBRAEKBRERAEER
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being EEINBEACAMRERUED
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that BEEHELHGRE  EREH
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use HIBERL - EEEREER
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become &R & 3 B 78 5 {52 R AR RE
ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing B BRERELEERE - R
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction HEERLEHNEELREBR
activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of more FRREASEEEFRE - BRER
than three months. MEEBRBEIEAN @ AEEEE

ERERNENE -

16 Intangible assets 16 B EE
Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost T2 & B DARK AR 2 5T 8 85 (2R
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated RERSTERNEREE) KR
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 111.18). BEEHBZ2RWT= - 18)REE
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less EBEXRAIT - R EASS
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment ERMNEREE  AEBEBER
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over BEEMNKANBREG FEAEMR
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is FPREEEEREERELTERE
classified as held for sale. RASmBNEE  RIEZEFRE

ENARAFENGERS -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

16

17

Intangible assets (cont’d)
The amortisation period for such intangible assets is as
follows:

Item Amortisation period (years)

Land use right 35-50 years
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Group. At the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have any intangible assets
with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure incurred during the
research phase and expenditure incurred during the
development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase is expensed when
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 111.18). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Goodwill

The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of
acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business
combination not involving entities under common control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
Note l11.18). On disposal of an asset group or a set of
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

17

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)
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B EENEETRA
I5H {HSHSEPR (5F)
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B A 7T R /BRI B R T2 K 7 3
TE - W ERBERERILEESA
SitE  AIREEBRAOHES
FTUREARE - ERCRAE HIZ
AR EEREZ2ERZE=
18)EEERBERAIIR - HbH
HERAEEELNHIBARER

[k

HIER — 6 T XA HEKR
BE - HUBKARA FRAKX
K& BF R BXS B 158 B 05 AT H a8
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

18 REERERMEENNEMEE

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date based on internal and external
sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment:

fixed assets
— investment properties measured using a cost model

— construction in progress

— intangible assets

— long-term equity investments
— goodwill

If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group
or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination for the purpose
of impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note
[11.19) less costs to sell and its present value of expected
future cash flows.

An asset group is composed of assets directly related
to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET

estimates (cont’d)

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

()

18 REERERMEENNEMEE

financial assets (cont’d)

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to
an asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis.
However, such allocation would not reduce the carrying
amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable), its present value of expected
future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
19 Fair value measurement 19 AAEENGTE
Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value BRASRIZRRIN - AEEIZ TR
as follows: BIFFEAREAE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an AR EBEEREMSR2HEEEFTE
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction AEENEFRSZYF HE—1B
between market participants at the measurement date. BEFGERIISEEZ —BAG
2 T RIER ©
When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account AEEGFARBER  ZET
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability L2MEELETEHHEBEES
(including the condition and location of the asset and BREETTEEREENEH(BRE
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that BEEMRANMFIEMNE - HEEH
market participants would consider when pricing the asset EXEFRORSIE) - WRABE
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation ERNER T EAY A TSR] F
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances BAEEMEMEETHNGBER
and for which sufficient data and other information are fit - FAMNGEERNTEEZRET
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques Bk~ e EMK AL ©

mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

20 Provisions 20 FEFEE

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a IMRBEFEEFERHBNRBER
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can SEHAENERRS BB
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of BB TTIR A B & B B B A 207
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. HASE  UREHESEEM]

FEHEtE - IASESRREL

=R
A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of Bt B ERBETHBERRRS
the expenditure required to settle the related present FTes 2 M S (AT BUETTYIR
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money e  HREXKHEEBEREE
is material, provisions are determined by discounting AH) - FBRrBENRIEFRKE®
the expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a MENRENSEETE - EEE
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time RERGEE  A5SESEEERE
value of money are taken into account as a whole in THEEEEA@ENRERE - T
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous TEUHMEBKEREEREERZE ° i
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required, EXHTFA—([AEEHE - Bz
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as HEAZTELERETENT LI
any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range. BH - SEGBFTEIZBZEERA
In other cases, the best estimate is determined according M EEREE EEMBERT -
to the following circumstances: SEGFTEDFIETIIERERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

20 Provisions (cont’d)

21

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome;

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount
to the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the
following conditions are met:

(1) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the general conditions
stated above and the following conditions are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer;

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
(2) Rendering of services
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable under the
contract or agreement.

Where the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
based on the proportion of services performed to date
to the total services to be performed.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognised to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be recoverable, and
an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss
as service cost; otherwise, the costs incurred are
recognised in profit or loss and no service revenue
is recognised.

(3) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

22 Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or accrued at the
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as
a liability as the employee provides services, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in
the cost of assets where appropriate.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

22 Employee benefits (cont’d)

@)

S)

Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
plan in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit
or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw
the offer of termination remuneration because of
an employee termination plan or a curtailment
proposal;

— When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring
plan involving the payment of termination
remuneration and has raised a valid expectation in
those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement that plan or announcing
its main features to those affected by it.

LAFERERTRE
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
23 Government grants 23 BN B

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contributions from
the government in the capacity as an investor in the
Group. Specific transfers from the government, such as
investment grants that have been clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are also dealt with
as capital contributions rather than government grants.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government
grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
24 Income tax 24 FiBHt

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
24 Income tax (cont’d) 24 FR5%i (&)
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured BEABERA  AEBREEL
based on the tax consequences that would follow from FTiSTi & E M 8 &K T8 B d Bl 5k
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the HERN - KBEBEMATER
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax E o RRBEAREZEESEE
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to ZEEHENERTEAEZERE
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or LEFMEMEENBERNIRASHE ©

the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed BEAMBRA  AEBEELERH
at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent BMEEMNREBEETER °
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits IMERARKREFERATGEEEZESR
will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent SO FE AR FT1S RE A LA R R
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits FriSHiEER Nz - ARG IEL
will be available. FIEMEENREEE - £RA

RRESEANEMAT SRR
MR T IAED o

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and BEEAGBXRA  BEFMSEMEE

deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following NORFEFT 13 0 B B 1R R K i 2 A

conditions are met: T A IR LA S5 72 105 RB A S ¢

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to — M EBERNFHEEESH
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets; FriEiEEREMMEHAR

HETERER 5

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle — BEMRGEREEREEMSH
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on B B2 MR — B YEE J T
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the [ — 4% = BB B A Fr 15 7 AR
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in B3 E TR R A EL = BE AR
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities M EBEERRE—AEFEENR
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or RRELEFTSMEE KA GFEEE
recovered. REAEA - P REANTEEE

NEREEEHRSREE
MEEXEREREEE 5
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

25 Operating leases and finance leases
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1) Operating lease charges
Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related
asset or as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
except for investment properties, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies
described in Note Ill.13 (2). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note lll.18. Income derived from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss using
the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial
direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased
out are material, the costs are initially capitalised
and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss
immediately.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

25 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
carrying amount of the leased assets and the minimum
lease payments is accounted for as unrecognised
finance charges. Initial direct costs attributable to
a finance lease that are incurred by the Group are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.
Depreciation and impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies described
in Notes Ill.13 (2) and II.18, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charges arising from a finance
lease are recognised using an effective interest method
over the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for
in accordance with the principles of borrowing costs
(see Note III.15).

At the balance sheet date, the long-term payables
arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised
finance charges, are analysed and separately
presented as long-term payables or non-current
liabilities due within one year.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

26

27

28

Profit distributions

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.

Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating
segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic
characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the
nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of the
actual transaction prices for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent
with those for the consolidated financial statements.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Except for accounting estimates relating to depreciation
and amortisation of assets such as investment properties,
fixed assets and intangible assets (see Notes IIl.12, 13
and 16) and provision for impairment of various types of
assets (see Notes V.4, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12,13 and 14, Notes
XIV.2, 4,5, 8,9, 10 and 11). Other significant accounting
estimates are as follows:

() Note VII: Fair value measurements of financial
instruments.
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IV Taxation
1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate

Value added tax (VAT) Output VAT is calculated on product 17%, 13%
sales and taxable services revenue,
based on tax laws. The remaining
balance of output VAT, after subtracting
the deductible input VAT of the period,
is VAT payable
Business tax Based on taxable revenue before 1 5%
May 2016. According to Caishui [2016]
No.36, jointly issued by MOF and the
State Administration of Taxation, all
taxpayers subject to business tax in
China are included in the scope of the
VAT pilot scheme. Effective from 1 May
2016, those taxpayers are required to
pay VAT in lieu of business tax
City maintenance and  Based on business tax and VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7%
construction tax
Enterprise income tax ~ Based on taxable profits 15%, 25%

2 Tax preferential benefit
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% in 2016 (2015: 25%) except for
the following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries
of the Company which were taxed at the local applicable
income tax rates.
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(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

TR

1 FEFERBE
HiRkE e
BERERERNHEERN  17% - 13%
NERSBUARERTE

WA - ANGERAF
EANOERRER - 285

DREIEER
20165 A1 Bl + RIER: 5%

BEWAGE - REHH

SHERBBABHEER
HBTF[2016] 36573 © &

2016%F51 B E2ASER
PRELHOTAMALE
RUEEETAREE &
BMBER S ARRISER

ER RERAMEERRER 1% 5% 7%
HER

B BEMRAGETH 15% ~ 25%

2 BWER

BRTHMZEZHIKERDN T QA
Gy KRB RBEARASE T ARAR
FEHEANMBREE B25%
(2015 : 25%) * AR RIHYIRINTF
R EIRE i T R BN TS TR o
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IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit (cont’d)

(@) According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued by
Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation,
General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui Fa No.58[2011]), the
income tax rate is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020.
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MIR(HA)

2 BiREZR(E
b) RIBEEREBE  FARE

IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit (cont’d)
(b) According to the EIT Law, revenue derived from primary

processing of agricultural produce is exempt from the
PRC income tax. The production of juice concentrate
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries and
production of bio-stuff of its subsidiaries are recognised
as primary processing of agricultural produce under
the EIT Law and therefore are exempt from the
PRC income tax commenced from 1 January 2008.
The following companies are recognised as primary
processing of agricultural produce for the year 2016:

Name of company
UNCIEL

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Principal activities

R @B RS

Manufacture and sale of juice

m AL EBHA K EER R
FIBf - AARMETFTFA
TR R B M YRR A E
EBTELEMBRETRRE
@A T2 - HIE20084F 1
A1BRERPENFTEE -
2016F EHEZ X 2E M
ITREBHSARMT

Preferential policy

BERER

Exempt from income tax

Wadh ZEMFTRIDER AR R EERHE PEFEH
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
HKRENRETHR AR R EERHE SRPAEH
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
RN LEFRETBR AR RESTHEREE RRPAETR

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEDLEFEAHRRBRAR]
Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

NELEFRET AR AR
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Manufacture and sale of juice and
bio-stuff

REFEFT REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice and
bio-stuff

REST REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice and
bio-stuff

Exempt from income tax

e Gike s

Exempt from income tax

cX=-Gitey

Exempt from income tax

KEBREMRETERAR REERT RBEERHE REFET
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BMNZEHMRA R BR QA RETHEERHE RRPAETH

Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd

RREBRITERAR

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology

Co., Ltd.
ZERENEREXRBZERAA]

Manufacture and sale of juice and
bio-stuff

RERT REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice and
bio-stuff

REFT  REEERHEE

Exempt from income tax

SHPTEH

Exempt from income tax

SEATEH
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(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1

Cash at bank and on hand

ltem THH
Cash on hand EFHEE
Bank deposits RITER
Total &

As at 31 December 2016, there are no bank deposits
with restrictions placed on the Group’s ownership (2015:
RMB31,500,000), see note V.16.

2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

ltem EE]

RHNEREE
Hep: s TARE

Financial assets held for trading
Including: Investment in equity
instruments

Total &%

3 Bills receivable

ltem (]

Bank acceptance bills RITENESR

All of the above bills were due within one year, and were
not pledged, endorsed or transferred.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

4 Accounts receivable 4 PEWERR
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows: (1) FEU BR 30 1% 5 5 28 Bl 55 ¥ 40
Ik
2016 2015
Customer type =R —E—-RF —E—hF
Related Parties E2ka) 8,935,126 1,762,385
Third Parties F=h 152,434,298 100,949,802
Sub-total NEt 161,369,424 102,712,187
Less: Provision for bad and W EEREE
doubtful debts 2,553,740 -
Total CE 158,815,684 102,712,187
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as (2) FEYERAIZRR B S TAO T -
follows:
2016 2015
Ageing BRHER —E—REFE —T—hF
Within 6 months (inclusive) 616 A AR (& 61EH) 142,975,781 102,712,187
Over 6 months but within 1 year 688 ZE1F(&14)

(inclusive) 18,217,266 -
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1 Z24(524F)

(inclusive) 176,377 -
Sub-total et 161,369,424 102,712,187
Less: Provision for bad and W RS

doubtful debts 2,553,740 -
Total CE 158,815,684 102,712,187
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B W AR R R B R F4A
accounts receivable are recognised. FTE o
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(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

4 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

(3) Receivables individually greater than 10% book value
are individually significant, therefore the accounts
receivable are assessed for impairment and bad
debt provision is determined on an individual basis
and, then, on a collective group basis. For individually
significant accounts receivable at the year end, no bad
debt provision has been determined on an individual
basis.

(4) Additions, recoveries or reversals of provision for bad
and doubtful debts during the year:

Balance at the beginning of the — F41#4%8

year
Additions during the year REFHE
Written-off during the year IERZH

Balance at the end of the year ~ FRERE

5 Prepayments
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

ltem 15 H

Third Parties F=F

Less: Provision for bad and o AR
doubtful debts

Total AT
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

4 FEWER(E)

(3) AEBEW R IRE 458 10%
LAEFRIEABIHEEKN @ At
FEURBR R E AN BIHFIBE L
LEBIAR - BAEES A RE
ARMERS - AR EERE
%o FREFSBEAFESF
BB R R A E R E R

2
NI

(4) AEGHEE - W E R ER

BB -
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-RF
3,442,689 -
(888,949) -
2,553,740 -

5 FE{IFIE
(1) FEIFIEZ AR 40T

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hHEF
3,564,813 3,993,014
3,564,813 3,993,014
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

5 Prepayments (cont’d) 5 FAMFIE(E)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: (2) FETIEIZARES T
2016 2015

Ageing BRHR —E—-R¥F —T—RF
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 EE (%) il EE151(%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FLAR(E146) 3,547,606 99% 3,701,054 93%

Over 1 year but within  1E2F (&24F)

2 years (inclusive) 17,207 1% 291,960 7%
Total CEll 3,564,813 100% 3,993,014 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B TR SRIERERR B 15
prepayments are recognised. FTHE

6 Other receivables 6 HEWR
(1) Other receivables by customer type are as follows: (1) E i EY 1% % = 28 5l 72 T 4
7\— -
2016 2015
Customer type = FLER —E—-REF —ET—hF
Related parties E2pa) 5,324 28,654,071
Third parties F=h 4,877,550 5,712,908
Sub-total NEt 4,882,874 34,366,979
Less: Provision for bad and W RS

doubtful debts 4,132,565 4,132,565
Total CE 750,309 30,234,414
) As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, (2) 12016412 H31H k20154
the Group did not hold any other receivables which 12A318  "EBEEIINEE

were denominated in foreign currency. fth FEULER o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

6 Other receivables (cont’d)
(3) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing BE

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ELRN(S1E)

Over 1 year but within 2 years 1 ZE2F (524F)
(inclusive)

Over 3 years 3EL b

Sub-total INE

Less: Provision for bad and B IEBREE

doubtful debts

Total =

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

(4) For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.
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SHMBEERREFE(E)
6 EAEUK(E)
(3) EAEUWFIZIRE DT

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF

389,903 29,395,555

360,406 838,859
4,132,565 4,132,565

4,882,874 34,366,979

4,132,565 4,132,565

750,309 30,234,414

ARl B H (UK RERR B 2R

AETE

(4) HER2016F 12 A31 B &
201512 A31HIEEE K
EE)8 A U Bl sk 82 B LA B FF /&
B2 ARA L HIFTH IR EER
R E A EUGR -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

7

Inventories
(1) Inventories by category are as follows:

2016
21§

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

7 FE
(1) FEZHE

2015
—Z-1F

Provision for

Item FERES FHeH B fE

Raw materials and ~ BHE R
packaging materials @44 30,827,020 - 30
Finished goods Ekm 761,620,010 (231,058) 761

Provision for

impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying

Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
FERE RESE KBRS REEE

827,020 29,904,414 - 29,904,414

,388,952 833,366,293 (663,546) 832,702,747

862,607,161

Total = 792,447,030 (231,058) 792,215,972 863,270,707 (663,546)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no
inventories were pledged as security by the Group.

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the
year is as follows:

201612 431 H & 20154
128318 @ ZEBRERAR

BRITEE o

Q) FEAFZBELSAT

2016 ZE—-RFE
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
¥ 13
ltem TR FORE BmE HO® FXREBH
Raw materials and packaging FEH# R
materials BEY) 29,904,414 476,704,308 475,782,202 30,827,020
Finished goods ER 833,366,293 543,742,252 615,488,535 761,620,010
Sub-total /et 863,270,707  1,020,447,060 1,091,270,737 792,447,030
Less: Provision for impairment of ~ Jii : FEHEEE
inventories 663,546 - 432,488 231,058
Total CH 862,607,161  1,020,447,060  1,090,838,249 792,215,972

—ZE—REFFH Annual Report 2016

139



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

7

Inventories (cont’d)

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows: (cont’d)
2015

tem
Raw materials and packaging

materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment
of inventories

Total

(3) Provision for impairment of inventories

2016

ltem FEER
Finished goods B
2015

Item FEEH
Finished goods B

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

7 FE&E)
@) FEARFEEERATT -
(&)
T —AF
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
E E
TR FURE g WO FREA®
Rit# R
’Fjé% 29,280,800 531,800,848 531,177,234 29,904,414
ER @ 755,031,745 696,662,601 618,328,053 833,366,293
et 784,312,545  1,228,463,449  1,149,505,287 863,270,707
W FRKERER
! - 2,967,908 579,459 2,883,821 663,546
CHI 781,344,637 1227883990  1,146,621,466 862,607,161
(3) FEHEER
ZE-R¥F
Balance Balance
at the beginning at the end
of the year Written back during the year of the year
B3] 1 FERORE EXGBH
Reversals Written-off
L] L]
663,546 80,584 351,904 231,058
—E—RF
Written back Balance
Balance at the Additions during during the at the end
beginning of the year the year year of the year
ERE RERNEE AERDIEE ERHHE
Provision Written-off
it g
2,967,908 579,459 2,883,821 663,546
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements ol

(cont’d)

8 Other current assets

ltem

Input VAT recoverable
Available-for-sale financial assets at
fair value at the end of the year:
- Beixinruifeng No.008 specific asset
management scheme
- Income right collective trust
scheme of Tenghai Agriculture
- Harvest wealth cash management
No.3
- Working capital loan collective
trust scheme of Kaidi Electric
Power
- Bank wealth management
products

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SHUMBREREEE(E)
8 HfREBEE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
e —E-RE —T-AF
RIS ER IR 58,426,551 65,697,933
FRZAREBEFTER A
HESHEE
— b EHRE008 S BRIEEEE 12
&l 20,827,321 -
—BERERSEEEESET
HE - 10,112,754
—RENERESERGFENNR
- 50,000,000
—HABNRBECERES
B fartatal
- 11,065,602
—RITIEBER
5,300,000 15,000,000
=5 84,553,872 151,876,289

As at 31 December 2016, the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Group is RMB25,300,000 (31
December 2015: RMB86,000,000). The total amount of
changes in the fair value attributable to other comprehensive
income is RMB827,321 (2015: RMB178,356).

As at 31 December 2016, the above available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Group are expected to be

matured in one year.

MR20165F12A831H - "EBEEH
A LA R ESREERA A
AR # 25,300,000 C(20154F 12
A31H : AR#86,000,0007T) °
Ritst ARMERE RSN AR E
BEEHSEAAREKS27,321 T
(20154 : 178,3567T) °

M2016%12 318 » REEEFH

WAL HLESREETRR
—FREHE -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements h
(cont’d)

9 Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end
of the year:

ltem 15 H

Merger and acquisition fund collective &2 FHBEESERES

trust scheme of Guojin Quantum {ErtatEl

EBI Harvest Yunfan NO.1 private AZEEEM1FRERE
equity investment fund LEES

Total A&t

As at 31 December 2016, the cost of above available-for-
sale financial assets held by the Group is RMB20, 100,000,
the total amount of changes in the fair value attributable
to other comprehensive income is RMB1,214,443.

As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale financial
assets held by the Group will due in the year of 2020.
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

9 TMHHETREE
FREAABEFENAHLE
TREE :

2016 2015
—®—xF -T-n%F
10,872,251 -
10,442,192 -
21,314,443 —

MR20165F12A831H » "EBEES
A LA EESREEKRNA
A R#20,100,0007T © Eitst A
HiiraWEN A BEEES S
KA AREA214,4437C -

MR2016F12A31H » AEEFHE
M ERHEESmMEESTBER
20204F 2 8 -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Investment properties

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

10

REMFEHE
BKAENREEFHE -

model:
Plant & Land use
buildings rights Total
EEREEY it fE A a
Cost JR1E
At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H = = =
Additions during the year RE 1B BN
- Purchases —BE 12,530,721 2,828,187 15,358,908
- Transfers from fixed —EEEER
assets or intangible mEEE
assets A 17,561,156 8,407,097 25,968,253
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 30,091,877 11,235,284 41,327,161
Accumulated depreciation or  Z &t E M 251 5
amortisation
At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H = = =
Charge for the year NI g s (605,494) (57,389) (662,883)
Transfers from fixed assets  [EE & & & E
or intangible assets BEHEA (5,600,829) (1,691,975) (7,292,804)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H (6,206,323) (1,749,364) (7,955,687)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 23,885,554 9,485,920 33,371,474

At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H

For the year ended 31 December 2016, management of
the Group has determined to transfer the buildings held
for earning rental income from fixed assets to investment
properties. These investment properties include two office
buildings, certain commercial units and one apartment
building located in Yantai Muping Economic Development
Zone. The total carrying amount of the investment
properties is RMB18,675,448 at the date of transfer.

HE2016F 1231 HILFE -
AEEBEEERT - BHRBE
NEeAENEREREY K E
THFRAEREEEERERE
EBAZREEREME - ZI8E
HEHEBEM N EAE TR TK
EREEAMENAE  HTE
PMEAUE—ELAEE K&
ABHHEEEEARTAARKE
18,675,4487C °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

11 Fixed assets
(1) Fixed assets

Item 1
Cost (&
At 1 January 2015 2015F1 418
Additions during the year REEN
- Purchases -EE
— Additions due to business AT %
combinations involving i)l
entities not under
common control
- Transfers from construction —-ERIREA
in progress
Disposals or written-offs duing ~~ NEREHHE
the year
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A318
At 1 January 2016 201651418
Additions during the year REE
- Purchases from third parties ~H#E
— Transfers from constructionin ~ —ERTEEA
progress
Reductions during the year AERD
- Disposals “RE
~ Transferred into investment -~ENREMEE
properties
Reclassification BEBHIHRE

At 31 December 2016 2016512A31A

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

11 BEEE
(1) EIEBEISR
Plant &  Machinery & Office & other Motor

buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total

EER N
BEN B R Efthiefe ERIR &t
505,269,526 855,650,684 23,438,322 11,386,493  1,395,745,025
2,582,052 1,453,832 2,217,400 437,903 6,691,187
47,012,338 30,588,187 195,198 609,892 78,405,615
251,114 730,720 - - 981,834
(61,077) (3,393,493) (687,938) (2,419,837) (6,552,345)
RGNS BEUAGD 1% 100141 145271300
555,063,953 885,029,930 25,162,982 10,014,451  1,475,271,316
12,854,257 11,613,698 565,088 320,911 25,353,954
6,622,841 968,324 - - 7,591,165
(5,102,244) (6,042,312) (3,527,452) (434,959)  (15,106,967)
(17,561,156) - - - (17,561,156)
(4,310,793) 4,310,793 - - -
547,566,858 895,880,433 22,200,618 9,900,403  1,475,548,312

REEFZEFNRTROBRIF
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d) 11 BEEE(H)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d) (1) ElEEEGL (&)
Plant &  Machinery & Office & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BER B8  BORRR 1]
ltem BB BEN B R0 I& ait
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE
At 1 January 2015 2015%151A (122929922 (450856266)  (180B3,230)  (0,431,027)  (601,280,454)
Charge for the year REGHE (10,923,117)  (28451,527)  (1,285,006) (469,851)  (41,129,501)
Disposals or written-offs during ~ AF R EFHE
the year 45,968 2,904,406 460,584 2,117,738 5,528,696
MOt a0S  GEOBNE  (OHIOT) WGAG) 1SN (B 6%
At 1 January 2016 2016F1 A1H (133,807,071)  (476,403,387)  (18,887,661) (7,783,140)  (636,881,259)
Charge for the year REHE (14,876,621) (29,499,075  (1,439,834) (290,076)  (46,105,606)
Reductions during the year TEFRD
- Disposals -RE 3,104,500 5,159,417 3,111,274 140,786 11,515,977
- Transferred into investment —BAREMFE
properties 5,600,830 - - - 5,600,830
Reclassification BERAAE 290,979 (290,979) = S -
At 31 December 2016 2016127318 (139,687,383)  (501,034,024)  (17,216,221) (7,932,430)  (665,870,058)
Provision for impairment HE%fk
At 1 January 2016 20161418 - (480,787) - - (480,787
At 31 December 2016 N6ERANE L - - (e0Te)
Carying amounts FERE
At 31 December 2016 2016%12A318 407,879,475 394,365,622 4,984,397 1,967,973 809,197,467
At 31 December 2015 20155128318 421,256,882 408,145,756 6,275,321 2,231,311 837,909,270
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, 2016412 H31 B k20155
there are no fixed assets with restrictions placed on 12A318 - "EEEMARE
the Group’s ownership. ZEIRGEEEE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, plants
and buildings leased out by the Group has been
reclassified into investment properties, see Note V.10.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d) 11 BEEE(H)
(4) Fixed assets pending certificates of ownership (4) KPR EEFZNETEEER
H
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, 7K 201612 A31H & 20154
the Group’s fixed assets with pending certificates of 12A318 - "&EENLTEE
ownership is as follows: BEAMZERRE

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Reason why
- =Z—EF (ertificates of
+=R=+-H +=RA=+-H ownership are
ltem Carrying amount Carrying amount pending
HE IRERE RERE FHREREERE
Buildings of Liquan Yitong Juice Co.,Ltd. 52,373,179 46,872,968 The certificates are in
BREBREFTERAANERE the process
BEFEIES
12 Construction in progress 12 HEIRE
2016 2015
B-RE ~F1f
Provison for Carrying Provison for Carrying
Book value  impairment amount  Book value  impairment amount
Project BH RS BEER IRERE RESE REER REER
Refrigeration storage REEREZ
construction - - - 5,835,509 - 5,835,509
Others ] 113,342 - 113,342 44,821 - 44,821
Total L 113,342 - 113,342 5880330 - 5,880,330
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no 7R20165F12 A31H %2015 124
interest was capitalized in construction in progress of 318 ' AEBENEEZTIREAREF
the Group. BEARE -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

13 Intangible assets

[tem

Cost
At 1 January 2015
Additions during the year

— Additions due to business combinations involving

entities not under common control

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016

Additions during the year
— Purchases

Reductions during the year

— Transfer to investment properties during the year

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Transfer to investment properties during the year

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

148  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

13 |NEE

HH

RERE
20151 A1H
PN )l
—JER— 6l T
& BFE N

201512 A31H
201651 H1H
ARFHEAN
—EE
RE D
—EE R E M EHE
201612 A31H
BT
201591 A1H
REFTR
2015912 A31H
20161 H1H
REFTR
EERIGE R E
201612 A31H

REEE
20165F12A31H

2015412 A31H

Land use right

- ith fF P 4

118,907,057

9,783,138

128,690,195

128,690,195

2,614,063

(8,407,097)

122,797,161

(18,206,380)
(2,809,351)

(21,015,731)

(21,015,731)
(2,827,543)
1,691,975

(22,151,299

100,645,862

107,674,464




V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

13 Intangible assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, all of
the Group’s land use rights are on medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group has no intangible assets used as mortgage for

bank loans.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
the Group did not have land use rights with pending

certificates of ownership.

14 Goodwill
(1) Changes in goodwill

Name of investee
Book Value
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd.
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice
Co., Ltd.

Sub-total

Provision for impairment
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd.

Sub-total

Carrying amount

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

iR EEAH

RERE
RELZEHERER
HRBRAHE]
KEREHRET
ARAA
BaEARERRT
HHBERLE

Note

it

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

13 BLEE(H)

2016512 A31H KX2015F12 A4
318 ' N"EEMALERES
FRHEAFR A o

M2016F12 A31H %2015%F12 A
318 ' AEEEFEEREEE
R E A ERFIE -

M2016412 A31H k20154124
318 @ AEEBIRHNELEE -

2016412 A31H KX2015F12 A4
318 ' "EBEERNLEREEE
ML REER -

14 BHE

(1) BEEBESR

Balance at Additions Balance at

1 January during 31 December
2016 the year 2016
201651R 18 FE/M  2016%12R31A
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,653,575 - 8,653,575

- (3,066,599) (3,066,599)
__________ - . B066500)  13,066,509)
8,653,575 (3,066,599) 5,586,976
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

14 BE (&)
(1) BEZZER(H)
(@) R20145F & » AEE T

14 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)
(@) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue

Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000
in 2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd.

(b) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji

-

Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003.
The goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

14 HE(H)
©) BEREER

14 Goodwill (cont’d)
(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill
recognised are Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The recoverable amounts of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. are
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected
future cash flows was projected based on the next
five-year financial forecast approved by management
and a pre-tax discount rate of 10.00% (2015: 10.07%).
The cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period
were assumed to be stable. Based on the estimated
recoverable amount, impairment loss on the goodwill
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd. amounting to RMB3,066,599 was recognised.
However, as key assumptions on which management
has made in respect of future cash projections are
subject to change, management believes that any
adverse change in the assumptions would cause the
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in estimating the present value
of expected future cash flows of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. include
gross profit margin of 18%~25% and sales volume
kept stable which were determined by management
based on past performance.

AEERE R i EERN
BEMAESRLERENER
EXMZBRAR - KEZE
MREABRARLMAEER
ZRENRAHBERAT -

TELZEFBEEERBEER
AR KERZREFRETHE
RARIMAEGREQZEAERT
SRR R A B A A 4R (2] 6 B8 A
TERTARKIB S REIREMN A
BE AEEREEEEH
R BT R R F B IS TE & AN
10.00% (20154 : 10.07%)
AT IR RIET % B EAMN A
RIRERERE - BBSFY
BHEEZEFHhNBREREY
BRERFEE - HAKE S5
BT 4 RE B L E LB AE
BEEREARARNEER
A R (B 18 25 3,066,599 7T ° 1B
At ZEEAAKRBE S RER
BEATKENBRERR TS
A% BERERANRER
BEFELEEEES  An e
FEARRMEREEBEBBEA
a0

HLELENEBEEERR
BERAA - KEZEFNRERE
TERARMMAEEDLE
FIRA R ER AR TERT AR
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(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)

(cont’d)
15 Deferred tax assets 15 EEFISHEE
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets (1) R HEGFEIE AT 13 7% & EE B AT
2016 2015
ltem IHH —E—REF —ET—RHF
Deductible tax losses AHEAEE 84,740,000 65,208,455
(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in (2) LM = ~ 24FTEMEET
Note lll.24, the Group has not recognised deferred K ARART TR0 e
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of S AREINEGBEE R KRR
RMB84,740,000 (2015: RMB65,203,455) as it is not FEFLFIE » B AR B M ARG
probable that future taxable profits against which the ANE#84,740,0007T (2015 :
losses can be utilised will be available to the Company. AR ®65,203,45570 ) ) 2
The deductible tax losses can be deducted from future AR EEERELE ST E
taxable income within 5 years from the year when such E  BEBIRTHE - SLnlig
losses were incurred under current tax laws. HEEARAEEER - oA
B 8 5 5F /9 B R O 4 40 R 2R
FETAFE
(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised (S ﬁg_ﬁfﬁﬁ Tri B A ) AT
deferred tax assets TR 2R 5 5
2016 2015
Year FH —E—REF —ET—RHF
2016 20164 - 12,710,556
2017 20174 2,009,827 2,009,827
2018 20184 2,155,136 3,070,754
2019 20194 20,744,933 25,123,912
2020 20204 22,087,527 22,288,406
2021 20214 37,742,577 =
Total &t 84,740,000 65,203,455
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

16 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

As at 31 December 2016, the assets with restrictions
placed on their ownership were as follows:

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand

Total

(B 15 Bz RS )

P REREBARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

16 FrIEESFEARZZREINEE
M2016%12 8318 » FrA#EXE
REIMEEB R

Balance at Additions Decrease Balance

the beginning during during the ~ at the end

of the year the year year  of the year

R Note iz FRE AREEM AERD EXBH
FEES Vi A1 31,500,000 - (81,500,000) -
G 31,500,000 - (31,500,000 -

Cash at bank and on hand are used for pledged loans.

BESAREMER -
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(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

17 Short-term loans

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

17 SHER

ltem 2016
HH mt- Foe:2
Annual Exchange
interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB
FfE Wi F%eH HGEE AR%RHE
Credit loans ERER 3.92%-~4.11% RMBAE# - - 130,000,000
Guaranteed loans RiERER 4.26%-~4.35%  RMBARW - - 140,000,000
Guaranteed loans REET Base rate RMBAR® - - 40,000,000
BEFE
Guaranteed loans RERH Shibor +5%  RMBAE® - - 30,000,000
Total =) 340,000,000
tem 2015
A %%
Annual Exchange
interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB
EF|% BiE REEE nEER  AR%EE
Credit loans ERER 401% ~556%  RMBARH - - 115,000,000
Guaranteed loans REER Base rate+10%  RMBARH - - 49,000,000
HREFIE £F10%
Guaranteed loans REBER 435% ~ 479%  RMBARH - - 240,000,000
Credit loans* ERER Libor+2.0% USDETL 7,500,000 6.4936 48,702,000
Loans secured by mortgage ERER 1.93% USDETT 5,000,000 6.4936 32,468,000
Total =)

*

This loan item represents the subsidiary loans which are
guaranteed by the Company. These loans are categories
as credit loans in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have past due short-term loans.

For the information of assets related to pledged loans,
refer to Note V.16.

For the information of guaranteed loans, refer to Note IX.5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

18 Accounts payable 18 FE{TERX
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows: FERTBR FIRBREC A ATLAT
2016 2015
Ageing AR —E—RE —ET—hF
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6fE A LAR (& 6fEA) 52,831,768 60,694,180
Over 6 months but within 1 year 6EAZ1FE(S1F)

(inclusive) 3,404,150 5,810,491
Over 1 year 1F A E 9,091,308 2,486,747
Total aEr 65,327,226 68,991,418
The ageing is counted starting from the date when BRik B FETER FNIERR B AR A T
accounts payable are recognised. I
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

19 Employee benefits payable

(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans

Total

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans

Total
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pERikadi
BER IR A

—RERR A E

72 B
BBk EA
—RERIFAHE

19 BB ITHMN
(1) EITBLH#H T -

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
20165 20165
1A1H FE2M XERY 12A31H
18,370,361 50,587,814 47,384,111 21,574,064
- 3,813,663 3,813,663 -
18,370,361 54,401,477 51,197,774 21,574,064
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
20154 20154
1R18 AREEIN RERD 12A31H
16,365,153 42,602,268 40,597,060 18,370,361
= 3,350,424 3,350,424 -
16,365,153 45,952,692 43,947,484 18,370,361
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

19 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 19 FEfHR T ¥ (&
(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) F2EIFT B
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
20165 20165

118 FEBIN XERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& -~ #&% -

and subsidies EBRAIFERL 5,499,885 47,472,445 44,304,805 8,667,525
Staff welfare BIEANE 12,870,476 880,306 844,243 12,906,539
Social insurance HeRBRE

Medical insurance BERRE - 1,405,034 1,405,034 -

Work-related injury insurance ~ LIERBE - 216,777 216,777 -

Maternity insurance EERRE - 100,360 100,360 -
Housing fund ERAES - 333,577 333,577 -
Labour union fee and TEEERM

staffs’ education fee BI#EKE - 179,315 179,315 -
Total =) 18,370,361 50,587,814 47,384,111 21,574,064

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
20154 20154

18108 ARELEN RERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances I & - #& -

and subsidies R FIFERL 3,375,108 40,170,553 38,045,776 5,499,885
Staff welfare BIRME 12,988,131 443 504 561,159 12,870,476
Social insurance HEeRBE

Medical insurance BERRE - 1,116,808 1,116,808 -

Work-related injury insurance  TERRE - 175,498 175,498 -

Maternity insurance EERBRE - 159,544 159,544 =
Housing fund FEELES - 279,695 279,695 -
Labour union fee and TEEBHN

staffs’ education fee BIHELE 1,914 256,666 258,580 =
Total Bt 16,365,153 42,602,268 40,597,060 18,370,361
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(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

19 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

SHMBEERREFE(E)

19 BB THM (&
(3) BEBILIET—RELEFat &)

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2016 the year the year 2016

20165 20165

1A1H FEBM FERD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance EAEEZRR - 3,612,944 3,612,944 =
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 200,719 200,719 -
Total A - 3,813,663 3,813,663 -
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2015 the year the year 2015

20155 20154

1818 AREEM RERD 12H318

Basic pension insurance EAREZRR - 3,190,880 3,190,880 -
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 159,544 159,544 =
Total At - 3,350,424 3,350,424 =

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its staff.
The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at certain percentage of the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its staff of last year.
A member of the plan is entitled to a pension, to be
paid by the municipal governments, equal to a fixed
proportion of the salary prevailing at his retirement
date. The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits associated with these
plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

20 Taxes payable

21

ltem 5 H

Value added tax HE
Land use tax T HufE AR
Property tax BEH
Stamp duty ENFERT
Individual income tax B AFTSH
Total AT

Dividends payable

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 25 May 2016, a dividend payable to the equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05 per share,
totaling RMB19,050,000, was approved for 2015 by the
Company’s shareholders.

On 15 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of cash dividends of RMB0.05 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2016. The proposal
is pending for approval.

The Group did not have dividends payable outstanding
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

20 EXHE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—F4F
30,933,062 19,901,343
389,949 562,742
220,084 108,492
42,553 5,581
10,684 11,492
31,596,332 20,589,650

21 ERRA

RIER 2016495 A 25 HFT A B A
REFARSBBBERRESR 2015
FEMNREBETRAREO0.05
7t HEF AR #19,050,000T E
ERUED R T ARRIMRE -

BEE2N2017E38 1581 #
ANRARRIKE2016F ERE
A& A - SRR T A R#0.05
T ° MR M ER R A S HE o

2016412 A31H KX2015F12 A4
318 @ ANEEEEARTHHREF] o

M2016412 A31H k20155124

318 - NEBEEEREKRAINE
RRR TR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)

(cont’d)
22 Other payables 22 HMER
2016 2015
ltem =R —E—-REF —E—RF
Third parties EF=5 43,921,261 56,481,147
Total At 43,921,261 56,481,147
23 Share capital 23 B
Changes during the year(+/-)
FESDAR
Balance at Balance at
the beginning Issue of Share  Purchase of the end of
of the year ~ new shares consolidation  own shares Sub-total the year
FORE BITHE Einast kR it FXBE
2016 20165
Total number of shares R 4% 381,000,000 - - (13,000,000)  (13,000,000) 368,000,000
Amount (RMB) ARESH 381,000,000 - - (13,000,000  (13,000,000) 368,000,000
2015 20155
Total number of shares {7488 392,600,000 - - (11,600,000)  (11,600,000) 381,000,000
Amount (RMB) ARELE 392,600,000 - - (11,600,000)  (11,600,000) 381,000,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

23 Share capital (cont’d) 23 B4 (%)

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 25 May
2016 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased 13,000,000
H Shares at a total consideration of HKD48,045,536
(equivalent to RMB41,064,520) at Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited from 15 June 2016 to 11 July
2016. The repurchased shares had been cancelled and
deregistered, and the Company’s issued share capital
was reduced by the amount equivalent to the par value
of the repurchased shares. Excess of the repurchase
price over the par value of the repurchased shares were
charged against the capital reserve. After the capital
reduction, the total number of shares was changed from
381,000,000 shares to 368,000,000 shares with a par
value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered
capital was changed to RMB368,000,000.

In June 2016, the Company repurchased a total of
10,875,000 H shares with a par value of HKD1.00 each
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at prices ranging from HKDS3.36 to HKDS3.85
per H share, for a total consideration of HKD39,652,610
(equivalent to RMB33,891,085) (including the consideration
for shares repurchase, stamp tax and commission.) In July
2016, the Company repurchased a total of 2,125,000 H
shares with a par value of HKD1.00 each on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
at prices ranging from HKDS3.78 to HKD4.04 per H share,
for a total consideration of HKD8,392,926 (equivalent to
RMB7,173,435) (including the consideration for shares
repurchase, stamp tax and commission.)

RIER20164F5 A 25 H A A A
RREAFAKE MARQ R ZHKEE
BABRFEAZEIRREANS@E
B RBRNE BETKE 2t
A B2016F6H15HE7A11H
LE + N2 R LA & % 48,045,536
BIL(HEER AR 41,064,520
TLIRBAEBERSZMABERA A
4 =t | B8 13,000,000 B B 13 ©
FrEIERM BT - ARRE
TR AR 3% E W WA B AR B O
B EIEEERBERAR I D
WMTEARARTE - BER A7
A% {7 42 %1 fh 381,000,000 A% J&k &=
368,000,0000% @ FREEARE
1.007C * FMERAEEE B A
R #368,000,0007T °

R2016F6 A RRARRAE
BHAXSFBERAAEE
10,875,000 i & % 1.00 % 7T E
BEZHE BHERZEEES
3.36E3.85% L - #BEIHEER
39,652,610 L(HHE R AR
33,891,085 L) (B IE B AR E ¥
B BEHERASE) - R2016
F7H  ARBERBABBER S
FrE R A ][ E2,125,000 0% & /%
1.00/8 TEEZHE » BHR 2@
BB AI378E4.04/8 T ' 2O
& /48,392,926 8 T(HERAR
#7,173,43570) (BIEEEREH
B  fEREAESE) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)
(cont’d)

23 Share capital (cont’d) 23 RAS(4])

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 May
2015 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased 11,600,000 H
Shares at consideration of HKD39,174,060 (equivalent
to RMB31,122,248) at Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited from 3 June 2015 to 11 June 2015. The
repurchase shares had been cancelled and deregistered,
the Company’s issued share capital was reduced by the
amount equivalent to the par value of the repurchased
shares. Excess of the repurchase price over the par
value of the repurchased shares were charged against
the capital reserve. After the capital reduction, the total
number of shares changed from 392,600,000 shares
to 381,000,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital changed to
RMB381,000,000.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 SHMEBEERTEEFEREGE)
(cont’d)
24 Capital reserve 24 EXRNE

2016 —E—REF

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year the year of the year

Item BHE Note [ MG FEEM EERD RGBT

Share premiums RARE V23 F23 75,000,349 - 28,064,520 47,025,829

Foreign currency translation NERATEES

difference 9,926 - - 9,926

Total fEf 75,100,275 - 28064520 47,035,755
2015 —E—hHF

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year the year of the year

ltem ER Note  ffis FOHE IREHED RERD FRHE

Share premiums BARE V23 A28 94,612,597 - 19,522,248 75,090,349

Foreign currency translation INERETEER
difference 9,926 - - 9,926
Total Ch 94,622,523 - 10522248 75,100,275
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)

(cont’d)
25 Other comprehensive income 25 HftiRe W=
Movements during the year
Wi6EREH
Balance at Balance at
the beginning Net-of-tax the end of
of the year Less: transfer amount the year
attributable to to profit or attributable to  attributable to
shargholders Before-tax loss previously  Less: Income  shareholders  shareholders of
of the Company amount recognised tax expense of the Company  the Company
BENEALT
RRt%h A BENEALT
RRKE  AERRRM  EHRANE RERER RAGAMES
fiem BF EnRA BER  BMEARE W :FRRER BAE  HEEXEA
Hems that may be reclassfed fo proft orloss AR ESEEERR
L 178,336 2,041,764 (178,356 - 1,963,408 2,041,764
Inclucing: gah or loss arisng fom changesin b TEHESREE
fa valug of avalable-for-sale MEERSER
financial assets 178356 2,041,764 (178,356) - 1,863,408 2,041,764
Tota &t 178,356 2,041,764 (178,356) - 1,863,408 2,041,764
Movernents during the year 2015
WIEERER
Balance at the
beginning of Net-oftax  Balance at the
the year Less: transfer amount end of the year
attributable to o proft or less:  aftibutableto atfributable to
shareholders of Before-fax  10ss previously Income tax  shareholders of  shareholders of
the Company amount recognised expense  the Company  the Company
BENEAT BEREAT
Rt B HIEA BREs
Felie  TERERE  AfRedE HEEER el
fiem 1R Efgg REE  GHEAER B EHER g7 R
Hems that may be reclassfed to proft orloss IR EDEEERH
Hbirals - 178,35 - - 178,356 17835
Inclucing: gan or loss arising fom changesin b EHESREE
fa valug of avalable-for-sele LrEERSER
financial assets
- 178,356 - - 178,356 178,356
Totd ait - 178,336 - - 178,35 17835
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)
(cont’d)

26 Surplus reserve 26 BEHAIE
2016 —ZE—REFE
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
ltem HE FMERE *Fi2m FXRErEE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBRATE 105,794,859 = 105,794,859
2015 —ZT—RF
Balance at Additions Balance
the beginning during at the end
of the year the year of the year
ltem 15 A FHIEAEE AREEIE N FRERER
Statutory surplus reserve ETEBER AR 104,236,707 1,558,152 105,794,859
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

27 Retained earnings

tem

At 1 January 2015
Add: Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Add: Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2016

EH

2015561 A18
n: AERBRE AT
R FHE
o RBABLE
JE( LR

2015612R31A

201641718
n: AEZRREAT
RREEHE
B RBERLE
FEf E B AA

2016%F12531H

As at 31 December 2016, the distributable reserve of
the Company amounted to RMB347,049,764 (2015:

RMB366,364,934).

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared

during the year

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 25 May 2016, a dividend payable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05 per share,
totalling RMB 19,050,000, was approved.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 26 May 2015, a dividend payable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05 per share,
totalling RMB 19,630,000, was approved.
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I SHMERRAAZEREGR)

27 KD ELAIHE

Appropriation or

Note Amount  distribution rate

i3 &8 RESSEHA
948,188,123
73,182,269

1,568,152 10%
() 19,630,000
2) 1,000,182,240
1,000,182,240
121,686,562

- 10%
() 19,050,000

R 1,102,818,802

R20165F12H831H » N A A A5
ETFAQRBIRRzEESEAA
R #£347,049,76470(20154F : A
R#:366,364,9347T) °

(1) 72 B &R T

RiE2016F5 425 HRE K
R E - AR AR RR
EIKZERSBRF - 5
AR¥0057L « et ARM
19,050,0007T °

RIE2015F5 426 AR E K
SHRE  AAE R EBRK
REIRZERSBRF - 5
AR0.05TT @ Kt AR
19,630,0007T °
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

27 Retained earnings (cont’d)
(2) Retained earnings at the end of the year
Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2016
and attributable to the Company is RMB11,726,335
(2015: RMB6,003,088).

As at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
retained earnings attributable to the Company
included appropriation to surplus reserves
made by the Company’s subsidiaries amounting
to RMB115,863,795 (31 December 2015:
RMB104,137,460).

28 Operating income and operating costs

2016
—B-RE

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

27 Ko EFE (&)

(2) FIRAK 3 BF B a2 B
FRANFRINEBR
ANEMBBAEBAEARE
11,726,3357L(2015%F : AR
#6,003,0887T) °

R2016F12A31H « A&EE
FBRE A AR RS RF B
BETARRNTF R AR
B ATEAR115,863,795
Jt(2015F 128318 : AR
104,137,4607T) °

28 ERWA ~ EEEAE

2015
—T—hF
Cost Income Cost
5% 3 WA (DN

628,829,586 810,046,751 625,618,343
2,363,739 7,923,728 3,000,817

Income
[tem 1HH KA
Principal activities TEER 870,565,102
Other businesses Hh %% 4,632,010
Total &&f 875,197,112

631,193,325 817,970,479 628,619,160

Operating income generated from principal activities
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products, and income from provision of juice
processing services. Operating income generated from
other businesses represents primarily the sales of
packaging materials, rental income and others.

TEEKWAREARNEENERE
RARBBERMHESKA - A
BRRERTIMTREHWA - H
MEBBAETEIEHEERRYSE
MEHRA -~ HEWRASE o
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5t 35 ¥R AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

29 Business taxes and surcharges

[tem

Urban maintenance and
construction tax

Education surcharges

Property tax

Land use tax

Others

Total

30 Selling and distribution expenses

[tem
Freight charge

Payroll and welfare
Others

Total

T H

P R AR

=E={rpill
FER
T {E AR
Hitp

31 General and administrative expenses

[tem

Payroll and welfare

Stamp duty and property tax

and so on

Depreciation and amortisation

expenses

Repair and motor vehicle expenses

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services

Other consulting services fees

Others

Total

B H

TERM

EERBEERSHE

FEBEMEHE

HIEBMERE M

TIN5
—Ei B

H it 54 RS &

Hitp
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kil

S ERRREEREE)
29 Bi& KM
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—F4F
2,008,218 2,730,674
1,921,483 2,304,181
2,858,564 =
3,096,037 =
1,053,885 158,387
10,938,187 5,193,242
30 SHEEHA
2016 2015
—E—RE —FIF
43,391,251 34,319,177
1,610,610 1,578,499
27,980,595 14,087,148
72,982,456 49,984,824
31 EEEA
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
22,127,507 15,646,958
2,847,336 9,438,394
6,468,358 5,501,195
925,771 850,005
1,480,000 1,480,000
2,410,986 2,712,993
17,647,802 13,931,439
53,907,760 49,560,984
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

32 Financial expenses 32 MKER
2016 2015
ltem IEH —E—REF —ET-hHF
Interest expenses arising from EFHF B H
borrowings 14,446,249 28,823,359
Interest income from deposits FREF B U (1,270,409) (237,183)
Net exchange gains DR (14,220,444) (6,215,986)
Other financial expenses H %5 & R 1,138,901 1,021,802
Total CE 94,297 23,391,992
33 Impairment losses 33 EERMERX
2016 2015
ltem 1HEH —Z—RE —ET—AF
Accounts receivable JEUW R K 3,442,689 =
Goodwill EES 3,066,599 =
Inventories 5 (80,584) 579,459
Fixed assets BEEEE - 480,787
Total At 6,428,704 1,060,246
34 Losses from changes in fair value 34 NAEBESEE L
2016 2015
ltem IEHH —E—REF —ET—hHF
Financial assets at fair value through AR EERHE B £ &)
profit or loss FTAE BEEM
TRVEE (79,304) =
Total BEF (79,304) =
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 15 Bl Ba 51

F BB BARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

35 Investment income

(1) Investment income by items

[tem

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
under the equity method

Income from disposal of long-term

equity investments

Investment income from holding
available-for-sale financial assets
Investment income from disposal

of financial assets measured

at fair value through profit or loss
Including: financial assets designated

at fair value through
profit or loss

Investment income from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Including: Transfer from other

comprehensive income

Total

36 Non-operating income
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

[tem

170  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Government grants
Negative goodwill arising from
acquisition of a subsidiary

Gains on disposal of non-current assets

Others

Total

REETHLZEFIR

1 SHMEBEERTEEFEREGE)
35 REWZ
(1) BEUW 77 EH 55
2016 2015
5 H —E—R¥F —E—RF
EEFZE R R AR
& W ek
- 1,710,333
BERARELRE
EXrlas - 2,937,986
AHHEEREETERA
B YIS B W 423,455 -
BRENAAEBEFEZEAEE
ST AEHEEM
%mﬂéFﬂx K& W 1,251,345 -
Hep: X ZMHEREE
1,251,345 =
BEEAHHESMEE
BRI E W 2,852,791 2,511,608
ﬁﬂh P HAbAiR A WasE A
178,356 -
A3t 4,527,591 7,159,927
36 EEIMIA
(1) EEINRA S IERL0T -
Note 2016 2015
EH B st 2§ —E-RF
BB () 19,473,861 4,280,647
WEFATEHE
- 2,681,631
ERBEERENE 138 65,276
Hity 1,652,783 12,272
A&t 21,126,782 7,039,826

STROBRAF
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

36 Non-operating income (cont’d)

(B 15 Bz RS )

P REREBARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

36 EEIMA(F)

2016 2015
Item JHE —2-RE “2-RF
Agricultural grants EERE 1,750,000 317,407
Science and technology project  FHEIAE #Ek 16,778,866 1,615,684

subsidies

Environment protection award RERERE 574,857 2,206,731
Others Hft 370,138 140,825
Total A%t 19,473,861 4,280,647

1)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
received government grants totalling RMB19,473,861
from various government authorities as rewards for
its contributions in research and development of juice
condensation technology, local environmental protection
and local agriculture industry. Of which, RMB16,010,366
is related to major provincial technology projects and
was received in previous years. In the period between
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016, these projects
reached the acceptance requirement and the grants were
transferred to profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
received grants totalling RMB4,280,647 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contributions
in research and development of juice condensation
technology, local environmental protection and local
agriculture industry.

Related to HEE/
assets/income Ui iAREg

related to income  HLIES AR
related to assets/ ~ HEE /IzIEE
income

related to income  HLUES AR
related to income  ELUE AR

(1) B ZE2016F 12 A31 H Ik F

& AEBEWREZ BT
fEE T AR 819,473,861 7T
LA B2 B 7 &= (B 4 TR AR Bl
mfE - FHIRBREREH
BEZROER - £ - AR
#16,010,366 7T = LA AT & E U
BB A B EARFEE
18 B EETHMAL - 1R20164F
1818 ZE2016412 431 A &
FIERCIE B UG - S

1Bz o

HZE2015F12A31HIL&F
& - AEBEWREZ BT
AL 5 A R #4,280,647 7T
LA B2 B AR &2 (B 4 TR HR Bl
mFE - ZHIRBREREH
BEZENTH -
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements ol

(cont’d)

37 Non-operating expenses

[tem
Losses on disposal of

non-current assets
Others

Total

38 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for the year
estimated in accordance with
tax law and regulations

Provision of income tax for
previous years

Total

T H

FRBEERERK

A H

BEUE R AR ERT E A
BEMREH

IR FENAERER
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EHMBERRAEEEE)
37 EEIHIZH
2016 2015
—2—-RE —ZET-hF
2,109,988 464,739
30,382 98,810
2,140,370 563,549

38 FISHLE A

2016 2015
—E—-REF —ET—hF
526,016 588,355
874,504 25,611
1,400,520 613,966
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

38 Income tax expenses (cont’d) 38 FIBHiEH (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and S EREg A ERNEERD
accounting profit is as follows: TS @

2016 2015
ltem IHH —E—RF —E—HF
Profit before taxation BRI A 123,087,082 73,796,235
Expected income tax expenses at L FK25% 5T E K FEHR

tax rate of 25% FriS#i 30,771,771 18,449,059
Effect of taxation preferential benefit iU (EEH) 52 28 (40,660,924) (27,755,102)
Effect of different tax rates applied 2 &liE R R H

by certain subsidiaries % 467,106 4,098,815
Effect of tax loss of tax-exempted GRS E R

business o = 146,252
Effect of unrecognised deferred tax N4 E AR FERIEIEFT 155

asset for deductible loss EEMABENEEZE 9,435,644 5,561,740

Effect of utilisation of deductible loss, 188 F A i R MR IR L
which had not been recognised as ~ FF8 i & &M AT

deferred tax asset in previous years EiEA) R (419,717) (80,936)
Adjustment to income tax of previous FAE LARTE E FT1SHH

years 2 874,504 25,611
Effect of non-deductible costs, DA HBKA - &R

expenses and losses B E 932,136 168,527
Income tax expenses KESHE B 1,400,520 613,966
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)

(cont’d)
39 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 39 EEREEMS
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are EENEEMe 2 FERBOT
as follows:
Salaries,
Directors’ and allowances and Retirement scheme
supervisors’ fees henefits in kind contributions Total
ERRER 55 Bt
Name 4 fig RERAMRER iR ait
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ZB-RE CT-RE CB-RNF -3-1% ZB-RE -E-nF  ZB-RE -E-1f
AB®  ARE  ABR  ARE  ABE  ARE AB%  ARE
Executive Directors: #ES:
Wang An I% 50,000 5,000 241,899 209,638 13,139 10,765 305,038 270,403
Zhang Hui R 50,000 5000 241,899 20,638 13,139 10,765 305,038 270,403
Wang Yanhui fi) 50,000 5000 132,116 112,031 13,139 10,765 195,255 172,796
Non-exective Directors: FHTES:
Liu Tsungyyi JRH 50000 50000 - - - - 50000 50,000
Independent non-executive Directors: BudHiES:
Gong Fan i) 20,830 50,000 = - - - 20,830 50,000
Chow Kam Hung e 20,830 50,000 = - - - 20,830 50,000
Li Tongning S 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000
Jiang Hongoj E 29,170 - - - - - 20,170 -
Li Wei Y 29,170 - - - - - 29,170 -
Supervisors: Bz
Wang Chuntang 15% 30,000 30,000 = - - - 30,000 30,000
Yu Jiang i 8750 30,000 - - - - 8750 30,000
Zhang Suoping KA 12500 30,000 - - - - 12500 30,000
Dai Liying gl 21,250 - 129,716 - 13,139 - 164,105 -
Wang Zniwu IR 17,500 - 120,000 - 16,505 - 154,005 -
Total o) 440,000 440000 865630 531,307 69,061 3229 1,374,691 1008602
For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December HZ=2016%F12A31H K20154F12
2015, no emoluments were paid to the directors or RA31BLEEE @ KA ARMAE
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the ERE ST A B PAE =R
Company or as compensation for loss of office. SIE AR A &) H) 52 B ok B 5 1

rh
5 o©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

40

41

Individuals with the highest emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2016, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015:
three) are executive directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note V.39 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: two)
individuals are as follows:

e kELithe
BRI EIHR

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement scheme contributions

Total BFF

The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

HKD Nil-HKD1,000,000

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB4,015,170 (2015:
profit of RMB15,581,516), which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

75 2 Ip -8 #1,000,0007T

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SHMBEERREFE(E)

40 BEHFAL
HZE2016F12A31HIEFE * 7L
UERmHALTH » = A(2015%F :
SNERTES - HMSERH
2R 39 FURE - EM= A
(2015%F : Z N) ZH B TFT /R -

2016 2015
—g—A¥  -T-5f
339,311 275,285
27,796 21,483
367,107 296,768

Z_UEREEH AL(2015F : =

NBFMEATEREZA :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
—E-RF —T—hEF
AB A
2 2

M BEREARMEEFENR

FERARRBRREZE M FHE
BEBEIARNRD G Y IREEE
AR #40151707t(2015 F 7|
B AR%15,581,5167T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

42 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share
(1) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable to 53 EBR AN A 7] 3@ A AR R A

ordinary shareholders of the BHFFE
Company

Weighted average number of ordinary 7N 83177290 & 178 %

shares outstanding il RS
Basic earnings per share ERGR

(RMB/share) (ARET/IR)
Diluted earnings per share RGN

(RMB/share) (AR¥T/ )

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the FHEBITERRIRE
beginning of the year
Effect of repurchase of own shares  [E1B&RR {7 Y 52

Weighted average number of ordinary & 7 & 38 % # 04
shares at the end of the year FI8
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

Q2 ERXERUENFESRKEN
STERRE
(1) BRI Kz
EAGRIKZAZEBRAAT
38 AR AR R A & G R B A
NN R)EETTAE SN 38 AR A N4

FHEHE
2016 2015
—$-xE  -T-IF
121,686,562 73,182,269
374,264,001 386,049,977
0.325 0.190
0.325 0.190

AEBMIIRFEEANGTA
BEREBENBEELTER -

(2) BB IIEF IR B
WF

2016 2015
—B—RF —EF-h%

381,000,000 392,600,000
(6,735,999) (6,550,023)

374,264,001 386,049,977
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

43 Supplement to income statement 43 FIERBRER
Expenses are analysed by their nature: HABERFPNERREESE
2016 2015
ltem HE —E-REF —T—hF
Operating income BERA 875,197,112 817,970,479
Less: Changes in inventories of finished &l : EX M EERNEFE
goods and work in progress & 71,746,283 (78,334,548)
Finished goods purchased SN E X m O B AR - 67,159,790
Raw materials and packaging FEANEME R e
materials used 475,782,202 531,177,234
Employee benefits expenses BIFMER 54,401,477 45,952,692
Depreciation and amortisation IEMEHE R
expenses 49,596,031 43,938,852
Financial expenses BsER 94,297 23,391,992
Impairment losses BERERX 6,428,703 1,060,246
Other expenses Hih & 117,575,040 123,464,190
Add: Investment income m: B 4,527,591 7,159,927
Operating profit &R E 104,100,670 67,319,958
44 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement 44 BeREREHTRE
(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities: (1) Y2 A b B4R &% )/ 5 1) 52
o
2016 2015
—Z-RF —T—hF
Proceeds from sales of raw SHE RMEIERER
materials B 5,116,278 7,923,728
Receipts of government grants 40 EI| &Y B B &2
and compensations BEE3K 4,632,010 4,292,919
Total A&t 9,748,288 12,216,647
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)

(cont’d)
44 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement 44 BeREREETRE)
(cont’d)
(2) Payments relating to other operating activities: (2) SZITRM B E)FE)H EFm 5
&
2016
—Z-RE
Payments for period expenses  SfHH)EIBHIEE B 70,137,946
(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities: (3) W E A b B4 & )F B B e 3
%
2016
—Z—RE
Proceeds relating to interests BB 17 5 AR
on deposit WA 1,270,409
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

45 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

45 REREBRMEAER
(1) BemBXREAREN
a. FENEAGAREEED

operating activities: Hemne
2016 2015
ltem =)= —E-RF —E—ARF
Net profit el Dl 121,686,562 73,182,269
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets m: ETEETE 46,105,606 41,129,501
Amortisation of intangible asset I & E 2,827,543 2,809,351
Depreciation and amortisation of HEMFEHER
investment properties PrEMEH 662,882 =
Provisions for impairment of assets ~~ &EREIES% 6,428,703 1,060,246
Losses from disposal of BEETEEEN
fixed assets FIEK 2,109,850 399,463
Negative goodwill arising from WHEF AR
acquisition of a subsidiary =05 - (2,681,631)
Financial expenses % E R 8,590,256 25,254,847
Investment income B W e (4,527,591) (7,159,927)
Loss from changes in fair value AREEESHER 79,304 -
Decrease/(increase) in gross FERRAD,/(Em)
inventories 70,471,773 (23,431,096)
(Increase)/decrease in operating K EIIE B Y
receivables (3gm),/m (51,541,938) 50,444,777
Decrease in operating payables K RS TE B /Y
VRS (7,989,741) (24,898,263)
Net cash inflow from operating REFHELEMNERS
activities R 194,903,209 136,109,537
b. Change in cash and cash equivalents: b. B REEZEBYEEH
B
2016 2015
ltem == —E-RF —E—ARF
Cash and cash equivalents at the end E& KIREZEEB D
of the year FRHEE 110,178,784 106,373,059
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at & : & RIREFEMH
the beginning of the year FHIEREE 106,373,059 191,534,476
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReEMREEEY
and cash equivalents SR, R ) EE 3,805,725 (85,161,417)
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notestothe consolidated financial statements 1 S#MERIRBEAFE(E)
(cont’d)
45 Supplementary information on cash flow statement 45 BERMERMERAER ()
(cont’d)
(2) Information on disposal of a joint venture during the 2) A FEES ENFIIEHEE
year:
2016 2015
—Z-RE —T-hHE
Consideration for disposing BESENAINEE
a joint venture - 58,410,400
Cash or cash equivalents received ARERE A SR IR
during the year for disposing REW R FIR B ok
a joint venture during the year REEFEED - 29,205,200
Less: tax expenses paid for B XTI
equity transfer WmE 551,129 -
Add: Cash or cash equivalents Il : ARIFEEREEA &R A
received during the year RAF U HIR £ -
for disposing a joint REZEEY
venture in previous years 29,205,200 -
Net cash received for the BREA =R AWEIRIR S FRE
disposal 28,654,071 29,205,200

(3) Information on acquisition of a subsidiary during the
year:

Consideration for acquiring BEFRRIAEE
a subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents paid HUS5F R & MHIRE

for acquiring a subsidiary REZEEY
Less: Cash and cash equivalents Ji : T2 RIEFAHIRE A
held by the acquired REFED
subsidiary

Net cash paid for the acquisition VST R A 8938 & F 58
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(3) ANFRRFF 1 RIRIEEE 1S5

2016
—B-NF

2015
—T—hF

104,800,000

104,800,000

1,924,622

102,875,378
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)
45 Supplementary information on cash flow statement 45 BERMERMERAER ()
(cont’d)
(3) Information on acquisition of a subsidiary during the (8) KFERZF el iHE 15 5
year: (cont’d) (%)

As at 21 August 2015, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. from
Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd. and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB104,800,000.
After the acquisition, Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd.
became a subsidiary of the Group.

R2015F8 A21H » A& H
LA (B A R 104,800,000
THEEREEBREERAR
A LEMREBR AR
ENRBRERRRTARAR
100% A& #E - RULEE TR 1&
BREBRETHARARKE
REBZFRAF] °

(4) Details of cash and cash equivalents (4) FE 2 FE 2 EEYRIIEK
2016 2015
ltem IEHH —E—REF —ET—hHF
Cash at bank and on hand Re 110,178,784 106,373,059
Including: Cash on hand Heb: EFRE 119,741 222,294
Bank deposits available AIRERF A Sy
on demand HRITIFK 110,059,043 74,650,765
Closing balance of cash and cash FRIR & &R & FEYHEE
equivalents 110,178,784 106,373,059
Including: Restricted cash and  H&F : S QFIHEBAT AR
cash equivalents held FAZRH RS
by the Company or REeZEEY
subsidiaries of the
Group - 31,500,000
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-

VI Interests in other entities V2N

1 Interests in subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

EHRfttERRED

1 EFRAEFHES
(1) AR HREE T B iFa

investment Fo Al
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual  investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
R LRy
FAERRE  RERR SEXAE
MR EXER  HEMER i) i) &E
2 B ERME  RERE ifEs #EEE k4] BH (%) () AiEE HRBRRE
Baishui Ancre  Company Limited Shaanxi, PRC~ Manufactre ~ USD17,125,000 Manufacture of juice, frut and  USD17,125,000 - 100% 100% Y 732664478
Juice Go., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sele of vegetable beverage, and
venture) condensed juice related products, and ron
packaging; and sale of own
products.
BARENRA ARAMAR  MEREE  BERMER 171500ET AEREAREL REMK 171500%T - 00% 100% B 130664478
TERAR  (PohaE) HE HRERERAEHRAR
VRN
Yantai Longkou Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufactre ~ USD12,235,000  Manufacture of juice and sale  USD12,235,000 - 100% 100% Y 787209715
Andre Juice  (Sino-forelgn joint and sale of of own products.
Co,, Ltd. venture) condensed juice
FeEnzefl AREAAT  HENRE  RERTEER 12006000FT LEREL UMEREE 1203500057 - 0% 100% B 131209715
FHMER (Pohad) e me
A7
Xuzhou Ancre  Company Limted Jiangsu, PRC~ Manufactre ~ USD10,000,000  Manufacture of juice, it~ USD10,000,000 - 100% 100% Yo 743134253
Juice Go., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of and vegetable beverage,
venture) condensed juice and related products; sale
of own products; and
manufacture of ron barrel
for juice outer packaging.
PHZENRE AREAAR  PELKE  RAERMER 1000000%T EERET HHREEE  1000000%7% - 0% 100% B 4313453

HRRAT  (RAaR) HE m HEREER i
WIaRER -
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VI Interests in other entities (cont’d) N EHMERPHER(E)
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARRHER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) #BiBK 7 I & F 75 2B ZH
investment (cont’d) Foa] (&)
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual  investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#eY
FATRRE  RERR SERAE
MR EXRR  HARER ith ih &&
) L ERME  REEE ihEs #eEE &8 L] (%) (o) &fEx HREERE
Andre Juice  Company Limited Britsh Virgn ~ Investment USD30,000  Investment holding. USD? = 100% 100% Y =
Co,, Ltd. [slands holaing
RENRIAR AREMNR  AREERES RAAR S000%T RERR - 3 - 0% 100% % -
A
North Andre ~ Company Limited The United ~ Sale of condensed ~ USD10,000  Sale of condensed juice. USD10,000 - 100% 100% Y -
Juice (USA) States of juice
Inc. America
EARENRY AREAAR  XE RERTEE 10000%7 RERTHE - 1000057 - 0% 100% % -
(X8R
RAR
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VI Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment (cont’d)

N EERfERSRER(R)

1 EFRAFRRES(E)
(1) AR HREE T B iFa

FRA(HE)
Closing balance
of other items
that in

substance Group Group

Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#eY
FATRRE  RERR RERAE
iR EXRR  HARER ith ih &&
) L ERME  REEE ihEs #eEE ik { | B (%) (o) &R HREERE
Dalian Andre ~ Company Limited Liaoning, PRC ~ Manufacture ~ RMBB0,000,000 Menufacture and sle of al - RMBB0,000,000 = 100% 100% Y 95004248-7
Juice Co,, Ltd. and sale of Kinds o frutt and vegetable
condensed juice beverage; biological
comprehensive Utization of
apple essence, vegetable
and pomace; and purchase
of agricultural and sideline
products (excluding grain);
and manufacture of iron
packaging; imports and
exports of goods and
technology.
NERENRA ARERAD  MEEEE  RAERMER 0000000 EEMERERAMIE 80,000,000 - 10% 100 B 0004087
ITERAT HE ARET  BRER B REN ARET

el - RalEn
(REERIUE - slfctsl
BRR - EARATELR
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VI Interests in other entities (cont’d) N EHMERBHER(E)
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARRHER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) #BiEK 7 K& F 75 2 BB
investment (cont’d) Foal(#E)
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name ~ Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
REL#eY
FATRRE  RERR RERAE
iR EXRR  HARER ith ih &&
) L ERME  REEE ihEs #eEE ik { | B (%) (o) &R HREERE
Binzhou Andre Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture ~ USD12,100,000 Menufacture of beverage, high  USD12,100,000 - 100% 100% Y 751757338
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of natural apple essence, and
venture) condensed juice iron packaging; biological
comprehensive Utization
of pomace, and other
extended products; winter
jujule storage; sale of own
products.
ENRENRT ARRADT  GENRE  RERMEER  200000%7 LERH ARAMERE  1210000%% - 0% 100% ®T51757338
HHERAT (Poak) HE 5 EERRR BB
e AR AE
m AREE HEALT
Ene
Yantal Andre  Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture and ~ USD4,832,000  Manufacture and processing  USD4,832,000 = 100% 100% Y T3066788-6
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint sale of fuit pulp of all kinds of fuit pulp and
venture) related products, and sale
of own products; wholesale
and import and export of
juice and pulp.
RazEtidn AREADE  wELRE  RREEREE  40000ET R NISEIERERE 4800081 - f0m 0% ® 730667886

HHERLA (P1aE)

BER tHEREER
itsReR  REomE
gL NEE -
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VI Interests in other entities (cont’d) N EEHMIFEDAHIES(E)
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFATDHREDS(E)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations (2) FE[A—H 4 TF DA GEESEY
not under common control FRE]
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of from net shareholding voting rights
Registration and Registered Year-end actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name  Type operation ~ Business nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
B LRy
FAERRE  RERR SEZAE
MR EXER  HEAER i) i) &E
20 L ERNE  RERE ifEs #EEE ik Bl (%) () AiEE HRBRRE
Yongj Ancte  Company Limted Shanxi, PRC  Producion USD12,960,000  Manufacture and sale of fruit ~ USD12,960,000 - 100% 100% Y 79638416-X
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of and vegetable juice and
venture) condensed juice Deverage, high natural apple
gssence, and biological
comprehensive Utiization of
pomace.
KERERRE AREAD  MEWRE  RERMEER  120000%7m 4EBESERET  1206000%m - 0% 100% B 79638415
TRRAA  (haE) e #H - BIERMERER
FRINEMRAAR -
Anyug Andre - Company Limted  Sichuan, PRC Production RMB50,000,000  Plant, manufacture and sale  RMBA0,000,000 - 100% 100% Y 569715959
Lemon and sale of of lemon; manufacture and
Industry condensed juice sale of lemon of, lemon
Technology essence, orange of and
Co, Ltd. Orange ssence.
REREM RRRANA  PEMNE  RERMEER  S000000 BE AR HEEE 50,000,000 - 0% 100% B 569715959
BREZHR e ARET  HEHERRR BR ARET
BRAR B B EERE
Liquan Yitong  Company Limted Shannxi, PRC~ Production ~ RMB100,000,000 Manufacture and sale of frut RMB100,000,000 - 100% 100% Y 586962759
Juice Co,, Ltd. and sele of and vegetable Juice and
condensed juice Deverage.
EXEARAT ARAMARD GEANEE  RERMEER 100000000 AE - HEARRET 100,000,000 - 0% 100% B 506962759
BRAR e ARET  fifl ARET
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
operations, which mainly include:

— Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Interest rate risk

— Foreign currency risk
— Other price risk

This following mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their
changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance.
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(1) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash at bank, receivables and investments,
ets. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

B &t T FL 48 BRAY B B

AEBEREERDTEGSESHT
HmREk - TEZ6HE

— ERER
—REMER
— R AR
—ERES

— EAbEEER

TCE 2wt bt R B i O Ko B AR
RRARERFRENEL - ERE
HEER  BEANEFANERRD
TEREERFHEENBSE o

AEEEERREENRERERR
Miga 2 BEGEE /T - HRE
1K< R e 39 A 5 B 75 S AR ) TN
FE - ENZEREERR - AKE
B I 78 [ B B 3R R R A g 51 A 0 4 R
SEMERNRR - REEEOER
A] 5 52K 3 3R AT AR ) PO AR 4R il A2
FoAEEASENRRKFE - K
SEeTHEHNELRAREERRK
BRAAMES RS - NERT SN
FAEEZLLERDHNE - AEED
M EPERET B PI L E HAkBE M mE RN &L
ZHIZEOBTREE T A AR ERIK

A

Eﬁ o

(1) EARE
EARKE  RESBRIEN—F
TRERBITER BB —HEE
HHBRNRR - AEBHER
EREBREEEED  BUK
BNRESE - EEESHEEE

BEERARMKO o
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions may
default and cause losses to the Group.

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under which
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
to determine the credit limit and terms applicable to the
customers. These evaluations focus on the customers’
financial position, the external ratings of the customers
and their bank credit records where available. Due
dates of receivables vary based on contracts. Debtors
with balances that past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data are
analysed by the Group according to some factors, such
as ageing and maturity date.

The ageing analysis of debtors that are past due but not

impaired based on individual or collective assessment is
set out as follows:

Past due period HARR

Past due within 6 months (inclusive) #EAGE B AR (Z61E A7)
BHeEAE1F(51F)

Past due within 6-12 months

(inclusive)
More than one year past due BEAF LA E
Total A&t
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+t RemT REMMEE(E)
(1) = AR (&)

AEEGRBRESMINEBRES T
EERRERARIITFOS BEE -
EEERRETFEEANER
Rk - BHTERASHTENM
FRANREERIER o

HREWFIE » AEBREREE
ZESERBEERBASIETE
RABUR - BRP#ETERTENU
ERIHBEEEEAAR - EA
FEEZREBEEPHT B
9|€‘|ﬁ$%&&ﬁ5’<ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ(ﬁDﬁT
c BEEMEWGRIERIZEAEES
1'7%%&@)15@)%5%?5 o JEWGRIE
BHNEFASHEREFER
EREERTE A AESHE—
THEREE - £ —RERT
AEETEERRFREETR R

o

RELARSENERARR » N&
I&ﬁ%ﬁ AHAERRHEAR
SENEFERETON ©
AREEHE B HELERD M
HE 77 AR ARBEN R
RENHROMAT

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF

9,981,450 -

230,644 -
1,673 -

10,213,767 -
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

+ HenT RAEMAEREE)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) SRR (E)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, 67% (2015: 53%) of the total accounts receivable
and other receivables were due from the ten largest
customers of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the
Group that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long-term strategic purposes, and counterparties
have equivalent or higher credit ratings than the Group.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

AEEERARARETERSESAEAR
FEAEFENTE MITERF
FrEMIT R KB R MA@ - F it
EAGEARBEFRHNEREER
EASEGFAEHENEFPAER
JEUWFRIE - REEAFERA - K
SE BB+ RE P /Y FEHEE R
& B i U BR 30N EL b B U R AR R
H167% (2015%F : 53%) ; AN
7 £ (8] 5K 180 B b, R R B A JE UK
TH F B2 B BN R A0 R R Y
RERFBBH -

AEE-—RASRERAERED
BRESF(REBRRERN)
MEXZHTMERFRAESR
HEANEEER - ERRHE T
MERMRRLY  ANEEEERE
YA BERAR ST @EEEITE
% o

LR B A A S B B K AE LB R
NOREERABERTEBESREE
MRESRE -  AREDRERHEM
]l Eo A AT BE < AN R B AR E A A
BREOTELR

—Z—RFEFH Annual Report 2016

189



Notes to the Financial Statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

+ HenT RAEMAEREE)

)

TRE R

mEBERRE  RECERERITNA
RNBeHEMEMEENTRA
RENEBRELEBESEROME
B ARBERZFRARAER S
MRSEETIF  BRASAEK
B IR EMERE ERIAEN TR
AREFR(MRERERBR L
BREELR  EREFAQA
EEgnitE) AKEHNRER
THELAEHNRENRDES
FR - URREFEERBHEN
BRIE @ NEREFTHNRERH
BNAHERERNEEZE S -
REFESTIEZSRBEARREHR
RANERES - UWinEHM
BEREWRBDESFEL -

AEEREEREBERANTSRA
BERAFTENGRBRSRE(ERE
RE RN E(MRZF N XAIZ
12 A1 BRBRTH )G EF
BIRRBRAOMR - AR EK
SNRFAHAT :

2016 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

D16FRARANAARLRE

More than ~ More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than balance

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  sheet date

15RE BEARE

ltem AR ERiEE 1£352% 2EB5E S5EHL &t EERE

Financial liabilties SRAR

Short-term loans BHER 345,065,019 - - - 345,065,019 340,000,000
Accounts payable and FERTERT R

other payables fEfizE 106,120,988 - - - 106,120,988 106,120,988

Long-term payables RAEER - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 803,553

Net amount At 451,186,007 - - 1,111,000 452,207,007 446,924,541
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

()

3)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

+ HenT RAEMAEREE)

(2) B R B ()

2015 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

DIFERTANERTEE

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years

1520F

More than Carrying
2 years but amount at
less than More than balance

5 years 5 years Total Shegt date
BERER

5E 5k Al FEEE

= - 497,962,884 485,170,000

109,212,200 109,212,200
= 1,111,000 1,111,000 766,519

= 1,111,000 608,286,084 595,148,719

Within
1 year or
on demand
15
ltem BB EHER
Financial liabilties EHAR
Short-term loans RHE 497,962,884
Accounts payable and FEM IR R A
other payables JERTFIIE 109,212,200
Long-term payables RHEMT -
Net amount At 607,175,084
Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into

financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(3) FEmk

B EF R FF B F R E & B
TEDRIEAKEHERAEE
MERERLBESRENERAR -
AEBERETHREFORTE B E
MEEFBF R T AMELH - 3
BREHEHNEESEREEN
BEFfEBMETABEE - K&
B3 R PADT A & B T R A &
R
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) + Hep T RAERMAIRBE (1)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)

(3) FI=mbz (&)

(a) As at 31 December, the Group held the following (a) FXEER 12831 H#FH:1E
interest-bearing financial instruments: ST AT -
Fixed rate instruments: BEIEFfIESMTA :
2016 2015
- 22 “E-1fF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem A {415 & BIH% &%
Financial assets SREE
- Other current assets —HitmEEE 2.2%+~1.3% 25,300,000 6.30%~9.80% 86,000,000
Financial liabilties 2RER
- Short-term loans —BHEH 3.92%~4.35% (270,000,000) 1.93%~5.56% (387,468,000)
Total GH (244,700,000) (301,468,000)
Variable rate instruments: FEHAEEMTA:
2016 2015
ZZ-RE “ET-RE
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
Item EH FfE & % Ex
Financial assets SHEE
- Cash at bank —H{OER 0.01%~1.75% 110,059,043 0.01%-~1.75% 106,150,765
- Available-for-sale financial assets —AHEHESBEE No less than 10% 20,100,000 - -
FER10%
Financial liabilties FHER
- Short-term loans —EHfER Base rate/ (70,000,000) Base rate+ (97,702,000)
Shibor+5% 10%/Libor+2%
RiETIH/ REFE F1710%
Shibor+5% JLibor+2%
Total At

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. &L HFZERRTBRHERA A
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s equity by RMB225,596 (2015: RMB31,683),
and net profit by RMB225,596 (2015: RMB31,6883).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
impact on the net profit and equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and payable, short-term loans and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

+ HenT RAEMAEREE)

(8) =R (&)

(b) BEEIEDHT
R2016F 12 A31H » EHEAM
BETENBERT - BEFX
EASOEER S B AER
P& R AE 25 18 i A R #5225,596
Jr(2015 F: # A R ¥
31,6837T) ' FFEEMAR
# 225,596 7 (20154F : & N
AR#31,6837T) °

HREERBRAFANERN
SEmERAR BEMEERN
TRTHE  EASRESTH
HEMBERRRERNRZER
BRREEERBRANKRELE
BE - RRIMAEY iR
TRETENFTERNTE -
HREERBXRAKAN - £
AEEHEERRSRENXER
BVFBRIRIEDTAET A - bat
RN D AT BFE R R AR
RENFER LN EREEHY
BEELENFEERIBA
MEE - L—FRENDINER
R RERFTA

(4) EEREE
HRTRAREAVEAENE
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(@) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi,
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date.
Differences resulting from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements and the description of
other exposure items that are excluded.

+ HenT RAEMAEREE)

(4) ERRERGE)
(a) AEBER12A31 B &N
AEAEEE EXRK D0
T o HRZIEREE - RO
SHEUARKEIIR - LWEESR
BEXRBAHERTE - JhEER
RIMEZMABEENRN -

2016 2015
—E-RE¥ “T-hF

Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at

foreign RMB foreign RMB

currency equivalent currency equivalent

" wE

[tem JHH e84 AR#E HNEEERER AREEE
Cash at bank and BEEEs

on hand

Usb EViH 13,586,237 94,247,726 8,819,244 57,268,642

HKD 7B 511,214 457,281 599,254 502,055
Accounts receivable JE LBR 5k

UshD ETT 23,872,407 165,602,887 6,046,400 39,262,900
Accounts payable FETBR IR

Usb ETT (5,554,347) (38,530,506) (4,774,524) (31,003,847)
Short-term loans EHIE R

UshD ETT - - (12,500,000) (81,170,000)

Net balance sheet BEAERMO
exposure Pt
UshD T 31,904,297 221,320,107 (2,408,880) (15,642,305)
HKD Vot 511,214 457,281 599,254 502,055
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) + Hep T RAERMAIRBE (1)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (4) EXmEk(E)
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi (b) A5 B E AN R EE 51NEAY
against foreign currencies applied by the Group: FER D Mrzn s -

Reporting date

Average rate mid-spot rate
FHES BEATEESE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —ThF —E-RE —T—RF
HKD Bk 0.8662 0.8134 0.8945 0.8378
Usb ETT 6.7153 6.3063 6.9370 6.4936
(c) Sensitivity analysis (c) BBIESIT
Assuming all other risk variables remained constant, 18R TE Bk B =R LA SN AY L 4t 2 g 28
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US ETE - AEER12A31R
dollar and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would AR TA KR E RS
have increased/(decreased) the Group’s equity and B{E A REABES% K E B
net profit by the amount shown below, whose effect R FF A BRI, Cfl
is in Renminbi and translated using the spot rate at DYBRINT o Ik EBIREE
the year-end date. BEXRBHNHEXRFTERAR
BB o
Equity Net profit
BERES BFE
As at 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H
UsbD = (7,200,409) (7,200,409)
HKD Nadics (17,148) (17,148)
Total BFT (7,217,557) (7,217,557)
As at 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H
UsD Y 586,586 586,586
HKD B (18,827) (18,827)
Total A&t 567,759 567,759
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)
A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US dollar
and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would have
had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.
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VIl Fair value disclosure

The following information presents the fair value information
and the fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current
reporting period, of the Group’s assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date on a
recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which fair value
measurement is categorised is determined by the level of the
fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

Level 1 inputs:  unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets that are observable at the
measurement date for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are
either directly or indirectly observable for
underlying assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs:  inputs that are unobservable for
underlying assets or liabilities.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

LRREMNEE

LTAAEEEEHEEAGERAR
BISERFE AR R BEFTENEEMN
BERAREHRNAAEBEREER

HEAREBEAENER - AR EBER
%%%Fﬁﬁl’mﬂlﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ
EEEMEAEEEEEEZNREER
E’Ji??\fﬁ o = & [ )X ¥ A B Y TE 2 10

N

_‘

F—EBREAE: EFFEHEHIF
MERBESRAE
FERR™ IS EARK
FBORE

F_BRBANE: BE-REBRBAE
SMAREER AR
ERXHEERATER
BB AE

FZERBAE: HBAEEXREN
THEEHAE -
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VIl Fair value disclosure (cont’d)

AN

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair

value at the end of the year

Item EH Note  FisE
Recurring falr value BENLAERENE
measurements
Financial assets at fair value AR EETZR
through profit or loss LG L RN
BREMEREE V.2 E 2
Trading financial assets RPN EREAE
Equity instruments ERTERE
Available-for-sale MEHESREE
financial assets V-9 59
Equity instruments ESTARE
Other current assets HtneEE Vg #8
Avallable-for-sale AfHEeREE
financial assets
Equity instruments ERIERE

Total assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

RENAABEEHN
BELE

198  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

RRESE(])

5
|

1 UAREETE
ERAREBE

i

31 December 2016
—Z-E¥+-A=1+-H

EEMREN

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value Fair value Fair value
measurement measurement measurement Total
F—BR E_BR BZER
AREEHE OREEHE  OAREHE At
7,833,191 - - 7,833,191
- 21,314,443 - 21,314,443
- 26,127,321 - 26,127,321
7,833,191 47,441,764 - 55,274,955
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VIII Fair value disclosure (cont’d) I\ AREEOEE(E)
1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair 1 UAREBEFTENEENEEGN
value at the end of the year (cont’d) FRANEE(E)
31 December 2015
“Z-Rf+-fA=t+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value Fair value Fair value
measurement  measurement  measurement Total
F—ER =/ FZER
ltem JEH Note Mzt AABEHE QAABEHE LALEEHE At
Recurring falr value BENLAERE
measurements
Other current assets EneEE V8§ T8
Avallable-for-sale financial assets Al HELRERE
Equity instruments ESTARE - 86,178,356 - 86,178,356
Total assets measured at far ~ HEUALEEFEMN
valug on a recurring basis BELR - 86,178,356 - 86,178,356

Reasons for transfers between different levels, and
the policy about the timing of those transfers for items
under the recurring fair value measurements

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
transfers between different levels of the Group’s above
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. The Group recognises transfers between
different levels at the end of the current reporting period
during which such transfers are made.

BENQAAEBETTEER » &F
ABEZER2EERY  Hig
R E R EEEREINEBR
R2016FF » ANEE Ll #F48
AREEFENEENEBESE
RZBREZEER - NEEE
ERAEEBEFHREBHRER
B EIX 2 R o

Current changes in valuation techniques and the FERBENGERTRERS
reasons ERE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
changes in valuation techniques for the recurring fair value
measurements.

R2016FE ' AEE EMFER
REEEERANGEERML
REEEET o
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IX Related parties and related party transactions

1 Information on the subsidiaries of the Company
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company,
refer to Note VI.1.

2 Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties

RitmBin &8

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEEBRAR

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
G—E(RE)REERAA

Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.

BMGE—tEBRATF
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.

KEGF—EEXRRERADA
Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.
MeRBESRENERNERAF
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
HMEREMNRBRABRAR
Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd.
MazERESARAA

Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
BREBRNERRA

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.

e ERAEFRAA

Yantai Xinping Jian’an Co., Ltd.
BamTELIRERAF

h BBLRABRZS

1 ARARNFLREER

ARANFRAEHER

N e

2 HitEABSIER

Related party relationship
B RE

2 5

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HAREEREATENEX()

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HASEEREAYENEE()

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China)
Investment Co., Ltd.

G—rEHE)REBRARNTFAR

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China)
Investment Co., Ltd.

S—E(RE)REFRAFANTF AR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZEFEEBRARNFAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

RZEFREBRARNFAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEBERARNTAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZEFEEBRARINFAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEEERARNTAR

An entity which was controlled by chairman’s relative

AREEERABEHNEE

() Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President () WREZEFNEEFRARFMEE—

Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. exercised
their significant influence over the Company through
their representation on the board of directors of the

Company.
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IX Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

3 Transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out as follows.
Apart from the items disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under the section “Connected Transactions”,
all the material related party transactions disclosed below
did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Related party transactions

Sales of goods and HE R m R
service RS
Purchases of goods and ~ BEEmEm&
service BESE
Purchases of assets BEEEE
Storage incomes BERERA
Operating lease charges ~ &&HEER
Rental income HEWA
Equity transfer incomes ~ AX#EEEEUR A
Provision of fund REES
Fund received WEE S

Proceeds from borrowings & t&5k
Repayments of borrowings {EE &5
Receivable for others RUEIE

Note
i

h BELRABRZS(E)

3 BBXZER

HZE2016F12A31HILLFE @ K
= E R ETO T A&
2R BEBEEREESHRE
WIBER S | — &9 FiE it
BPEZEABEB IS TEEX
R ETHRAE1AAZTRTE B TER

(1) BB 5

The Group The Company

F%E F27
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-HF ZEB-RE —T-HF
42,601,403 106,554,107 34,364,332 91,527,960
22,364,766 784,373 563,003,153 375,781,716
27,375,070 1,376,068 36,188,798 15,883
108,428 2,756,189 = -
- 352,043 - 352,043
729,890 - 729,890 -
- 58,410,400 - 29,205,200
- - - 211,493,413
- - 273,355,938 -
60,000,000 - 60,000,000 -
60,000,000 7,770,201 60,000,000 -
12,544 - - -

() Purchases of investment properties, fixed assets
and intangible assets represent the amounts paid
by the Group in purchasing the office building and
land use rights located at 889 Xincheng Street,
Muping District, Yantai from Yantai Andre Pectin

Co. Ltd.

() BEREEFEHE  BE
BEMENEEREAS
EEEEE ZBNRER
MERABLRNBEE TS
F @ FT A H 889 K A
120 1 5 AR P SN Y

A e
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IX Related parties and related party transactions h RABAREABES(E)
(cont’d)

3 Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 3 BEEBXZER(E)

(1) Related party transactions (cont’d)

(i) Rental income represents the rent generated from
leasing part of the Group’s office building located
at 889 Xincheng Street, Muping District, Yantai to
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

(iii) Equity transfer incomes represent the gain on
disposal of the equity interest in Yantai Tongli
Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. by the Company
and Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

(iv) Borrowings represent the amount borrowed from
Andre Group Ltd. by the Group for daily operation
activities.

(v) Repayment of loans represents the amount repaid
to Andre Group by the Group.
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IX Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors
and supervisors. Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group is as follows:

The Group
[tem EHH
Remuneration of key A B IE A B R

management personnel

The Company

ltem 5 H

St

Remuneration of key FAREEAR
management personnel

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015, no emoluments were paid to the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss
of office. For the year ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015, no fees or any other emoluments
were waived by directors or supervisors.

REA

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

h BELRABRZS(E)

3 EBXZER(R)
2) FBREEABMNFE

MREEABZREEINE
TEERAEERE - FEMNE
HIREEEBIAR - BEAN
SENEENES - HHERE

12 A BHEMMT :
=%
2016 2015
—®—Xx% -T-I1F

2,979,649 2,432,625

3/

2016 2015
ZE—RE —T—AF

2,035,378 1,526,093

HE2016F12A31HIEEE
N2015F 12 A31HILFE -
AREBRARNGTAREE K
EEE Y EMBN & AVE ARSI
E AR B H) 2B ok BBt 1
8 - #Z=2016%F12 8318 1k
FER2015F12 A31H IEF
B EZHEEHENEED
S EMEE o

—Z—RFEFH Annual Report 2016

203



Notes to the Financial Statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

IX Related parties and related party transactions h RABAREABES(E)

(cont’d)
4 Receivables from and payables to related parties 4 RS EWEN IR
The Group The Company
$5H F4F
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20154 20165 2015%F
12A31H 124318 12A31H 12H31H
Accounts receivable  FEUARFK 8,935,126 1,762,385 10,912,221 18,147,374
Dividends receivable  fEUAZF = - 60,572,440 56,822,440
Other receivables E At E U TR 5,324 28,654,071 333,736,008 605,438,723
Accounts payable JETER K 4,073,137 2,795,971 1,446,837 190,261,636
Advances from TEURBR K
customers = 72,466 = =
Other payables HoAh FERT R - - 101,204,013 117,961,572
5 Guarantee 5 PBIEIER
(1) The Company as a guarantor (1) AR EIERBERT
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
Name of guarantee RERE ERER
R REEHE BEEBITESE EReE ELBETTER
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Y N
ZEFRTBR AR 50,000,000 & 50,000,000 B
Total

A&f 50,000,000 50,000,000
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IX Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

5 Guarantee (cont’d)

@)

3)

The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

R

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR EREEARA T

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBRRE

Total

At

The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

ERT

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZEFEEBR QA

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBRRE

Total

At

(B 15 Bz RS )
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P REREBARET)

h BELRABRZS(E)

5 BABHER (B
2) REBERWIERY

549,500,000

856,500,000

2016 2015
—E—RE “T-hF
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BRER ERER
RREHE CRETEE ERerm ERETTE
N N
210,000,000 & 289,000,000 £
Y Y
339,500,000 & 567,500,000 =
549,500,000 856,500,000
(8) KL\ EIERBEIERTT
2016 2015
—Z—RE —T—hF
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BRER ERER
RR&E CRETES ERE2HE ERETTE
N N
210,000,000 & 289,000,000 £
Y Y
339,500,000 & 567,500,000 =
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X Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed
terms of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The balances of related party transactions are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes short-term
loans and long-term payables) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less related-party loans with no fixed repayment
terms and cash and cash equivalents.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Commitments and Contingencies

Significant commitments
(1) Capital commitments

[tem IHH

Signed contracts for acquisition
of fixed assets being or to be
executed

(2) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
the Group and the Company had no non-cancellable
operating leases.

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding
litigations and arbitration and related financial impact
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from
outstanding litigations and arbitration.

Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees provided
for other entities and related financial impact

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group did not provide guarantees in respect of the bank
loans of other company.

ERFTHEAERERETH
BEEERESR

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

- RERBRAER

BEERHEE

(1) BEFAE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—hF
1,155,350 2,056,017

(2) #EEFHEAIE
R20164% 12 431 H k20154
12A31BLEFE  REE R
ZiN/NEI DR =N B =l o bl

Stk o

RAFABAMPBERNIEEER
Heigse g
MR2016412 A31H k20154124
31H @ AEERERAFRMFE
FERHSEEE -

AHMBEVREEKEREAN
REEEREMESE
M2016%12 A31H k20154124
318 ' AEE SR B RHMENIE
HEBER -
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIl Subsequent events - EERARFAESER
1 Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date 1 EEAGEXRBAFABIEIBERG
3
2016 2015
ltem IHH —Z-RE —"ZT—hF
Dividends proposed ¥ R REF 18,400,000 19,050,000

Dividends approved and declared KE=EIES SR MARA
18,400,000 19,050,000

On 15 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed the BEEeR2017F3A 158 %

appropriation of a cash dividend of RMB0.05 per share A Al A REIKE20164F EH &
to the Company’s shareholders for 2016. The proposal is AR A - B RRIRZEARFIA K %0.05
subject to approval by the shareholders’ general meeting. Lo WWIERZEHFRREAGH
Such cash dividends are not recognised as a liability at HE o REEBERB B EIRS
the balance sheet date. WIRERFTREEEBERXRA

ERBAME -

On 16 March 2016, the Board of Directors proposed the EE2N2016F3H16 HIRZE K
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMB0.05 per share AaEl M RERIKZE2015F EH ¢
to the Company’s shareholders for 2015. The proposal f&F) - &A% K 2R FI A R 0.05
was approved by the shareholders’ general meeting on IT ° HTBIRZ N 2016FE5 826 H
26 May 2016. KRR A g R -
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIll Other significant items T HthEEEIR
DEBRE
AEETBHEE KL HBREE
AESERGER RIABESR - I
RIBHRAMIRY @ FIAREESR

BRBEZEEDHESR o

Segment reporting

The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, and provision
of juice processing services, therefore the Group has not
disclose any further information with respect to reportable
segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income AT RAEBIZRE R 7 H) &

from external customers is set out as follows: N

2016 2015
Geographical location & ZZE—-RE —ZT—hF
China F 211,713,682 269,969,334
North America JbEM 222,438,324 181,016,875
Asia (excluding China) EEVAIGRIEIPEY ) 145,334,640 153,036,171
Europe &M 178,883,380 125,716,997
Oceania NEI 73,311,219 70,333,837
Africa e 43,515,867 17,897,265
Total &5t 875,197,112 817,970,479

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of non-current
assets located overseas is RMB304,689 (2015: RMB285,213).

MR2016F 12 A31H » REEEHE
INEENIERBEERTEAEARE
304,6897C(20154F : AR #285,213
JC) °
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5t 35 ¥R AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

X1l Other significant items (cont’d) T HEERR(E)
Segment reporting (cont’d) DEBER & (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has 1 HZE2016F12A31BIEFE  EX
customer (2015: 1 customer), the operating income from EERFR REBKERE—RFE
which is over 10% of the Group’s total operating income. The WA AR EEBIRA10%HA EHE
operating income from this customer represents approximately FEE20154F : 1) » AL AEE
16% of the Group’s total operating income (2015: 13%). The #EWIE A16% (20154 : 13%) o K 1
income amount of this customer is set out as follows: ZEEZEHIWASZEY RO
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—RF
Geographical Geographical
Customers location Amount location Amount
P HE & Hh [ 28
Customer 1 Europe 136,489,250 Europe below 10% of
the Group’s
total operating
income
B Ex M 136,489,250 M EREE
W AEI10%
Customer 2 Asia below 10% of Asia 109,983,199
(excluding the Group’s (excluding
China) total operating China)
income
EPF2 EM BREE =M 109,983,199

(FRELLSH) W AHI10% (FREIASM)

210  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements

1

Cash at bank and on hand

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

th BAFRMBERREEREEE

ltem 15 H
Cash on hand RE
Deposits with banks RITIF X
Total &5t

1 E¥ES
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—hHF
92,860 188,504
84,375,346 44,660,935
84,468,206 44,849,439

As at 31 December 2016, there are no cash at bank
and on hand with restrictions placed on the Company’s
ownership (2015: 31,500,000).

M2016F12 A31H * A" AGEAEFT
EEZIBHNEEE S (20154 :
AR#31,500,0007T) °

Accounts receivable

(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

Type $a R
Subsidiaries FAEl
Other related parties )N
Third parties F=5
Sub-total NEF

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

2 BUWIRR

(1) KRS IIRFZ WL T
2016 2015
—B—RF —F-RF
10,605,691 17,447,502
306,530 699,872
126,422,690 72,323,573
137,334,911 90,470,947
2,553,740 -
134,781,171 90,470,947
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

2 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing

Within 6 months (inclusive)

After 6 months but within 1 year
(inclusive)

After 1 year but within 2 years
(inclusive)

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

R

6fEAAAA(Z61EA)
6EAE1F(E15F)

1EZE2F(524F)

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

(3) Addition, recovery or reversal of provision for bad and

doubtful debts during the year:

Balance at the beginning of
the year

Additions during the year

Written-off during the year

Balance at the end of the year

FHERE

REGHE
REAZIH

FARERE
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th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#8)

2 BWERR(E)

2) EWIR IR IR T -

2016 2015
—2—-RF —T—REF
122,036,787 73,023,445
15,121,747 17,447,502
176,377 =
137,334,911 90,470,947
2,553,740 =
134,781,171 90,470,947

Rk B A AR SK IR B R Rt At E -

(3) ANFEF1E W [o] 3 #2 0] 49 EE R

REER -
2016 2015
—®-—x%E  —T-n%
3,422,029 —
(868,289) =
2,553,740 —




Notes to the Financial Statements

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

3 Prepayments
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

(Expressed in Renm.

+

ltem HH

Third parties F=5

Less: Provision for bad and R AR
doubtful debts

Total =

(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:

Ageing IR
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ELAR(E14)

B %5 Ak Y A

inbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIFEEAS) » 2 FEE [ B ARET)

BARMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

3 FEfRFE
(1) FATHESEE5 R0 T -

2016 2015
—B—RF Ik Sl S
503,997 511,597
503,997 511,597

2) ENHELRER S TAT

2016 2015
—B—AF s
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 EE (%) &5 L1511 (9%)
503,997 100% 511,597 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

prepayments are recognised.

fric BB SRR B AERLA

s
=&
A=+ °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables
(1) Other receivables analysis by type are as follows:

@)

Type
Subsidiaries

Related parties
Third parties

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad and

doubtful debts

Total

Rl

ERAG]
2 Bt

o

E=F
it

B IERRER

The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)
Over 3 years

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad and

doubtful debts

Total

ARl

1FELAR(E1E)
3FEPAE

Nt

R

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

other receivables are recognised.

(3) As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
the Company did not hold any other receivables which
were denominated in foreign currency.

214 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&ait AR EFRTROERLDF

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#8)
4 EAftpEWR

(1) BfbERSILIRFN DT

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
333,730,684 605,438,723
5,324 =
4,172,891 4,222,837
337,908,899 609,661,560
3,987,685 3,987,685
333,921,214 605,673,875

2) BB IRRE ST -

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZET—hHF
333,921,214 605,673,875
3,987,685 3,987,685
337,908,899 609,661,560
3,987,685 3,987,685
333,921,214 605,673,875

AR B H At FE YR RE R B AR R

R

(3) ®B2016412 A31H &20154F
12H381H - NAREINEH

il FE UK o
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
4 Other receivables (cont’d) 4 EMEWRK(E)

(4) For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 (4) EZ=2016%F 12831 H &2015
December 2015, the Company had no individually F12A31BLFE - X7
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision RAEWE S EB AR FEDS 2
which had been fully or substantially provided for in FEak LAB A L Bl EHIR I BR
prior years. B EL At FE LR o

5 Inventories 5 78
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FES4E
2016 2015

21§ “T-1F

Provision for Provision for
impairment Carrying impairment Carrying
Book value of inventories amount Book value  of inventories amount
ltem FERE IREH BEER FEEE REHE HEERE REEE

Raw materials and ~ RHE R EE

packaging materials 7,425,786 - 7,425,786 6,700,285 - 6,700,285
Finished goods ER @ 122,823,452 - 122,823,452 90,258,397 - 90,258,307
Total = 130,249,238 - 130,249,238 96,958,682 - 96,958,682
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no R2016512 A31 A 20154
inventories were pledged as security by the Company. 12A318 » ARFRAEAR

BRITEE o
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

th BAFRMERREEREEE

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

216  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itA R EFRTROERL T

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
5 Inventories (cont’d) 5 FE(#E)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the (2) KRl FEZE &N 54
year is as follows: o
2016 —E—RF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
Item FERR 3] - EFERAME XEROE FEXGH
Raw materials and packaging FEMR ke
materials 6,700,285 68,729,700 68,004,199 7,425,786
Finished goods ERk 90,258,397 639,461,265 606,896,210 122,823,452
Sub-total INat 96,958,682 708,190,965 674,900,409 130,249,238
Less: Provision for impairment I : TS B (BER
of inventories = = = =
Total &&r 96,958,682 708,190,965 674,900,409 130,249,238
2015 —E-hEF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
ltem FERR FAERE R KERDE EREAE
Raw materials and EMB ke
packaging materials 5,766,302 96,976,658 96,042,675 6,700,285
Finished goods ER 68,792,379 536,904,989 515,438,971 90,258,397
Sub-total g 74,558,681 633,881,647 611,481,646 96,958,682
Less: Provision for impairment i, : F S % (B%EE
of inventories - - - -
Total At 74,558,681 633,881,647 611,481,646 96,958,682




6 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable
Available-for-sale financial assets at
fair value at the end of the period:
— Beixinruifeng No.008 specific
asset management scheme
— Income right collective trust
scheme of Tenghai Agriculture
— Harvest Wealth Cash
Management No.3
— Working capital loan collective
trust scheme of Kaidi Electric
Power
— Bank wealth management
products

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

ER]

FFRINIRERE R

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

th BAFRMERREEREEE

(#)
6 HtRBEE

HREAABEAENTHEE

— i EmE008 R FREEE IR

A&l

—BRRRKEES

at &l

BERIEF

—REVERSEEREINR

—YLEENRBETERE

BES(EFETE

—RITEMER

At

As at 31 December 2016, the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Company is RMB25,300,000
(2015:RMB86,000,000). The total amount of changes in
the fair value attributable to other comprehensive income

is RMB827,321 (2015: RMB178,356).

As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale financial
assets held by the company will be due within a year.

2016 2015
ZB—R"E _—TIF
47,398,723 49,623,213
20,827,321 -

= 10,112,754

- 50,000,000

- 11,065,602
5,300,000 15,000,000
73,526,044 135,801,569

R20165FE12A831H » "RARIEE
A LRI R ES REERA A
AR#25,300,0007T (20154 : A
R #86,000,0007T) © &tst AE
iR e =N AR BEEES &R
BAREE27,3217T(20154F : A
R#178,3567T) °

MN2016%E12 8318 » AATIFE

WA LAHLESREETHR
—FREHE -
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

7 Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

7 THEHESREE
FREAABEFENAHLE

of the year: SREE
2016 2015
ltem 5 H —E-RFE —"T—HF
Merger and acquisition fund collective Bl& 2 FHBEESESERET
trust scheme of Guojin Quantum B 10,872,251 =
EBI Harvest Yunfan NO.1 Private AZEBEEM1FRRERELS
Equity Investment Fund e 10,442,192 -
Total =5l 21,314,443 -

As at 31 December 2016, the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Company is RMB20,100,000.
The total amount of changes in the fair value attributable
to other comprehensive income is RMB1,214,443.

As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale financial
assets held by the company will be due in year 2020.

218  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERL T

R20165F12A831H » "ARIEE
A LA EESREERTA
AR #20,100,0007T © Eitst A
HiiraWEN A BEEES S
KA AREA214,4437C °
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
8 Long-term equity investments 8 RERERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) RERERESIELIT -
follows:

2016 2015
ltem 1E58 —E—RE —T—HF
Investments in subsidiaries HFARIMIRE 573,355,647 573,355,647
Less: Provision for impairment W BB 2 2,952,947 =
Total aaf 570,402,700 573,355,647

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the (2) REJfRIER &K FZE)S T 7
year are as follows: WL
2016 —E—RE
Book value of long-term equity investment
RAREREEERE
Balance of
provision for Voting
At At impairment Shareholding rights Cash
Investment 1 January Increase/ 31 December Provisionfor at the end percentage  percentage dividend
cost 2016 Decrease 2016 impairment  of the year (%) (%) forthe year
EHRE  EHRE
KEHR  WEER  BARR  EfRM

Investeg RREEN BEns 1818 SBWED  12BMR  WEER  EREE  HAG)  HA() FERRLH
Cost method-subsidiares HAE-T07
Baishui Andre Juce Co, Ltd. ~ EKREMRATARAT 110630180 110630130 - 110630130 - - 75% 75% -
Vantai Longou Andre Juice RRENRENRIHH

Co, Ltd. BRAT 80,622,696 80,622,696 - 8062269 = = 75% 75% =
Yuzhou Andre Juce Co, it GHZEHRETERAT 58645418  5B645418 - 645418 - - 75% 5% 3750000
Andre Juice Co, Lid. ZENZ AR 8 8 - 8 - - 100% 100% -
Dalian Andre Juice Co,, Lt RERERRAERLT 56000000 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 - - 0% 0% -
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid.  EMEZEMRITHHARAR 107803488 107893488 - 107893488 - - 75% 75% -
Vanta Andfe Juice Co, Ltd RAZEHRTAAERAT 30000000 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 - - 75% 75% -
Yongjl Andre Juice Co,, Lt. KEREHERTARAD 7743907 TTA43907 - T A9 - - 75% 75% -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry TEREREERNR

Technology Co,, Lid. KA 52,120,000 52,120,000 - 49167068 (2952.947)  (2952,947) 100% 100% =
Totd At 573,365,647 573,365,647 - 570402700 (2952%47)  (2,952.947) 3,750,000
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

8 RERERE(R)
2) RERIEREXFEEER D
T (&)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movemenr of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)

2015 e
Book value of long-term equity investment
RERERERERR
A At Shareholding  Voting rights
Tdanuary — Increase/ 31 December  percentage  percentage  Cash dvidend
nvestment cost 015 Decrease 215 (%) () forthe year
FiRE  ERRR
Bl EEE
Investee HREE famia 1818 ERE8  RME bl afie) AERLMH
Cost method-subsidiares BE-T
Balshu Andre Juice Co,, Ltd. BKEET J%mﬁﬁ’ﬂ 110630,130 110,630,130 - 110630130 75% 75% -
Vantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Lid. RREDZEFIZHRERAT 80,622,696 8062269 - 806226% 75% 75% -
Yuzhou Andre Jduice Co,, L. BNRENRRITARAE 58045418 58645418 - GBau5418 75% 75% -
Anche Juice Co,, Lid. ZENRITERAE 8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
Dallan Andre Juice Co, Lid. NERENFRITARLE 56,000,000 56,000,000 - 56,000000 75% 75% -
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid. ENREAZ T HEERA 107893488 107,893,408 - 107893488 75% 75% -
Yantai Andre Juice Co., Lt. fazEi®tHEaRAT 30,000,000 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 75% 75% -
Yongii Andre Juice Co,, L. KERENRRTAR DA AT 77443907 - TT 43007 75% 75% -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry FERETEEERRARAT
Technology Co,, Ld. 52120000 52,120,000 - 52120000 100% 100% -
Sl i Sisdoephr SageMT D Saweswo :
Equity method-joint verture ERE-550%
Yantal Tongl Beverage BafE IR ERA
Industres Co,,Lid. 2500006 19476107 (19476,107) - - - -
Subrtota 5t 50006 18418107 (947810 - -
Toid At 598355673 502631754 (10.476,107) 573366647 -
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out VAN _JEI’WFH =B 2R
in note VI.1. W%E/\ o
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
9 Investment properties 9 REMEHE
Investment properties are accounted for using the cost BN ENEEEEE -
model:
Plant & buildings Land use rights Total
BEEREZEY TitfER#E =H
Cost JR1E
At 1 January 2016 201651 A1H - - -
Additions during the period AN
- Purchases —BE 12,530,721 2,828,187 15,358,908
— Transfers from fixed assets —BEEEHA 11,026,384 - 11,026,384
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 23,557,105 2,828,187 26,385,292

Accumulated depreciation or BRI EM R
amortisation

At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H - - -

Charge for the year AN HRFTHE Sk 8 (458,068) (42,944) (501,012)

Transfers from fixed assets BE&EEE A (4,863,708) - (4,863,708)

At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H (5,321,776) (42,944) (5,364,720)
Carrying amounts IREEE

At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 18,235,329 2,785,243 21,020,572

At 1 January 2016 201641 H1H - - -
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board of the HZE2016F12HA31HILFE © K
Group has determined to transfer the buildings held for SEESZTgRTE HARKRRA
earning rental income from fixed assets to investment TRENFEEZEYHETEEE
properties. These investment properties include two office HAZREMRHE - ZHEMHE
buildings, certain commercial units located in Yantai BHESELNRETETLE
Muping Economic Development Zone. The total carrying AEEAMRENAE  HETEY
amount of the investment properties is RMB6,162,676 WS RNEAHBNERE
at the date of transfer. BEAETAARY6,162,6767T °
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

10 Fixed assets

(1) Details of fixed assets

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

ltem

Cost
At 1 January 2015
Additions during the year
- Purchases

— Transfers from construction in progress

Disposals or written-offs during the year
At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Additions during the year

- Purchases from third parties
Reductions during the year

- Disposals

- Transferred into investment properties
Reclassification

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals or written-offs during the year

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Addtions during the year
- Charge for the year
Reductions during the year
- Disposals
- Transferred into investment properties
Reclassification

At 31 December 2016

Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2016

At 31 December 2016

Garrying amounts
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

L L

FE
201561718
REE]

-BE

-ERIREA
TERETHE
2015F12A318
2016E1A1H
REE]

-BE
$¢ﬁg

-RE
-B\RELRIE
BERRIER

20165128318
ZithE
2015E1 A1
AEEHR
AERETRE
2015%12R318

20161718
REEN

-RE
-BARENFHE
AERAR

20165 12A31H

HEEE
2016E1A1H

20165127318

REEE
2016512318

2015F12A318

REEFZEFNRTROBRIF

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#])
10 EEEE
(1) BIEZEIBL
Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor

buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total

BER HORER
BEY BERE AR ERIA At
100,728,421 123,726,874 7,906,763 4,062,351 236,424,409
2,061,772 1,270,499 69,547 98,291 3,490,109
6,604 = = = 6,604
= = (661,510) (826,474) (1,487,984)
QSIS ARTNG TIMAO 3T 245810
102,786,797 124,997,373 7,314,800 3,334,168 238,433,138
11,989,707 9,673,056 233,810 157,463 22,054,036
(1,638,815) (2,701,054) (1,554,435) (313,399) (6,207,703)
(11,026,384) - - - (11,026,384)
(4,310,793) 4,310,793 - - -
_Upaddl Rl Boihd | Gihep el
(30,257,482)  (64,210,429) (6,727,098) (3,443,130)  (104,638,139)
(1,880,940) (4,693,374) (30,865) (22,761) (6,627,940)
- - 443,705 467,957 911,662
leaii (RURt  ledkds) Jasknd (s
(32,138,422)  (68,903,803) (6,314,258) (2,997,934)  (110,354,417)
(3,381,774) (4,506,665) (27,112) (24,458) (7,940,609)
1,245,902 2,357,451 1,452,448 252,059 5,307,860
4,863,708 - - - 4,863,708
290,979 (290,979) - - -
S ST A R 022 RN 0SS0 1 20
- (480,787) - - (480,787)
________ B
68,680,905 64,455,385 1,104,653 407,899 134,648,842
70,648,375 55,612,783 1,000,542 336,234 127,597,934




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
no fixed assets with restrictions were placed on the
Company’s ownership.

(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
no significant fixed assets were leased out under
operating leases. In the year 2016, the Company
reclassified fixed assets leased out under operating
leases to investment properties, refer to XIV.9.

(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
were placed on the Company’s ownership.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

10 BE&EE (&)
(1) BEEERR ()

7R2016F 12 A31H k20154
128318 @ NQ A EFTA R
ZRREINEEEE °

©2) BBBEMEMAREEEE

187
7201612 A381 H & 20154
12H3818 A AR EMREM
ERANETEE °

(3) BABAZLTHET L AIEE B E

7K20165F12 31 H k20154
12H381H » ARAIEEALK
EHERALENETEE - ¥
2016F € « AR A L&
EHEHNEEREMENIER
wRENEE - HERNE2R
BoE+Pg - 9o

(4) AR ZERZENEIELEG

I
7K2016F 12 A31 H & 20154
1283818 @ XRARIERHZ
EEFENETEERBR °
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
11 Intangible assets 11 BREE
Land use rights
ltem HE TihfE g
Cost RERE
At 1 January 2015 and 2015F1A1B &
31 December 2015 2015F12A314 3_5,_554,982_
At 1 January 2016 201641 A1H 35,554,982
Additions during the year AREIE N
— Purchase —-BE 2,514,063
At 31 December 2016 2016124316 3_8,_06?,(_)45_
Accumulated amortization RETEEE
At 1 January 2015 201541 A1H (6,683,286)
Charge for the year REFHE (967,692)
At 31 December 2015 2015128316 (_7_65(_),978_)
At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H (7,650,978)
Charge for the year REFHE (934,859)
At 31 December 2016 2016128318 | (_8,_58?,?37_)
Carrying amounts BREEE
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 29,483,208
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 27,904,004
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, all R2016%F12 A31H Kk2015%F12H
of the Company’s land use rights are held on medium- 318 - ARFIFFELMERAESR
term lease. FRERFEAY o
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

11 Intangible assets (cont’d)

As

at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the

Company did not use any intangible assets as mortgage
for bank loans.

As

at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no

land use rights with pending certificates of ownership
were placed on the Company’s ownership.

12 Deferred tax assets

(1)

@

Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem 5 H

Deductible tax losses Al IEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note Ill.24, the company has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB58,894,918 (2015: RMB24,762,786) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the Company.
The deductible tax losses can be deducted from future
taxable income within 5 years from the year when such
losses were incurred under current tax law.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

11 BREEE(E)
MR2016512 A31H k20154124
318 ' RRAREBEERNELE
E o

MR2016512 A31H k20155124
318 ' NARERNLEREEE
B Hb{E FRREE S o

12 FEFFEBEE
(1) KRB FAERL B 1555 & ZE B A

2016 2015
ZE—RE " T—AF

58,894,918 24,762,786

2) RBH FE= - 24FTE BN & 5t
BR - ARARQFTERATAE
ESAARENEEBENR
REFFE - EEAQRMA
AR #58,894,918 (2015
F: AR¥24,762,7867C) &)
REAEANBERERELEMS
MEE - REBERITRE @ BLE
AENEERREFER @ 7
VATE SRR 385 FF /) HA S 3K 40
RCFETFE -
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

12 Deferred tax assets (cont’d)
(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised
deferred tax assets

Year F15

2016 20164
2017 20174
2018 20184
2019 20194
2020 20204
2021 20214
Total Aaf

226  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itAH R EFRTROERLD T

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#8)

12 BEFSHEE (&)

(3) A IEFEL T IFHEER AT

HIE 1R e 2R I8
2016 2015
—B—R"E —T-1F
19,169,145 19,169,145
5,593,641 5,693,641
34,132,132 -
58,894,918 24,762,786




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
13 Short-term loans 13 HHIfERK
2016 2015
ltem IHE —E-RE —"ZT—hEF
Credit loans ERER 130,000,000 115,000,000
Pledged loans BB SR - 32,468,000
Guaranteed loans REBEX 210,000,000 289,000,000
Total A&t 340,000,000 436,468,000
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, H2016E12 31 B &2015%E12 A
the Company did not have past due short-term loans 318 ' AAFEERHKEEZN
(including short-term loans and long-term loans due within B (B EEEE A —E RN E Ef
one year). R EER) ©
14 Accounts payable 14 FE{TBRER
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows: FE T EESIREE A AT IO -
2016 2015
Ageing AR —E—RE —T—AHF
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6 AAR(E6MEA) 223,726,607 196,200,464
Over 6 months but within 1 year AR E1FE(S146F)
(inclusive) 147,566 4,134,202
Over 1 year 1A E 706,805 1,715,398
Total CEl 224,580,978 202,050,064
The ageing is counted starting from the date when ARie B IE N BRIE R B A 5T
accounts payable are recognised. & o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

15 Employee benefits payable
(1) Employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans

Total

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
— defined contribution plans

Total

228  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERL T

SEET)
BRI
—RERfFaE

pSEikads)
BERUR B R

— REHRfFA &

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#8)

15 FE{HR T % A
(1) FERTB T 375

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
2016% 20165
1R10 &8 EEEM FERY 1283108
2,137,422 16,182,919 15,393,102 2,927,239
- 1,248,073 1,248,073 -
2,137,422 17,430,992 16,641,175 2,927,239
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
20154 20154
1R1E%E REHEN AERD 128315
2,463,514 13,653,511 13,979,603 2,137,422
- 1,107,945 1,107,945 =
2,463,514 14,761,456 15,087,548 2,137,422




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +0 BAFIMERETEIRHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
15 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 15 FE{THE T 5B (&)
(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) %2 EF o
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
20165 20165

1R1B &8 EEEm FERY 12A31EREH

Salaries, bonuses, allowances 1% %% =28

M#ERE 1,377,284 12,577,960 11,788,143 2,167,101
Staff welfare BIRME 760,138 2,646,706 2,646,706 760,138
Social insurance HERRE

Medical insurance BERRE - 459,817 459,817 -

Work-related injury insurance IERKEE = 70,943 70,943 =

Maternity insurance ERRBE = 32,844 32,844 =

Housing fund FEARS - 215,334 215,334 -
Labour union fee, staff and TEEENBT

workers’ education fee HELE - 179,315 179,315 -

Total A 2,137,422 16,182,919 15,393,102 2,927,239

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2015 the year the year 2015

2015 20154

1 B1B5%E AELN AERD 12A31RKE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances T% #5208

FHEES 1,581,500 10,863,261 11,067,477 1,377,284
Staff welfare BIRMNE 882,014 1,882,393 2,004,269 760,138
Social insurance HeRBE
Medical insurance BERRE - 369,315 369,315 =
Work-related injury insurance TERRE - 58,035 58,035 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 52,759 52,759 =
Housing fund FEAES = 171,082 171,082 =
LLabour union fee, staff and TeREBEMET
workers’ education fee HERE - 256,666 256,666 -
Total A&t 2,463,514 13,653,511 13,979,603 2,137,422
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

15 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)

(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Basic pension insurance BEAREZRR
Unemployment insurance RERBE
Total Bt

Basic pension insurance BEARBZRR
Unemployment insurance RERRE
Total CH

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#8)
15 BB THM (&)

(3) BEBIE AT —REEfFal &

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
2016% 20165
1R10 &8 EEEM FERY 1283108
- 1,182,385 1,182,385 -

- 65,688 65,688 -

- 1,248,073 1,248,073 -

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
2015 20154
1H1B%%E AEL AERD 12831 BHE

1,055,186 1,055,186
52,759 52,759

1,107,945 1,107,945

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Company has no payment in arrears in the balance

of employee benefits payable.

16 Other payables

[tem

Subsidiaries
Third parties

Total

230 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itHZEFRTROERL T

Rl

FAT
e —

£=F

7201612 431 H & 20154
1283818 @ XA EMET
i B HE R E R FROE o

16 HAbEMNR

2016
ZE—REF

101,204,013
30,809,164

2015
—FT—hHF

117,961,672
42,648,581

132,013,177

160,610,153
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

17 Capital reserve
2016

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

2015

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

Tz
B
BT E B
At

1

B
BT 2
At

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#)
17 EXRE
ZE—-RE
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end
of the year the year the year of the year
k2] 3] EERM *ERD FRE#A
101,333,047 - 28,064,520 73,268,527
9,926 - - 9,926
101,342,973 - 28,064,520 73,278,453
—ET—TF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end of
of the year the year the year the year
FRE REHEM KERD ERBE
120,855,295 - 19,622,248 101,333,047
9,926 - - 9,926
120,865,221 - 19,622,248 101,342,973
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
C REEE AR ET)

(B 15 Bl Ba 51

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

18 Surplus reserve

2016

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2015

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

[tem

Principal activities
Other businesses

Total

Operating income generated from principal activities
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products. Operating income generated from other
businesses represents primarily the sales of packaging

A H

EERBATR

19 Operating income and operating costs

TERH
Hib %%

materials, rental income and others.

232  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itA R EFRTROERL T

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

(#)
18 B&ANTE
ZE—-RE
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FEMERE FERM FREH
105,794,859 - 105,794,859
—E—hHF
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FMNEEE REHEN FREAEE
104,236,707 1,658,152 105,794,859
19 EEWA ~ EERK
2016 2015
ZE-RE —E-RF
Income Cost Income Cost
A B* WA A
662,023,433 616,603,693 596,798,223 523,230,489
6,882,633 5,655,648 8,961,740 7,747,437
668,906,066 622,259,341 605,759,963 530,977,926

TEEBRAREARTNRE
RTRBEEROHEERA - &
EBRALTRIFEHEBRYSE
MRIRARBEBAFE -



XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

20 Financial expenses

21

[tem

Interest expenses arising from
borrowings

Interest income from deposits

Net exchange gains

Other financial expenses

Total

Investment income

[tem

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
using cost method

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
using equity method

Investment income from disposal of
long-term equity investments

Investment income from holding
available-for-sale financial assets

Investment income from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Including: Transfer from other

comprehensive income

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HH
BRI
BRMFIBIBA

PRI 5 ek
HAis 758 A

B H

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

th BAFRMBERREIEREEE

RAEZ B B R E et

B AR E N RERERE W

REREBEREELO RS

AfhESREERRE HEN

RE WS

REAHEESREERSHN

&Mt

He © e RSB A

(&)

20 B ERA
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—hHF
14,318,040 25,548,674
(1,242,813) (206,138)
(12,201,153)  (4,723,808)
202,102 246,600
1,076,176 20,865,328

21 BEWE
2016 2015
—E—XE —ZET—hF
3,750,000 =
- 855,166
- 8,873,928
423,455 =
2,833,503 2,511,608
178,356 =
7,006,958 12,240,702
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 BARMEERRTETEREHFEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
22 Income tax expenses 22 FISBiER
(1) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and (1) Fric# & /451 7 e i 17
accounting profit is as follows: 2T
2016 2015
ltem IHH ZE—-RFE —T—HF
(Loss)/Profits before taxation FiAT(E518) /A8 (265,170) 15,581,516

Expected income tax expenses at
tax rate of 25%

Effect of tax benefits

Effect of non-deductible costs,
expenses and losses

Effect of unrecognised deferred
tax asset for deductible loss

Income tax expenses

23 Supplement to cash flow statement

LR 25% T E R TEHAFT IS 5L
(66,292) 3,895,379

BB 22 (10,086,393)  (5,413,986)
AR KA - BAFERA
& 1,619,652 120,197
RERERELEFABHEER
AT ia H S 8,533,033 1,398,410
REFEHER - -

23 BEREXRGLER

(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating (1) BEFE R BAC & T B3 2
activities: ME -
2016 2015
[tem HE —E-RE 1%
Net (loss)/profit F(E8)/FE (265,170) 15,581,516
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets n:EEEERE 7,940,609 6,627,940
Amortisation of intangible assets B AERH 934,859 967,692
Depreciation and amortisation of REFEHET ENEH
investment properties 501,012 -
Impairment loss for assets BERERK 6,374,976 480,787
Financial expenses HisER 9,383,544 25,266,061
Investment income REWE (7,006,958) (12,240,702)
Increase in gross inventories FE/EN (33,290,556) (22,400,001)

(Increase)/decrease in operating
receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

A PEMRIE B A3
(49,699,951) 32,592,986
RE IR E MM 42,094,441 115,765,252

REEDELNRSAEFE (23,033,194) 162,641,531
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 BARMEERRTETEREHFEE

financial statements (cont’d) (4#8)
23 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d) 23 BERERBATER(H)
(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents: Q) HeRELEEYFEEIS
2016 2015
ltem I5H ZE—RFE —T—HF
Cash and cash equivalents Be RESEEBYNFERGER
at the end of the year 84,468,206 44,849,439
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : IR& MRS EEBYMHFYIEREE
at the beginning of the year 44,849,439 180,498,375
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & MRS SEYFE N,
and cash equivalents CRi )58 39,618,767 (135,648,936)
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents: (3) FE & FE - ZEYHIIEL -
2016 2015
ltem I H —E—RFE —T—HF
Cash at bank and on hand B& 84,468,206 44,849,439
Including: Cash on hand Hrh: BEFERS 92,860 188,504
Bank deposits BIEAESENSSEE
available on demand RITERK 84,375,346 13,160,935
Closing balance of cash and FRRE RIF S EEBYHRE
cash equivalents 84,468,206 44,849,439
Including: Restricted cash and HA  RARIEAXER18
cash equivalents REMBASEEBY
held by the
Company - 31,500,000
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV. COMPARATIVE FIGURE +i EFELLBBF
The comparative figures of 2016 represent figures for the 2016 F LE B EF A B2015%F1HA1H
twelve months period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December £2015F 124318 1L+ =18 A #ifA
2015. Certain items in these comparative figures have been HEF - AHEMERERENLE - K
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation to EBHB B HRER T 2016F A LB F
facilitate comparison in 2016. LB B ET T EN D
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